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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBME

2018 2017
—F—)\f§ —E—
HK$’000 HK$’000
Fi&iT FET
RESULTS E 3
Revenue WA 1,852,329 1,738,738
Profit attributable to owners of the Company — ZAQ Rl A B E 113,556 33,998
EBITDA RETFIE B ER
BEE AT & 221,115 185,282
PER SHARE DATA BlR&EH
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) FREXRER CEM) 12.71 3.80
Total dividends per share (HK cent(s)) FRBREB CEW) 3.5 1.0
— Interim dividend paid per share — BAERFERE &)
(HK cent(s)) - -
— Proposed final dividend per share — ERERKARE OBL)
(HK cent(s)) 3.5 1.0
Dividend payout ratio kB = 27.5% 26.3%
Revenue (HK$ miflion) Profit attributable to owners of the Company (Hx$ milion)
WA (&5 RRRESFE AR RN (5E%T)

2018 2017 2018 2017

Basic earnings per share (HK cents) Total dividends per share (HK cent(s))
FRERZF &) FRBR B cE)

2018 2017 2018 2017
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS (CONTINUED)

Revenue percentage by business segments
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KEY INFORMATION FOR SHAREHOLDERS
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FINANCIAL CALENDAR
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EFERE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors of Ka Shui
International Holdings Limited (the “Company” or “Ka
Shui”), | am pleased to present you the audited annual
results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2018 (the
“Year”).

For the Year, the Group recorded a 6.5% year-on-year
increase in revenue, reaching HK$1,852,329,000 (2017:
HK$1,738,738,000). Profit attributable to owners of the
Company increased by 234.0% year-on-year to
HK$113,556,000 (2017: HK$33,998,000). The growth of
profit attributable to owners of the Company was mainly
attributable to (i) decrease in the Group’s operating cost
due to improvement in process and enhancement in
automation; (i) reduction in overall operating cost due to
integration of the Group’s resources; and (iii) increase in
operational efficiency due to optimisation of information
systems, which increased the Group’s profitability. In
2018, gross profit increased to HK$447,799,000 (2017:
HK$309,769,000) and gross profit margin improved by
6.4 percentage point to 24.2% (2017: 17.8%).

The Board of Directors recommended the payment of a
final dividend of HK3.5 cents (2017: HK1.0 cent) per
share for the Year after due consideration of the future
business development as well as financial position of
the Group. The dividend payout ratio for the Year would
be 27.5% (2017: 26.3%).

BEMRR :

AANEREZEWBEBRZERBR AR ([ARF %K
[ZmDEEE  MAR BTREARARE
MERR (AEAIAKEBE-_FT—N\Ft+=
AZ+-BALEFRE(XFRED)ZBEZEFE

=
4o

RAFE  REBEWAEEFFHEL EA65%ES
1,852,329,000/8 7T (=& —+4 : 1,738,738,000
BIL) c RARERIFAE ARG R E FFAL
| F+234.0% % 113,556,000/ T (ZE —+ & :
33,998,000/ 7T ) ° ANA AIMERSEE A A FE1E 5 T 18
EFEZR2ARN)IERBRESRAGEH L B5
REBEEXRRNTRE  (EEERES ABELRE
BB - R(NVBIBERHENELABREER
EBUREA - KmENEBRRFEN R
— N\ - EFE _EFRLE EFZE 447,799,000/ 7T
—Z—+14309,769,000/8 ) © EFI KL NG.4
BANBE242% (T —+F : 17.8%) °

EHMEBEANEE Z KRR EREREMT BN
EECEFRBEAFEE 2 KGR EFRI.SHEU
(ZZ—+F: GR1.0BN) - REEZIRALL X
B27.5% (—F—+HF : 26.3%) °
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

FE®HE(HE)

In 2018, the global economy was greatly shadowed by the
impact of trade tariffs imposed by the United States (the
“U.S.”) against its trading partners. Particularly in July
2018, the announcement of the U.S. tariff on a massive list
of China goods changed the pace of the global economy
recovery in early 2018 and undermined the consumer
sentiment worldwide in the second half of 2018. Being one
of the global suppliers of die casting and plastic injection
products, Ka Shui was inevitably affected; however, the
Group still managed to maintain a sustainable revenue
growth of 6.5% for 2018, thanks to its consistent
strategies of offering product solutions serving clients,
continued research and development (“R&D”) efforts in
material and technology innovation for product excellence
for over 38 years. This very much allowed us to stay
resilient in the market amid the uncertainties and
challenges.

Over the past 38 years, Ka Shui has been recognised for
its specialty in magnesium, aluminum and zinc alloys die
casting, and plastic injection moulding, that are backed by
technology and innovation. We have strong and
established relationships with our global clientele in the fast
growing industries, including the 3C (Computer,
Communication, Consumer Electronics) electronics,
personal care and medical, automobile components as well
as housewares. In particular, our plastic injection moulding
segment has recorded growth continuously with a wide
spectrum of products, from mobile devices accessories,
personal care products, to functional and precise parts for
automobile and housewares. In addition, taking the
advantages of the increasing trends on energy saving and
environmental protection, Ka Shui has gradually upgraded
into a light weight and precision solutions supplier, by
providing various solutions, such as light, ultra-thin but
stylish magnesium alloy casing for notebooks and tablets,
low weight but strong automobile alloy and plastics parts
applications etc. so as to cater for the needs for our
customers.

The long term customer relationships and the product
extension would not be achieved without our persistent
input in R&Ds in materials and innovations in production
technology, to offer innovative production applications, as
well as time and cost saving production solutions to our
customers. Last year, the two technologies of Ka Shui,
namely Advanced Out Mold Release (“AOMR”) and New
Magnesium Reinforced Composite Material, were awarded
gold medals in the 46th Geneva International Exhibition of
Inventions. AOMR is an environmental-friendly surface
finishing technology to replace passivation and spray
painting, which can reduce the discharge of toxic waste
water and Volatile Organic Compounds (“VOCs”) emission;
while New Magnesium Reinforced Composite Material is
designed for metal products to improve strength and
resistance to scratches, corrosion and impact resistance,
reduce weight and be more environmental-friendly during
production. The Group will continue to promote
competitive technologies to our customers for wider
product applications. In December 2018, the Group was
awarded the “Hong Kong Innovative Technology
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Achievement Award” and the “Asia International Innovative
Invention Award” by the Hong Kong Federation of
Innovative Technologies and Manufacturing Industries for
achievements in patented inventions. In addition, the
Intelligent Foundry Industry Light Alloy Innovation Center
established in January 2018 will agglomerate industry
resources through promotion of the integration of smart
technology and industry applications such as different light
alloys, fast moulding, green manufacturing, new materials,
3D printing and automation. This will also serve as an
effective platform to enhance the development of light
alloys, to promote larger and precision products with light
weight and to encourage the formation of a
comprehensive supply chain.

In terms of quality assurance and value added, the Group
was honored to be awarded the “Quality Guardian Award”
from Lenovo Group and the “Certificate of Recognition”
from Bose Corporation for our continuous support of
Bose’s new product development and cost reduction
goals. The awards from our customers not only
acknowledged our values and quality excellence that were
up to the international standards of the world’s renowned
brands, but also gave our team great encouragement and
motivation to achieve more in the future.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

EFERE (R)

For the manufacturing capability, the Group has been
upgrading its production facilities by making investments
for smart, digitalised and automated facilities towards
Industry 4.0 in order to further enhance its production
efficiency and reduce production costs. We are pleased to
be the first enterprise in Hong Kong to obtain the Industry
4.0 “1i Maturity Level Recognition” Certificate by Hong
Kong Productivity Council and Fraunhofer Institute for
Production Technology in Germany in 2018 for our
process successfully implemented the Industry 4.0
standards in daily production. The Group was also
awarded the “2018 Hong Kong Awards for Industries:
Smart Productivity Award” by Hong Kong Productivity
Council in December 2018. Looking forward, the Group will
continue to make efforts to develop smart manufacturing
facilities so as to hasten production innovation and
improve efficiency.

L\_ A GREAT LEAP TOWRARDS INDUSTRY 4.0
. HOW & BEYOND ——

CERTIFICHTE F

Last but not least, |, on behalf of the Board of Directors,
would like to express my sincere gratitude to the
shareholders and investors of the Company, business
partners, customers and suppliers of the Group for their
continuing support and to thank the Group’s management
team and all employees for their dedication and
contribution.

Lee Yuen Fat
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2019
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(A)

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group’s
overall revenue slightly increased by approximately
6.5% to HK$1,852,329,000 (2017: HK$1,738,738,000)
when compared with last year. The growth in overall
revenue was primarily attributable to the increase in
certain sales orders received by the Group in the fourth
quarter in order to avoid the possible effect sparked by
the China-United States trade and tariff dispute.

Due to (i) decrease in the Group’s operating cost due
to improvement in process and enhancement in
automation; (i) reduction in overall operating cost due
to integration of the Group’s resources; and (iii)
increase in operational efficiency due to optimisation
of information systems, which increased the Group’s
profitability, the Group’s overall gross profit margin
increased from 17.8% in 2017 to 24.2%. As a result,
the profit attributable to owners of the Company
increased by 234.0% to HK$113,556,000 (2017:
HK$33,998,000). The Group’s EBITDA, computed as
profit before tax, depreciation, amortisation of
intangible assets and finance costs, amounted to
HK$221,115,000 (2017: HK$185,282,000).

BUSINESS REVIEW

Plastic injection moulding business

The good market response of the new mobile
devices launched in the second half of 2018 and the
increasing needs for functional automobile and
precision components together with moulds have led
to an increase in customer demand. Therefore, the
revenue of this business segment had recorded a
significant increase of approximately 27.3% to
HK$906,869,000 (2017: HK$712,210,000), which
accounted for approximately 49.0% (2017: 41.0%) of
the Group’s overall revenue. In order to pursue
continued growth in this business segment, the
Group will endeavor to further expand its customer
portfolio and product solutions.

EEENWRIMN

Bt 7 B B8
HE-ZT—\GF+ZA=1+—HILEFE"
REBE BB AR FFEREMH ALY
6.5%%1,852,329,0008 L (T —+ F ¢
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AR AEBERNENEE RN ELIEERT
BN AR e BB R B Y B 5 A B R AL
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B AFE(RH R hn234.0% % 113,556,000
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EZRAHFE - FE - EREHENAT
(AFI B - BB - TE - BEEEEHEKR
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e e
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Magnesium alloy die casting business

Due to drop in the market demand of overall
notebook computers, the revenue of the magnesium
alloy die casting business for the year ended 31
December 2018 slightly decreased by approximately
4.6% to HK$561,695,000 (2017: HK$588,843,000),
accounting for approximately 30.3% of the Group’s
overall revenue (2017: 33.9%). The Group is actively
exploring the possibility in developing various
applications of magnesium alloy and advanced
forming technology as a platform for automotive and
precision components to capture the growth potential
of this business segment in the future.

Zinc alloy die casting business

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the revenue of
the zinc alloy die casting business was
HK$168,382,000 (2017: HK$203,685,000), representing
a decrease of approximately 17.3% when compared
with that of 2017. This business segment accounted
for approximately 9.1% of the Group’s overall revenue
(2017: 11.7%). It is expected that the zinc alloy die
casting business will continue to act as a relatively
stable revenue contributor for the Group in the coming
year.

Aluminium alloy die casting business

During the year under review, the revenue of the
aluminium alloy die casting business decreased by
approximately 20.1% to HK$161,303,000 (2017:
HK$201,928,000) when compared with that of the
previous year. The segment’s contribution to the
Group’s overall revenue had also decreased from
approximately 11.6% in 2017 to 8.7% in 2018.

Others

The revenue of other businesses increased by
approximately 68.6% to HK$54,080,000 (2017:
HK$32,072,000) during the year. The growth was
primarily derived from the increase in sales of LED
lighting products to customers in the United States.

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited &= ¥ B ZERER AT

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

PROSPECTS

In 2019, the worldwide political and economic
uncertainties persist in the first quarter. Yet, there
have been signs that the outcome of the China—
United States trade and tariff disputes may be
clearer and market demand will resume if major
disagreements are resolved or concluded. The overall
environment in 2019 however will continue to be
challenging as a result of the trade and political
tensions. While the Group will continue to closely
monitor the changes in the operating environment, it
will also focus on strengthening its own capability in
material application, technology innovation, product
diversification and client base expansion, as well as
smart manufacturing development in order to stay
competitive to overcome the challenges ahead.

For its plastic injection moulding segment, the Group
carries on its product innovations to cater for the
needs of its renowned brand customers in 3C and
accessories, personal care and automobile verticals.
From the estimates by International Data Corporation
(“IDC”), smartphone shipments in the future are
expected to return to a year-on-year growth of 2.6%
to 1.56 billion units, driven by continued demands
from emerging markets, high-end product launches
by major brands and the new 5G technology. With
such a huge market, the Group will continue to
leverage on its new materials and technologies to
develop new designs with functional features to
support its customers’ new product launches and
expansion. Plastics nowadays enable new and
diverse applications due to the light weight and
superior strength, the innovation in materials also
transforms plastics to high-strength functional and
structural components, which positively contribute to
the weight reduction in transportation and precision
applications. The Group continues to work towards
this direction; and together with its expertise in
precision moulding, the Group is expected to gain a
larger presence in the automobile supply chain,
tapping the potential in the lucrative new-energy
transportation and precision applications.
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Being a magnesium alloy casing and support supplier
to the world’s top computer brands, the Group has
also been benefitting from the weight reduction trend
of consumer electronics as the increase in demand
for smaller and lighter ultrabooks and mobile devices
constantly drives product upgrades. Despite that the
worldwide shipment of personal computers slightly
declined in 2018 due to the shortage of certain
central processing units and the prudent
procurement approach in businesses amidst the
uncertain economic outlook, the shipment in 2019
may be released due to demand suppressed in 2018
according to the research of Gartner, Inc. To cope
with the demand for light weight with sturdiness,
different new materials and alloy including rare-earth
alloy were developed for specific applications. The
Intelligent Foundry Industry Light Alloy Innovation
Center was established in January 2018 and will
agglomerate industry resources through promotion of
the integration of smart technology and industry
applications such as different light alloys, fast
moulding, green manufacturing, new materials, 3D
printing and automation and serve as an effective
platform to enhance the development of light alloys,
to promote larger and precision products with light
weight. Aside from the materials, the Group’s
outstanding surface treatment technology for superior
surface protection also provides customers with extra
values. The Group will continue to keep a key focus
on its research and development efforts in materials
and production applications to keep abreast of the
market trends.

The Group will continue its efforts towards Industry
4.0 standard implementation within the organisation,
by using timely data analysis to optimise production
scheduling, improve operating efficiency, and most
importantly to boost competitiveness in the digital
era. By including the Internet of Things (“loT”)
solutions in its production facilities, data and
information that can be made ready for making
timely and effective decisions, thus reducing the
Group’s operational costs and production lead time.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

The Group strives to further improve the Group’s
business operations and financial position by seeking
investment opportunities that would broaden the
Group’s existing business portfolio and its sources of
income, with an aim to maximise shareholder value.

With the technology advancement and innovations
mentioned, coupled with its over 38 years of
experience and knowhow in the die casting and
plastic injection moulding, the Directors believe that
the Group is in a good progress for a sustainable
development and is well-prepared for market
opportunities and challenges, to uphold its market
presence and maximise its value for its customers.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES
As at 31 December 2018, the Group had restricted
bank balances as well as bank and cash balances of
approximately HK$256,123,000 (2017:
HK$247,228,000), most of which were denominated
in either US dollars, Renminbi or Hong Kong dollars.

The interest-bearing borrowings of the Group as at
31 December 2018 were all bank loans with an
aggregate amount of approximately HK$324,702,000
(2017: HK$368,278,000). All of these borrowings
were denominated in Hong Kong dollars (2017:
Renminbi or Hong Kong dollars) and which were
primarily subject to floating interest rates. The bank
borrowings with maturities falling due within one year,
in the second to fifth year with repayment on
demand clause and in the second to the fifth year
without repayment on demand clause amounted to
HK$221,491,000, HK$21,363,000 and
HK$81,848,000 respectively (2017: HK$245,364,000,
HK$81,247,000 and HK$41,667,000 respectively).

As at 31 December 2018, the net gearing ratio (a
ratio of the sum of the total bank borrowings less the
pledged bank deposits, restricted bank balances (if
any) and bank and cash balances divided by the
total equity) of the Group was approximately 7.2%
(2017: 14.0%).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEEER W R D (&)

As at 31 December 2018, the net current assets of
the Group were approximately HK$283,103,000
(2017: HK$158,547,000), which consisted of current
assets of approximately HK$934,389,000 (2017:
HK$984,571,000) and current liabilities of
approximately HK$651,286,000 (2017:
HK$826,024,000), representing a current ratio of
approximately 1.4 (2017: 1.2).

EXPOSURE TO FOREIGN EXCHANGE
RISK

Most of the Group’s transactions were conducted in
US dollars, Hong Kong dollars or Renminbi. As such,
the Group is aware of the potential foreign currency
risk that may arise from the fluctuation of exchange
rates between US dollars, Renminbi and Hong Kong
dollars. The Group will closely monitor its overall
foreign exchange exposure with a view to
safeguarding the Group from exchange rate risks.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2018, the Group had no material
contingent liabilities.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s banking
facilities were secured by the following assets: (a) all
monies assignment of rental over the property
situated in Hong Kong owned by the Group; (b) a
property situated in Hong Kong owned by the
Group; and (c) corporate guarantees provided by the
Company and certain subsidiaries of the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had
approximately 4,100 full-time employees (2017:
4,600). The Group attributes its success to the hard
work and dedication of all staff, therefore, they are
deemed to be the most valuable assets of the
Group. In order to attract and retain high caliber
staff, the Group provides a competitive salary
package, including retirement schemes, medical
benefits and bonuses. The Group’s remuneration
policy and structure are determined based on market
trends, the performance of individual staff as well as
the financial performance of the Group. The Group
has also adopted a share option scheme and a
share award scheme as incentives and rewards for
those qualifying staff who have made contributions to
the Group.

The Group provides regular training courses for
different level of staff and holds various training
programs together with PRC institutes and external
training bodies. Apart from academic and technical
training, the Group also organises different kinds of
recreational activities, including New Year gathering,
various sports competitions and interest groups. The
aim is to promote interaction among staff, establish a
harmonious team spirit and promote a healthy
lifestyle.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ESKEREEAER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lee Yuen Fat, aged 63, founded the Group in 1980
and is the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the
Group. Mr. Lee was appointed as an Executive Director of
the Company since 2 June 2007 and is a director of
certain subsidiaries of the Company. He is also a director
of Precisefull Limited, which is the controlling shareholder
of the Company. Mr. Lee is responsible for the formulation
of the overall business strategies of the Group. He has
over 35 years of experience in the die casting industry.
Mr. Lee holds a Master of Science Degree in Materials
Engineering from the Yanshan University. He was conferred
an award of Honorary Fellowship and Fellowship of
Management and Business Administration by the
Professional Validation Council of Hong Kong Industries
and is the Vice Chairman of the Professional Validation
Council of Hong Kong Industries. Mr. Lee has been
appointed by the Foundry Industry Association,
Guangdong Province as an Expert of the Casting Industry
and is selected for its Expert Database.

Mr. Lee was one of the founding members and was the
Chairman of the Hong Kong Diecasting Association (now
become the Hong Kong Foundry Association (the “HKFA”))
in 1989. He was elected as the first Chairman of the
HKFA and Hong Kong Federation of Innovative
Technologies and Manufacturing Industries (formerly known
as Federation of Hong Kong Machinery and Metal
Industries) in 2008 and 2011 respectively. Mr. Lee is
currently the Chairman of Hong Kong Federation of
Innovation Technologies and Manufacturing Industries, Vice
Chairman of the PRD Council of Federation of Hong Kong
Industries, Shenzhen Division, Managing Vice Chairman of
Hong Kong Federation of Huichow Associations Limited, a
member of the Fourth Industry Training Advisory
Committee of Manufacturing Technology (Tooling, Metals &
Plastics) and a member of Vocational Training Council
Manufacturing Technology Training Board. Mr. Lee is
currently the Rotating Chairman of Die Casting Branch of
the China Foundry Association, Executive Director of the
China Foundry Association, Deputy Director of Semi-Solid
Processing Technologies Specialties Committee,
Technology of Plasticity Branch of Chinese Mechanical
Engineering Society, Managing Vice Chairman of the 4th
General Committee of the Guangdong Foundry Industry
Association, the Vice-Director General of the Guangdong
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Mechanical Engineering Association Die Casting Branch.
Mr. Lee is currently the Deputy Director of Sub-committee
4 on Die Casting of National Technical Committee 54 on
Foundry of Standardization Administration of China, the
Deputy Director of the Fifth session of the Die Casting
Technical Committee, Foundry Institution, Chinese
Mechanical Engineering Society and a member of the Light
Alloy Industry Technology Innovative Alliance Expert
Committee of Guangdong Province. Mr. Lee is the
brother-in-law of Ms. Chan So Wah, the director of
operations of the Group, whose appointment as an
Executive Director became effective on 1 April 2019.

Mr. Wong Wing Chuen, aged 57, joined the Group in
1988 and was appointed as an Executive Director and Vice
Chairman of the Company on 2 June 2007 and 1 January
2017 respectively. He is a director of certain subsidiaries
of the Company. Mr. Wong is also currently the Director of
Manufacturing of the Group and is responsible for the
Group’s manufacturing activities. Mr. Wong has over 35
years’ experience in die design and manufacturing and the
die casting industry. He is an Associate of the Professional
Validation Council of Hong Kong Industries.

Ms. Chan So Wah, aged 60, joined the Group in 1999.
She is the director of operations of the Group and is
primarily responsible for overseeing the human resources
and administration management of the Group. Ms. Chan
has over 30 years’ experience in sales, marketing and
management. She holds a Master of Business
Administration Degree obtained through distance learning
education from the Centenary College in New Jersey, USA
and she is a Fellow of the Professional Validation Council
of Hong Kong Industries (Die Casting and Foundry
Industry). Ms. Chan is the sister-in-law of Mr. Lee Yuen Fat
and she had been appointed as an Executive Director with
effect from 1 April 2019 after the year under review.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Professor Sun Kai Lit CIiff BBS, JP, aged 65, was
appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company on 2 June 2007. He is the chairman of the
remuneration committee as well as the nomination
committee of the Company. Professor Sun has over 35
years of experience in the household products
manufacturing industry. Professor Sun was appointed the
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

ESkEREEAE(E)

Justice of the Peace in July 2003 and was awarded the
Bronze Bauhinia Star by the Hong Kong Government in
July 2006. He had been a member of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference of Shenzhen,
Ningbo & Zhejiang Committee for over 20 years. He is
currently the Honorary President of the Federation of Hong
Kong Industries, Honorary Chairman of The Hong Kong
Exporters’ Association, Honorary Chairman of the Hong
Kong Q Mark Council, the Honorary President of the Hong
Kong Plastics Manufacturers Association, Chairman of the
ICAC Business Ethics Development Committee, the
President of Shenzhen Overseas Chinese International
Association and an Adjunct Professor of the City University
of Hong Kong. Professor Sun is currently an independent
non-executive director of Wisdom Education International
Holdings Company Limited (Stock code: 6068), which is
listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. He was a non-
executive director of China South City Holdings Limited
(Stock code: 1668) from September 2009 to July 2017;
and an independent non-executive director of Ming Fai
International Holdings Limited (Stock code: 3828) from July
2007 to March 2016.

Ir Dr. Lo Wai Kwok sBs, MH, JP, aged 66, was appointed
as an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
on 2 June 2007. Ir Dr. Lo holds a doctorate degree in
engineering, master degrees in engineering and business
administration respectively and a bachelor degree in
engineering. He is a Chartered Engineer and Fellow of the
Hong Kong Institute of Engineers. Ir Dr. Lo was awarded
with the “Young Industrial Awards of Hong Kong” and the
“Ten Outstanding Young Persons Selection” in 1992, the
“Medal of Honour” of the Hong Kong Government in July
2001, and was appointed “Justice of the Peace” by the
Hong Kong Government in July 2004. Ir Dr. Lo was
awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star in July 2009 and the
Silver Bauhinia Star in July 2015 by the Hong Kong
Government respectively. Ir Dr. Lo is currently a member of
the Legislative Council of Hong Kong, representing the
Engineering Functional Constituency. He has over 35 years
of experience in the electronic and power supply industry
and is an Adjunct Professor of the City University of Hong
Kong and a Honourary Professor of the Open University of
Hong Kong. Ir Dr. Lo is currently an independent non-
executive director of Glory Mark Hi-Tech (Holdings) Limited
(Stock code: 8159) which is listed on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Mr. Andrew Look, aged 54, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company on 16
December 2009. Mr. Look holds a bachelor of commerce
degree from the University of Toronto and has over 25
years’ experience in the equity investment analysis of Hong
Kong and China stock markets. From 2000 to 2008, Mr.
Look served in Union Bank of Switzerland (“UBS”) as the
head of Hong Kong research, strategy and product. He
was rated as the best Hong Kong strategist and best
analyst by the Asiamoney magazine, a leading monthly
financial and capital markets publication for corporate and
finance readers and investors, in 2001, 2002, 2003, 2005,
2006 and 2007. Mr. Look is currently the Chief Investment
Officer of the asset management business of Tou Rong
Chang Fu Group Limited (Stock code: 850), a company
listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. Mr. Look is also
currently an independent non-executive director of Hung
Fook Tong Group Holdings Limited (Stock code: 1446),
Citic Resources Holdings Limited (Stock code: 1205) and
Union Medical Healthcare Limited (Stock code: 2138), all of
which are listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. He
was an independent non-executive director of TCL
Communication Technology Holdings Limited (a company
delisted on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange on 30
September 2016) from September 2010 to September
2016. He was also an independent non-executive director
of Man Sang Jewellery Holdings Limited (now known as
Affluent Partners Holdings Limited) (Stock code: 1466) and
Cowell e Holdings Inc. (Stock code: 1415) from
September 2014 to December 2016 and from April 2017
to December 2018 respectively.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

ESNEREEAE(R)

Mr. Kong Kai Chuen, Frankie (formerly known as Kong
To Yeung, Frankie), aged 55, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company on 11
May 2015. He is the chairman of the audit committee of
the Company. Mr. Kong is an associate member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a
fellow member of the Chartered Association of Certified
Accountants (the United Kingdom). He has accumulated
over 26 years’ experience in accounting, auditing,
corporate finance and project administration mostly from
Hong Kong listed companies and multinational business
conglomerates. Mr. Kong is currently a consultant of a
company providing company secretarial, risk management
and financial advisory services and an independent non-
executive director of Auto lItalia Holdings Limited (Stock
code: 720), a company listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange. From November 2017 to June 2018, he was
the Chief Financial Officer and Joint Company Secretary of
Futong Technology Development Holdings Limited (Stock
code: 465), a company listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Lo Hin Fai, aged 56, joined the Group in 2012 and is
currently the director of finance and corporate strategy of
the Group. He is primarily responsible in overseeing the
Group’s finance, investment, strategic development and
capital market financing activities. Mr. Lo holds a MBA
degree in Finance, Corporate Accounting and Organization
from the University of Rochester, USA. He has over 25
years of experience in banking, corporate finance and
investment. Prior to joining the Group, he has served
finance, investment and management functions within both
financial institutions and corporate businesses, working
closely with different multinational and local companies in
Asia, covering mergers and acquisitions, equity and project
investments.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Ir Mr. Chan Sin Wing, aged 46, joined the Group in 2004
and is the director of enterprise development of the Group.
He is primarily responsible for overseeing the research and
development as well as new business development of the
Group. Mr. Chan holds a master degree in industrial
engineering and industrial management and a bachelor
degree in engineering from the University of Hong Kong.
Prior to joining the Group, he worked as a senior
consultant of the Hong Kong Productivity Council for over
9 years.

Mr. Wong Wai Chung, Peter, aged 64, joined the Group
in 2012 and is the chief marketing officer of the Group. He
is primarily responsible for overseeing the Group’s sales
and marketing activities. Mr. Wong holds a bachelor
degree in engineering from the McGill University, Canada
and is a Fellow of the Professional Validation Council of
Hong Kong Industries. He has over 35 years’ experience in
plastic, metal and electronics manufacturing and
management.

Dr. Wan Shu Kwan, aged 61, joined the Group in 2018
and is the project director of the Group. He is primarily
responsible for overseeing the information technology and
facility management of the Group. Dr. Wan holds a
doctorate degree in engineering from the University of
Huddersfield and has over 35 years’ working experience in
engineering and project management.

Mr. Chan Man Fu, aged 47, joined the Group in 2016 and
is currently the financial controller of the Company. Prior to
joining the Company, Mr. Chan has held senior financial
positions in different listed companies in Hong Kong and
has over 20 years of experience in the areas of audit,
finance and treasury management. He holds a master
degree in Business Administration from the Hong Kong
Baptist University and is a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHRSE

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) have
the pleasure in submitting its report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of Ka Shui
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and
sale of zinc, magnesium and aluminium alloy die casting
and plastic injection products and components, which are
mainly sold to customers engaging in the household
products, 3C (communication, computer and consumer
electronics) products, automotive parts and precision
components and trading of lighting products and
housewares. The activities of the subsidiaries are set out in
note 20 to the financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business of the Group, together with a
description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing
the Company, particulars of important events affecting the
Group that had occurred since the end of the financial
year 2018, as well as indication of likely future
developments in the business of the Group are set out in
the sections “Business Review” on pages 11 to 12,
“Principal Risks and Uncertainties facing the Company” on
page 56 and “Prospects” on pages 13 to 15 of this report
respectively. An analysis using financial key performance
indicators is set out in the sections “Segment Information”
on pages 196 to 200 and “Five-Year Financial Summary”
on page 264 in this report.

As an innovative high-tech enterprise, the Group is
committed to offering one-stop solutions and professional
services to meet the various needs of our customers, while
building an environmentally-friendly corporation that pays
close attention to conserving natural resources. The
management will review the Group’s environmental
practices from time to time and will consider implementing
further ecology friendly measures and practices in the
operation to enhance environmental protection and
sustainability.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)

During the year, as far as the Board is aware, there was
no material non-compliance with applicable laws and
regulations by the Group that has a significant impact on
the Group’s business and operations.

The Board recognises that our employees are valuable
assets contributing to the Group’s future success. The
Group provides competitive remuneration package to
attract, motivate and retain our employees. The Board also
regularly reviews the remuneration package of our
employees and makes necessary adjustments to conform
to the prevailing market practices. The Board also
recognises that maintaining good relationships with our
customers and suppliers is vital to achieve the Group’s
long-term goals.

Detailed discussions on the environmental policies and
performance, compliance with the relevant local laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the Group and
the account of the key relationships of the Group with
employees, customers and suppliers are set out in the
section headed “Environmental, Social and Governance
Report” on pages 60 to 94 of this annual report.

EMOLUMENT POLICY AND RETIREMENT
BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group’s emolument policy, including salaries and
bonuses, is in line with the local practices where the
Company and its subsidiaries operate. The Group has also
adopted a share option scheme and share award scheme
as incentive and reward for those qualifying staff who have
made contribution to the Group. The Remuneration
Committee of the Company makes recommendations to
the Board on the Company’s policy and structure for the
remuneration of directors and senior management. It also
reviews and determines the terms of remuneration
packages, the award of bonuses and other compensation
payable to directors and senior management of the Group,
having regard to the Group’s financial performance,
individual performance and comparable market statistics.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
ESEHRE(A)

The Group has joined a mandatory provident fund scheme
(“MPF Scheme”) for all employees (including the executive
directors of the Company) in Hong Kong. The MPF
Scheme is registered with the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Authority under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance. Under the MPF Scheme, the
employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the MPF Scheme at rates specified in the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The employees of the
Company’s subsidiaries established in the PRC are
members of a state-managed retirement scheme operated
by the PRC government. These subsidiaries are required to
contribute certain percentage of payroll costs to the
retirement benefit scheme. No forfeited contribution is
available to reduce the contribution payable under the
above schemes.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results of the Group for the year are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 103.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board had recommended the payment of a final
dividend of HK3.5 cents per share for the year ended 31
December 2018 to the shareholders whose names appear
on the register of members of the Company on Monday,
10 June 2019. Subject to the approval of the shareholders
of the Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting
to be held on Monday, 27 May 2019, the final dividend will
be paid on or about Monday, 17 June 2019.

The register of members of the Company will be closed
from Wednesday, 22 May 2019 to Monday, 27 May 2019,
both days inclusive, during which no transfer of shares will
be registered. In order to be eligible to attend and vote at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company,
all share transfer documents accompanied by the relevant
share certificates and transfer forms must be lodged with
the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in
Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, at 17M Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration not later
than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 21 May 2019.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)

The register of members will be closed from Tuesday, 4
June 2019 to Monday, 10 June 2019, both days inclusive,
during which no transfer of shares will be registered. In
order to qualify for the final dividend, all share transfer
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates
and transfer forms must be lodged with the Company’s
branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at
17M Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30
p.m. on Monday, 3 June 2019.

RESERVES
Movements in reserves during the year are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 107.

As at 31 December 2018, the Company’s reserve available
for distribution amounted to approximately HK$248,451,000
(2017: HK$245,739,000).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the year are set out in note 19 to the
consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the percentage of the Group’s major
customers and suppliers attributable to the Group’s total
sales was as follows:

Sales

— the largest customer 37.8%
— five largest customers combined 741%
Purchases

— the largest supplier 11.3%
— five largest suppliers combined 37.5%

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders
(which to the knowledge of the directors owns more than
5% of the Company’s share capital) had an interest in the
Group’s five largest customers and suppliers.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
E%éiﬁﬂ: (n\ﬁ)

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results of the Group for the past five
financial years ended 31 December 2018 and assets and
liabilities of the Group as at 31 December 2014, 2015,
2016, 2017 and 2018 are set out on page 264.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company
during the year are shown in note 33 to the financial
statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the share option scheme and share award
scheme described below, the Group has not entered into
any equity-linked agreements during the year.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other
donations amounting to approximately HK$185,000 (2017:
HK$927,000).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association and the Companies Law
of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to the shareholders of the Company by reason of
their holding of the Company’s securities.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY
During the year, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities of the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
EEEHE(A)

THE BOARD o=
The directors of the Company during the year and up to RAFERAREBEEARAFRELBRL  ARRIZES
the date of this report were: V=
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Lee Yuen Fat (“Mr. Lee”) TRBEE([FEE]
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) (FERITHABE)
Mr. Wong Wing Chuen (Vice Chairman) mAKBRIE (FIFE)
Ms. Chan So Wah (appointed with effect from 1 April 2019) MREELL (ZER-ZF-NFHA—BER)
Dr. Wong Cheong Yiu (Stepped down as Chief Executive HERBL(R=ZF-NF~AHA—H
Officer on 1 June 2018) BRIETHEAED)
(Retired as Executive Director on 1 January 2019) (R-—F—NF—FA—HRIFHTEE)
Independent non-executive directors BIAERITES
Professor Sun Kai Lit, Cliff BBs, JP RN BBS, JP
Ir Dr. Lo Wai Kwok sBS, MH, JP [E (& B1E L sBs, MH, JP
Mr. Andrew Look PEER L
Mr. Kong Kai Chuen, Frankie LRRER A&
(formerly known as Kong To Yeung, Frankie) (BT TE15)
The biographical details of the directors are set out on ERVBERFRBRHIINAFE R F18EFE22H -

pages 18 to 22 of this annual report.

During the year under review, no director resigned from his REBFEA  BEEEEAARRQREHBENE
office or refused to stand for re-election to his office due BB SIE B IR ET o

to reasons relating to the affairs of the Company.

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, BIBEANFEBEZMA - BREFEL L - FHEZ
Ms. Chan So Wah, Professor Sun Kai Lit, Cliff 8BS, JP, Ir H¥iees, Jp - EEBE LSS, MH, P RPERLER
Dr. Lo Wai Kwok sBs, MH, JP and Mr. Andrew Look will retire Bl 81T 2 REIBFEAE IR - ERFHRE
at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being B WA S B IR ET o

eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION BEF2RERX
A permitted indemnity provision for the benefit of the REFF N 2 BEETRE G EEN REE —
directors is currently in force and was in force throughout EHXEMEBRRELEER -

the financial year.

The Company has taken out and maintained directors’ ARRRFARBESE X R LEREBR
liability insurance throughout the year, which provides b AREEESRHEERE -

appropriate cover for the directors of the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
ESEHRE(A)

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting do not have any
service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER’S INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Continuing
Connected Transactions” sets out on pages 42 to 44,
there were no transactions, arrangements or contracts of
significance (inclusive of provision of services to the
Company or any of its subsidiaries), to which the
Company, its holding company, any of its subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a director and
the controlling shareholder of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted during or
at the end of the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)

DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE 13.21 OF
THE LISTING RULES

In accordance with the requirements under Rule 13.21 of
the Listing Rules, the Board reported the following details
of loan facilities which exist at any time during the year
ended 31 December 2018 and up to the date of this
report and include covenants requiring specific
performance obligations of the controlling shareholder of
the Company.

(i) On 21 December 2018, Ka Shui Manufactory Co.,
Limited (the “Borrower”), the indirect wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a facility
agreement with a bank, under which a term loan
facility for an aggregate amount of up to HK$100
million was extended to the Borrower (the “2018
Facility Agreement”). Any draw-down of the loan
under the said facility would be repayable by eight
quarterly instalments commencing the 15th month
after its own draw-down date. The 2018 Facility
Agreement contains a specific performance obligation
that Mr. Lee, a controlling shareholder (as defined in
the Listing Rules) and an executive director of the
Company, shall at all times beneficially owns
(whether directly or indirectly) not less than 50% of
the shareholding and equity interest in the Borrower
and the Company and maintains management
control over both the Borrower and the Company. A
breach of the aforesaid specific performance
obligation will constitute an event of default under
the 2018 Facility Agreement. If an event of default
under the 2018 Facility Agreement occurs and is not
remedied in accordance with the terms of the Facility
Agreement, the bank may (among other things)
cancel its further commitments under Facility
Agreement, and/or declare that all or part of the
loans together with accrued interests under the 2018
Facility Agreement would become immediately due
and payable.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
ESEHRE(A)

(it

On 22 September 2017, the Borrower entered into
the facility agreement with a bank comprising the
following facilities up to an overall limit of HK$160
million to the Borrower (the “First Facility
Agreement”). On 30 November 2018, the Borrower
and the bank agreed to revise the First Facility
Agreement (the “Revised First Facility Agreement”).
Under the Revised First Facility Agreement:

(@)  Trade related facility and revolving loan facility
up to an aggregate maximum amount of
HK$80 million, with a sub-limit of () HK$20
million for the revolving loan facility; (i) HK$40
million for the aggregate outstanding amount
for the utilisation of import invoice financing by
PRC value added tax invoices; (i) HK$10
million for the aggregate outstanding amount of
letter of guarantee/standby letter of credit; and
(iv) a treasury credit limit up to HK$5 million for
the purpose of hedging the Borrower’s foreign
exchange rate, shall be made available. The life
of these facilities are not specified, but is
subject to the bank’s overriding right of
repayment on demand;

(o)  Term loan facility of HK$40 million (the “1st TL
Facility”) had been repaid by the Borrower in
full before 30 November 2018; and

(c) Term loan facility of HK$40 million (the “2nd TL
Facility”) remains unchanged. The purpose of
the 2nd TL Facility is to finance the Group’s
working capital expenditures with a loan period
of 36 months from the date of the 2nd TL
Facility being made available.

The Revised First Facility Agreement contains a
specific performance obligation that Mr. Lee, a
controlling shareholder (as defined in the Listing
Rules) and an executive director of the Company,
shall remain as the single largest shareholder of the
Company. A breach of the aforesaid specific
performance obligation will constitute an event of
default under the Revised First Facility Agreement. If
an event of default under the Revised First Facility
Agreement occurs, liabilities payable under the
Revised First Facility Agreement and the relevant
security documents shall become immediately due
and payable.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)

On 2 January 2015, the Borrower entered into the
facility agreement with a bank to finance the Group’s
capital expenditures for a term loan facility up to
HK$150 million consisting of two tranches, both
repayable by sixteen equal quarterly instalments
commencing the 15th month after the first utilisation
date. The facility agreement contains a specific
performance obligation that Mr. Lee must at all times
maintain substantial shareholdings (directly or
indirectly) interest in the Borrower. A breach of the
aforesaid specific performance obligation will
constitute an event of default under the facility
agreement. If an event of default under the facility
agreement occurs, the bank may terminate the
facility agreement and liabilities payable under the
facility agreement and the relevant security
documents shall become immediately due and
payable.

On 9 November 2015, the Borrower entered into the
facility agreement with a bank to refinance its
existing facilities for a term loan facility up to HK$50
million repayable by eleven equal quarterly
instalments commencing the 6th month after the first
utilisation date. The facility agreement contains a
specific performance obligation that Mr. Lee must at
all times maintain substantial shareholdings (directly
or indirectly) interest in the Borrower. A breach of the
aforesaid specific performance obligation will
constitute an event of default under the facility
agreement. If an event of default under the facility
agreement occurs, the bank may terminate the
facility agreement and liabilities payable under the
facility agreement and the relevant security
documents shall become immediately due and
payable. This term loan had been fully repaid by the
Borrower before 31 December 2018.

On 20 June 2017, the Borrower entered into the
facility agreement with a bank to finance its working
capital for a term loan facility up to HK$130 million
repayable by 36 months after the first utilisation date.
The facility agreement contains a specific
performance obligation that Mr. Lee (including shares
under his family trust) must maintain as the major
shareholder (with at least 50% shareholding) of the
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Company. A breach of the aforesaid specific
performance obligation will constitute an event of
default under the facility agreement. If an event of
default under the facility agreement occurs, the bank
may terminate the facility agreement and liabilities
payable under the facility agreement and the relevant
security documents shall become immediately due
and payable.

Save as disclosed above, the directors are not aware of
any circumstances which would give rise to a disclosure
obligation pursuant to the requirements under Rule 13.18
of the Listing Rules as at 31 December 2018 and as at
the date of this report.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the directors and the top five
highest paid individuals of the Group are set out in notes
15 and 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2018, the interests and short positions
of the directors and chief executives of the Company in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFQ”)) which were required to be notified
to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 to
9 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions in which they are taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO); or were required,
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein; or were required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Companies (the “Model Code”) in the Rules
Governing the Listing on Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”) were as follows:
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Long Positions in the Shares BRZzZRE

Approximate
percentage of
Number of interest in

Capacity Shares the Company
BEATHER
514 8 E L EOl=E 07 4

Executive Directors

BITES
Mr. Lee Interest in controlled company 480,000,000 53.71%
T FHIA AR
Founder of a discretionary 127,980,000 14.32%
trust®@
2REEFRZEIZA®
Mr. Wong Wing Chuen Beneficial owner 11,050,000 1.24%
ERS e EmEA A
Independent Non-Executive
Directors
BIUFERITES
Mr. Andrew Look Beneficial owner 8,800,000 0.98%
B 51 S A EmEAA
Ir Dr. Lo Wai Kwok SBS, MH, JP Beneficial owner 1,000,000 0.11%
[E{Z B 1§ Ltsss, MH, JP BE=EEAEA

Note: HaE -

1. Mr. Lee holds the entire issued share capital of Precisefull Limited 1. 25 4 4 35 A Precisefull - Limited ([ Precisefull ]) 2 &F 2 2%
(“Precisefull”). As such, Mr. Lee is deemed to have a controlling FTREAR o B - 2 50 A 4% 48 /3 i B Precisefull 4% il 11
interest in Precisefull and is therefore deemed to be interested in the W e 30 B I T 38 AR B HE B Precisefull R AR BIFT I A
interests of Precisefull in the Company. 2w e

2. The 127,980,000 shares, in which 77,980,000 shares and 2. 5%127,980,000 0% % 5 % 5!l B Beautiful Crystal
50,000,000 shares are held by Beautiful Crystal Development Development Limited ([ Beautiful Crystal ) & Beautiful
Limited (“Beautiful Crystal”) and Beautiful Colour Assets Limited Colour Assets Limited ([Beautiful Colourl) ##&
(“Beautiful Colour”) respectively (both companies are wholly-owned 77,980,000 % 50,000,000% i% 1 + 1t E A B EHYF Lee
by YF Lee Family Trust). YF Lee Family Trust is a discretionary trust Family TrustZ2 &8 ° YF Lee Family Trust Ty Z %4
set up by Mr. Lee as settlor and UBS TC (Jersey) Limited (“UBS EBEEZ 7 ARUBS TC (Jersey) Limited ([UBS
TC”) as trustee on 20 February 2014. The discretionary objects are TCHIEAZTAEARZZE—NF_A=-+HKLZZZ2#E
family members of Mr. Lee. Mr. Lee is the settlor of YF Lee Family B ESBYHRATREZRIERE - THREEAYF
Trust and is deemed to be interested in the 127,980,000 shares Lee Family TrustZ 55t ZEA - RIEFH REAG KD -
held by Beautiful Crystal and Beautiful Colour under the SFO. 18 #748 A 1K Beautiful Crystal & Beautiful Colour #7482

127,980,000 % % {7 5 1 25 o
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, none
of the directors and chief executives of the Company had
any interests or short positions in shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 to 9 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions in
which they are taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO); or were required, pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein; or were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange, pursuant to the Model
Code in the Listing Rules. In addition, save as disclosed
above, at no time during the year ended 31 December
2018 was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party
to any arrangements to enable the directors of the
Company or any of their spouses or children under the
age of 18 to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in or debentures of the Company or any other
body corporate.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
OF THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2018, the following persons, other
than the directors or chief executives of the Company,
who had interests or short positions in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 to 5 of Part XV of the SFO or, who were,
directly or indirectly, interested in 5% or more of the
nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights
to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of the
Company, or which were required, pursuant to Section
336 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein, were as follows:
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Long Positions in the Shares

Capacity

S

Precisefull
EmEAAD

Beautiful Crystal
EREAAO

Beautiful Colour
EmEA AR

Trustee®
YN

UBS TC

Note:

1. Mr. Lee holds the entire issued share capital of Precisefull. As such,
Mr. Lee is deemed to have a controlling interest in Precisefull and is
therefore deemed to be interested in the interests of Precisefull in
the Company.

2. 77,980,000 shares and 50,000,000 shares are held by Beautiful
Crystal and Beautiful Colour respectively (both companies are wholly
owned by YF Lee Family Trust). The YF Lee Family Trust is a
discretionary trust set up by Mr. Lee as settlor and UBS TC as
trustee on 20 February 2014,

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year, the
directors and the chief executive of the Company were
aware of any other persons (other than the directors or
chief executives of the Company) who had interests or
short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 to 5 of Part
XV of the SFO, or, who were, directly or indirectly,
interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class
of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances
at general meetings of the Company, or which were
required, pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein.

Beneficial owner"

Beneficial owner®

Beneficial owner®

EEEHE(A)

iz zRa

Approximate
percentage of

Number of interest in
Shares the Company
X AT

408 4= BmyaaEatt
480,000,000 53.71%
77,980,000 8.73%
50,000,000 5.59%
127,980,000 14.32%

wist -

1. =4 4 B Preciseful 2 B E B TR AR « B - Fh4E
W18 B A Precisefull (I G 1 #E 55 - WE R AER
Precisefull FT#5 A B AR X Bl 25 ©

2. Beautiful Crystal &z Beautiful Colour% 5l# 74 77,980,000
250,000,000 f& 5 + 1tk A R EHYF Lee Family Trust
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme (the “2007 Share Option Scheme”)
was adopted pursuant to the written resolutions passed by
the shareholders of the Company on 2 June 2007. The
2007 Share Option Scheme has been terminated upon
adoption of a new share option scheme (“New Share
Option Scheme”) by ordinary resolution of shareholders of
the Company at the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 19 May 2017. Upon termination of the
2007 Share Option Scheme, no further options of the
2007 Share Option Scheme can be offered thereunder but
the provisions of the scheme shall remain in force to the
extent necessary to give effect to the exercise of any
options granted prior to its termination and options granted
prior to such termination shall continue to be valid and
exercisable.

The purpose of the New Share Option Scheme is to
provide incentives and rewards to selected eligible persons
for their contributions to the Group. The New Share Option
Scheme will remain valid until 18 May 2027 and the
amount payable on acceptance of all options granted is
HK$10.

The participants of the New Share Option Scheme may
include directors, employees, consultants, professionals,
customers, suppliers, agents, partners, advisors and
contractors of the Group or a company in which the
Group holds an interest or a subsidiary of such company.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon the exercise of all options to be granted under the
New Share Option Scheme and under any other share
option scheme(s) adopted by the Company must not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the shares in issue as at the
date of approval of the New Share Option Scheme. In
addition, the maximum number of shares which may be
issued upon the exercise of all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised under the New Share Option
Scheme and any other schemes involving the issue or
grant of share options by the Company must not, in
aggregate, exceed 30% of the shares in issue from time to
time.
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The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options already granted or to be granted to
each participant under the New Share Option Scheme and
any other share option scheme(s) of the Company
(including exercised and outstanding share options) in any
12-month period up to and including the date of such
grant should not exceed 1% aggregate of the shares in
issue as at the date of such grant. Any grant of further
options above this 1% limit shall be subject to approval of
the shareholders of the Company at general meetings, with
such participant and his associates abstaining from voting.

The total number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the New Share Option Scheme
shall be 89,376,140 shares, representing approximately
10.0% of the issued share capital of the Company as at
the date of this report.

The period within which the options must be exercised will
be specified by the Board at the time of the offer of grant,
and must expire no later than 10 years from the date of
grant. There is no general requirement on the minimum
period for which an option must be held or the
performance targets which must be achieved before an
option can be exercised under the terms of the New
Share Option Scheme.

The subscription price for any share under the New Share
Option Scheme will be a price determined by the Board
and will be not less than the highest of:

(i) the closing price of a share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of
grant of the relevant option, which must be a
business day;

(i) an amount equivalent to the average closing price of
a share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant of the
relevant option; and

(i) the nominal value of a share on the date of the grant.
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On 13 March 2008, the Company granted 20,102,000
share options to the Group’s employees under the 2007
Share Option Scheme at an exercise price of HK$0.415
per share. A summary of movements of share options of
the Company during the year is set out as below:

RZZZNF=ZAT=B " ARARE_ZFTZTL
FREBE 8 M A K E & &% 120,102,000
it - 1THRERER0415ETT - RAFEAR » K
REBERE 2 ESHAIT

Number of share options

BREHE
Lapsed/
Exercise Granted Exercised Cancelled Outstanding
Category of Price Exercise As at during during during as at
Grantee/Name Date of grant (HK$) Period 01/01/2018 the year the year the year 31/12/2018
"
EEBAER, fTiEME —E-0\f RER
i34 BHBeH (&) 1TEH —A—H RERRE RERITE R/ =EH
Employees 13/03/2008 0.415 13/03/2009— 40,800 - - 40,800 =
& 12/03/2018
Employees 13/03/2008 0.415 13/03/2010— 20,600 - - 20,600 -
&R 12/03/2018
Employees 13/03/2008 0.415 13/03/2011— 40,600 - - 40,600 -
&8 12/03/2018
Total 102,000 - - 102,000 -
g
Note: Hiat -
1. The vesting period of the share options is from the date of grant until 1. BRESEHEAEREARREITEMMABAHRL -

the commencement of the exercise period.

2. The closing price of the share immediately before the date of grant
was HK$0.415.

3. The fair values of options granted and the respective accounting

policy adopted are set out in note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements.

There were no options granted under the New Share
Option Scheme since its adoption on 19 May 2017.
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SHARE AWARD SCHEME

On 10 January 2013 (the “Adoption Date”), the Board
adopted a share award scheme (the “Share Award
Scheme”) under which the shares of the Company (the
“Awarded Shares”) may be awarded to selected persons to
recognise the contributions by certain employees and
persons to the Group and to provide them with incentives
in order to retain them for the continual operation and
development of the Group and to attract suitable
personnel for further development of the Group. The Share
Award Scheme will be valid and effective for a term of ten
years commencing on the Adoption Date until 9 January
2023.

The participants of the Share Award Scheme may include
executives, officers, employees, directors of the Company
or any of its subsidiary, any business or joint venture
partner, investor, consultant, adviser or agent of any
member of the Group.

The Share Award Scheme shall be subject to the
administration of the Administration Committee in
accordance with the rules of the Share Award Scheme
and the terms of the Trust Deed.

Pursuant to the Share Award Scheme, the Board shall
select the eligible persons for participation in the Share
Award Scheme and determine the number of shares to be
awarded. Shares will be acquired by an independent
trustee at the cost of the Company or shares will be
allotted to the independent trustee under the general
mandate granted or to be granted by the shareholders of
the Company at general meetings from time to time and
be held in trust for the awarded persons until the end of
each vesting period. Vested shares will be transferred at
no cost to the awarded persons.

Where any Awarded Shares are proposed to be offered to
a connected person of the Company (as defined under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules), such offer of Awarded
Shares has to be first approved by the independent non-
executive directors of the Company and the Company will
comply with the applicable requirements of Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules in respect of such offer (including but not
limited to the obtaining of independent Shareholders’
approval if necessary).
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Based on the 890,435,400 Shares in issue as at the
adoption date, the maximum number of Awarded Shares
under the Share Award Scheme would be 44,521,770
shares and the maximum number of shares which may be
awarded to an awarded person under the Share Award
Scheme would be 8,904,354 shares.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, no Awarded
Share was granted pursuant to the Share Award Scheme.

COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the directors of the Company had any interest in
any competing business with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries during the year under review. Each of Mr. Lee
and Precisefull (the controlling shareholders (within the
meaning of the Listing Rules) of the Company) has
provided a written confirmation, which has been reviewed
and confirmed by the independent non-executive directors
of the Company, confirming that they have complied with
the terms of a Deed of Non-competition entered into
between them and the Company for the year ended 31
December 2018.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
On 7 December 2015, the Group entered into a renewed
master agreement (the “Renewed Master Agreement”) with
Chit Shun Machinery Limited (“Chit Shun”) for a term of
three years commencing from 1 January 2016 to 31
December 2018, in relation to the purchase of equipment,
machinery and parts (together with the maintenance
services). Chit Shun is a limited liability company
incorporated in Hong Kong and beneficially owned by Mr.
Lee and an independent third party, in equal share. Mr.
Lee has nominated a director to the board of Chit Shun.
Since Mr. Lee is a director and controlling shareholder of
Chit Shun, Chit Shun is a connected person of the
Company (as defined in the Listing Rules). Accordingly, the
transactions between the Group and Chit Shun constitute
continuing connected transactions (the “Chit Shun
Transactions”) of the Group. At the board meeting held on
7 December 2015, the board of directors of the Company
had approved (i) the Renewed Master Agreement and the
transactions contemplated thereunder; and (i) the
proposed annual caps for each of the three years ended
31 December 2018.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
EEEHE(A)

On 29 March 2018, Mr. Lee had sold his entire equity RZZE—N\FZAZTNA TEEBLEFER
interest in Chit Shun to an independent third party of the BRI EETEYE=F(ZEE)  H#F
Company (the “Sale”), and he ceased to be a shareholder BABAHMKE -ZIEEE BASTHALRA
of Chit Shun. Following the Sale, Chit Shun ceased to be BIMEEALT - At - IRIEETWHAR - LEHE
a connected person of the Company. Accordingly, the BEBETHRETHRINZLERTHEBAAR
transactions contemplated under the Renewed Master MIFEFER S - KEMBHEEBR KR - ER
Agreement no longer constituted continuing connected (RZHERIEABLE=Z ) REE R AEE R
transactions of the Company pursuant to the Listing Rules JERAE - MR RTEMG CERMBRRERE) -
after the Sale. The Renewed Master Agreement continues TR IS B E G AR FTIRIR o

to be valid and it is intended that Chit Shun, being an
Independent Third Party after the Sale, will continue to
supply equipment, machinery and parts (together with the
relevant maintenance services) to the Group subject to the
terms and conditions of the Renewed Master Agreement.

For the period from 1 January 2018 to 29 March 2018, RZEBE-N\F-—A—HEZE=F-N\F=A=Th
amounts purchased under the Chit Shun Transactions BHEIA - AR FHIE T 2B E B854 56,260,000
totalled approximately HK$6,260,000 (For the year ended BLTEE_E—+tF+A=1+—HIEFE:
31 December 2017: HK$5,088,000). 5,088,000/ 7T) °

The independent non-executive directors of the Company AKRARBUIFRTEEFEERR _E—N\F—A
have reviewed the Chit Shun Transactions for the period —HEZZ-NF=ZAZ+NLHBERAEAXR ST
from 1 January 2018 to 29 March 2018 and confirmed BREZERS :

that they have been entered into:

1. in the ordinary and usual course of business of the 1. HEALEEMHEESFEL
Group;

2. on normal commercial terms or better; and 2. BRB-—MREBERAEEGRTET R

3. in accordance with the relevant agreements governing 3. BBEEEZEXZ2BBHMEIGRET
them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in MIERAFEE  WAKFEARQARRRELN
the interests of the shareholders of the Company as RN o
a whole.

The Company also confirms that it has complied with the RNRHEREENBIHBHRCIRB ETHAE14A

disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of B2 EREHEE -

the Listing Rules in respect of the Renewed Master

Agreement.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
ESEHRE(A)

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the
Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance
with the Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued his
unqualified letter containing his findings and conclusions in
respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed
by the Group on page 42 and 43 of this report in
accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy
of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company
to the Stock Exchange.

PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, the Company has maintained
the prescribed public float required under the Listing Rules,
based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

1. On 26 March 2019, the Board has recommended the
payment of a final dividend of HK3.5 cents per share
(2017: HK1.0 per share) for the year ended 31
December 2018 to the shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company
on Monday, 10 June 2019. Subject to the approval
of the shareholders of the Company at the
forthcoming annual general meeting to be held on
Monday, 27 May 2019, the final dividend will be paid
on or about Monday, 17 June 2019; and

2. Ms. Chan So Wah has been appointed as executive
director of the Company with effect from 1 April
2019.

AUDITOR

At the last annual general meeting of the Company, RSM
Hong Kong was re-appointed as the auditor of the
Company. On 22 November 2018, the auditor of the
Company changed its Chinese practicing name to “# 3

SRHEDERAT.

The consolidated financial statement has been audited by
RSM Hong Kong who retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment.

The Company will propose a resolution in relation to the
re-appointment of RSM Hong Kong at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited 2% BB IERER AT

ARRZHBEEEBREFESAMOGEMD
(FB & TIE2ER]) E 30005k (BB ERK
ERELMBERAIIRETIEI R2RER
HAASE 7405 [ BN BB LR R Pt 35 B B
RBEOZHEN KM | MEARENRERERS -
REEERIE TR A FE14A56 153 HERE X
o MZEHMEHARBEYERAREEA RS
FRRBERENFEREI N ERRER -
AT E B 1 BUAD B B AR X 2 B P o

DNEREFRE

RARER  REARBAIUNEEZAHER K
ARBEFTAEZBERT  ARABDELETR
A2BK  #REHAIRFTRE -

REHIE AR EIE
N—_E—AF=A=-+"B EFEEH%
BR-Z—hFNATHEH)RZHAK
NABREMzBRERNHE - —N\F
T A=+ BULHEFEZRHEREESRSIS
B (ZZ—tF  SR1.080) - AR
AREE—_ZT-NAFRA-_TEtH(EH
—)BITZEERRAFASHER K
BEEHER-—ZE—AFA++tB(E2H—)
HAIRIRT + &

=

2. BREELICHRZER/ARRZHITES
R-T-hFHA—BEK-

2 2L ED
RARF LERAFRREAE L - FIREE (HE)
@ :HEIE S AT (RSM Hong Kong) M 45 B2 A 7K A 7]
ZEE - RZZE—N\F+—A=Z+=H ' ARQA]
B SEP XA ELBEE R ERESEM
Ei

HEMBRROHADERE  BEERUMEEERE
BIEZERAXG AN EBER -

AAFEREERATFRREASREEBREEFES
ETHD % 75 AT (RSM Hong Kong) 2 JR 3 5 o



DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)

OTHER CHANGES IN DIRECTORS’
INFORMATION

Other changes in directors’ information since the date of
2018 Interim Report are set out below:

1. Mr. Andrew Look, an independent non-executive
director of the Company, resigned as the
independent non-executive director of Cowell e
Holdings Inc. (Stock code: 1415), a company listed
on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange on 13
December 2018.

Save as the information disclosed above, there is no
change in directors’ information required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

By order of the Board
Lee Yuen Fat
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2019

EEEHE(A)

EFERNRMRE

A =T — e BRE AR F AR
SEHTIWT :

1. ARRZBIFPTEFERAEN-F
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EEEGD
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EXRERBE

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”)
believes that good corporate governance practices are
essential for promoting investors’ confidence and
maximising shareholders’ returns. The Board is committed
to maintaining a high standard of corporate governance
and reviews its corporate governance practices on a
regular basis.

With the above in mind, the Company has applied the
principles and adopted corporate governance practices as
set out in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices
(the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) in its corporate governance. For the year
ended 31 December 2018, the Board is of the view that
Company is in compliance with all the applicable code
provisions of the CG Code, except the deviation from
provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, which is explained in the
relevant paragraphs below.

THE BOARD

The Board is collectively responsible for formulating the
Group’s overall business strategies, monitoring and
evaluating its operating and financial performance and
reviewing the corporate governance standard of the
Company. The day-to-day management, administration and
operation of the Company are led by the chief executive
officer of the Company. The Board has delegated a series
of responsibilities to the senior management of the
Company, which include the implementation of decisions of
the Board, the coordination and direction of day-to-day
operation and management of the Company in accordance
with the management strategies and plans approved by the
Board, formulating and monitoring the production and
operating plans and budgets, and supervising and
monitoring the control systems. The Board has the full
support of the senior management to discharge its
responsibilities.

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited 2% BB IERER AT
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

EREREE ()

As at 31 December 2018, the Board comprises seven RZE—N\F+ZHA=+—H E528ETI
members as follows: +tHEKE
Executive Directors BITESE
Mr. Lee Yuen Fat (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) PRESRE(ETERITEAAE)
Mr. Wong Wing Chuen (Vice Chairman) BB RE(FFEE)
Dr. Wong Cheong Yiu (Stepped down as HERBL(R=ZZFE-NF~AHA—H
Chief Executive Officer on 1 June 2018) BRIFTTEAEE)
(Retired as Executive Director on 1 January 2019) (R—F—-—HF—F—HRIHTEZE)
Independent Non-executive Directors BIFERITES
Professor Sun Kai Lit, Cliff BBS, JP RN X BBS, JP
Ir Dr. Lo Wai Kwok sBS, MH, JP [E (& B1E Lt sBs, MH, JP
Mr. Andrew Look PEER L
Mr. Kong Kai Chuen, Frankie LRREE A&
(formerly known as Kong To Yeung, Frankie) (FTiETE75)
Biographical details of the directors of the Company RARER  AAAESZHABRFBHIRA
(“Directors”) as at the date of this report are set out on FIREISEF22H °

pages 18 to 22 of this annual report.

The Board members as at 31 December 2018 have no RZZE—N\F+ZA=1T—H SEEFXEL
financial, business, family or other material/relevant IS B %55 HEXEMERNKEHZ
relationships with each other. BR -

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has EBUIFRTERDRE LMARAEIABGHE
confirmed in writing his independence from the Company B EAEEENER: Bt ARG RAZSE
in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. On this EEEBB AL

basis, the Company considers all such Directors to be

independent.

All the independent non-executive Directors were FIEBYIFNTERCIETCEMNAME - KWEAR
appointed for a specific term of two years and are subject HRARNBEBERBAUMEXEARARE 2 IRE
to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual BFAe LnESENEEET- - BE—PRS
general meeting of the Company in accordance with the EERKFE  AAGMKREEE ST E?&
provisions of the Articles of Association of the Company. KNG ESSBRANF CBIIIERNTES &
To further strengthen the standard of corporate SR EABRZERTAHE - FAlEE - A
governance, the Company follows the CG Code and BBER EFgREFHRIGASERHF RKET
requires any re-appointment of an independent RERAZESDBEBUATUREESE YR
non-executive Director who has served on the Board for A -

over nine years to be subject to a separate resolution to
be approved by shareholders. In such cases, the Board
will set out in the annual report or circular the reasons why
it considers such Director to continue to be independent
and should be re-elected.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

EREREE(H)

The Board conducts four regular scheduled meetings a
year on a quarterly basis generally and ad hoc meetings
are convened when circumstances require. Notice of at
least 14 days is given to all Directors for all regular Board
meetings and all Directors are given opportunity to include
matters for discussion in the agenda. Draft minutes of
Board meetings are circulated to all Directors for
comments. Minutes of Board meetings with details of
matters considered by the Board and decision reached are
kept by the Company Secretary and open for inspection
by the Directors.

During the vyear, five Board meetings and one annual
general meeting were held and details of attendance of
Directors are set out in the table on page 53 of this
annual report.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
Pursuant to Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the
roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer should be
separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. Mr. Lee, the Chairman and an executive Director
of the Company, has temporarily taken up the duties of
Chief Executive Officer after Dr. Wong Cheong Yiu (“Dr.
Wong”) stepped down from his position as the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company with effect from 1 June
2018 until a suitable candidate is appointed. The Board
believes that as Mr. Lee is the founder of the Group and
has extensive experience and knowledge, Mr. Lee,
together with the support of the management, shall
strengthen the solid and consistent leadership of the
Group, and Mr. Lee by assuming the roles of both
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer would allow efficient
business planning and decision, which the Board believes
is in the best interest of the business development of the
Group during the transitional period. The Company will,
however, seek to re-comply with Code Provision A.2.1 by
identifying and appointing a suitable and qualified
candidate to fill the casual vacancy as soon as
practicable.

LIABILITY INSURANCE FOR THE DIRECTORS
The Company has in force appropriate insurance coverage
on Directors’ and officers’ liabilities arising from the
Group’s business. The Company reviews the extent of
insurance coverage on an annual basis.

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited Z & BB ZERER A
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

The Directors are regularly briefed on the amendments to
or updates on the Listing Rules, corporate governance
practices, applicable regulatory regimes and the business
development of the Group. To keep abreast of the
responsibilities of the Directors and infuse them with new
knowledge, an in-house seminar was conducted during the
year and all Directors attended the seminar. Apart from
what the Company had arranged, some of the Directors
also attended other external training seminars.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Audit Committee in June
2007. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to
review the Company’s financial reports, make
recommendations on the appointment, removal and
remuneration of independent auditor, approve audit and
audit-related services, supervise the Company’s internal
financial reporting procedures and management policies,
review the Company’s risk management and internal
control systems as well as the internal audit function, and
other duties under the CG code. The Audit Committee
comprises four independent non-executive directors,
namely Mr. Kong Kai Chuen, Frankie (formerly known as
Kong To Yeung, Frankie), Professor Sun Kai Lit, Cliff 8BS,
JP, Ir Dr. Lo Wai Kwok sBs, MH, JP and Mr. Andrew Look
and is chaired by Mr. Kong Kai Chuen, Frankie (formerly
known as Kong To Yeung, Frankie), a qualified accountant
with extensive experience in financial reporting and
controls.

During 2018, the Audit Committee held two meetings to
review the financial statements of the Group, review the
Group’s financial controls, risk management and internal
control systems and to make recommendation to the
Board on the re-appointment of the auditors of the
Company.

EREREE(F)
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

EREREE(A)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was set up in June 2007 and
is mainly responsible for reviewing the structure, size and
the composition of the Board and making
recommendations on any proposed change to the Board
to complement the Company’s corporate strategy;
assessing the independence of independent non-executive
Directors; making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors. The members of the Nomination Committee are
Professor Sun Kai Lit, Cliff BBs, Jp, Ir Dr. Lo Wai Kwok sBS,
MH, JP, Mr. Andrew Look and Mr. Kong Kai Chuen, Frankie
(formerly known as Kong To Yeung, Frankie). Professor
Sun Kai Lit, Cliff BBS, JpP is the Chairman of the Nomination
Committee.

During 2018, the Nomination Committee held one meeting
to review the structure, size and the composition of the
Board and the Company’s board diversity policy.

DIRECTOR NOMINATION POLICY

The Board has adopted a director nomination policy (the
“Director Nomination Policy”) during the year as required by
the CG Codes which sets out selection criteria in
evaluating and selecting candidates for directorships. The
Nomination Committee shall consider various factors,
including but not limited to objectives of nomination
committee, the character and integrity, qualifications, ability
and independency requirements of the selecting
candidates, the board diversity policy and the needs of the
Company.

The Nomination Committee shall evaluate and assess
whether such candidate is qualified for directorship based
on the selection criteria upon receipt of the proposal on
appointment of new director. It may engage external
service provider(s) as it considers appropriate in making the
determination and recommend to the Board to appoint the
appropriate candidate for directorship. The Nomination
Committee shall also evaluate candidates based on the
selection criteria to determine whether such candidate that
is nominated by a shareholder is qualified and appropriate
for election as a director at the general meeting of the
Company.

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited Z & BB ZERER A
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

The Nomination Committee shall review the overall
contribution and service to the Company of the retiring
director and determine whether the retiring director
continues to meet the selection criteria. The Board, with
the recommendation from Nomination Committee, shall
then make recommendation to shareholders in respect of
the proposed re-election of the retiring director at the
general meeting. The Board shall have the final decision on
all matters relating to its recommendation of candidates to
stand for election at any general meeting.

The Nomination Committee will continue to review the
Director Nomination Policy from time to time and may
adopt changes as appropriate at the relevant time.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the
“Board Diversity Policy”) as required by the Listing Rules
which sets out the approach to achieve diversity on the
Board. The Company recognises that increasing diversity at
the Board level will support the attainment of the
Company’s strategic objectives and sustainable
development. The Company seeks to achieve Board
diversity when selecting candidates from a number of
perspectives through the consideration of a number of
factors, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The
Company will also take into consideration its own business
model and specific needs from time to time.

The Nomination Committee will review and monitor the
implementation of the Board Diversity Policy to ensure its
effectiveness as appropriate.

EREREE(F)
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

EREREE(A)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Remuneration Committee in
June 2007. The major duties of the Remuneration
Committee are to make recommendations to the Board on
the Company’s policy and structure for the remuneration of
directors and senior management. It also reviews and
determines the terms of remuneration packages, the award
of bonuses and other compensation payable to individual
Directors and senior management with reference to the
Board’s corporate goals and objectives. The Remuneration
Committee consists of Professor Sun Kai Lit, Cliff BBS, JP,
Ir Dr. Lo Wai Kwok sBS, MH, JP, Mr. Andrew Look and Mr.
Kong Kai Chuen, Frankie (formerly known as Kong To
Yeung, Frankie). The Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee is Professor Sun Kai Lit, CIiff BBS, Jr, an
independent non-executive director.

During 2018, the Remuneration Committee held one
meeting to approve the contract and remuneration of an
executive director of the Company.

The remuneration of the members of the senior
management (excluding directors) by band for the year
ended 31 December 2018 is set out below:

FMEES

RRBR - EELFENARNFHEE S - T
ZEE FEBEARAR TE%&%&&@A
BrHHBEREABNESSHEER  YHAR
BEEgUERHMBEMNE ﬁ&#mﬂﬂ%%
&%ﬁaﬁAaz TS TEATRRE R E MR
B - 37 M%E\QEE%EWH%&&‘BBS, e EEEE
dsBs, MH, JP ~ BER A ROTRUR o4& (RTTETE
BIHEK - FNEE S ERABBUIENTES
RRIRIZ$BBS, JP °

RZE—N\F FMWNEESRITT —ASH it
&$Qﬂﬁﬁi$zmﬁ 49 K2 S B

BE-_ZT—)\Ft_A=t—HLFERHMHM
m%mz mREEAR (ESRIN) FEESIm

—H‘m%

Number of individuals
AE

HK$500,001 — HK$1,000,000

HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000

— NN =

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION
The Board is responsible for the corporate governance
functions with the following duties:

° to develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance and make

recommendations on changes and updating;

° to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors;
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EREREE(F)

e 1o review and monitor the Company's policies and . WA RERRNAGAETEEREERTE
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory FTHEMBERERER

requirements;

. to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct . BE] B RERBARNEERESNEZ
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to TR RERFM (WE) &

employees and Directors; and

. to review the Company’s compliance with the CG . B ARNRIETFEEERTUNEBER
Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance EERREPIEHMREE -
Report.
ATTENDANCE OF MEETINGS HEEE
A summary of attendance of Board meetings, committee TREINR-_ZE-—N\FEFgTHE ZELTEE
meetings and general meetings in 2018 are detailed in the RERARg s HEERE

following table:

Number of attendance/Number of meetings
HERE/ERRE

Audit Nomination Remuneration Annual

Committee Committee Committee General

Board i i meeting Meeting
meeting ] =
EEEHER BEXE

Executive Directors

BITES

Mr. Lee Yuen Fat 5/5 — - — 1/1
FRERE

Mr. Wong Wing Chuen 4/5 — — — 11
Dr. Wong Cheong Yiu™ 5/5 - 11 11 11
EERELO

Independent Non-Executive
Directors
BUFHTES
Professor Sun Kai Lit, Cliff 8BS, JP 5/5 2/2 11 11 i7al
HRIZIH K BBS, JP
Ir Dr. Lo Wai Kwok SBS, MH, JP 5/5 2/2 11 11 11
[EZ BB tsss, mH, P
Mr. Andrew Look 5/5 2/2 11 11 11
BEREE
Mr. Kong Kai Chuen, Frankie 5/5 2/2 11 11 i7al
(formerly known as Kong To
Yeung, Frankie)

TREREE (RRETER)
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EREREE(A)

Note:

1. Dr. Wong Cheong Yiu stepped down as the Chief Executive Officer
of the Company with effect from 1 June 2018 and retired as an
executive director of the Company, a member of Nomination
Committee and Remuneration Committee of the Company with
effect from 1 January 2019.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors (the “Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Having made specific
enquiry of all Directors, all Directors have confirmed that
they have fully complied with the required standard set out
in the Model Code throughout the year under review.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the
preparation of the financial statements of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2018. The statement of the
external auditor of the Company in relation to their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the
Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on
pages 95 to 102.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining and
reviewing the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group in order to safeguard
the Group’s assets and shareholders’ investments. The
systems of risk management and internal control of the
Group are designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve corporate objectives and only
provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

The Audit Committee assists the Board in fulfiling its role
in reviewing the Group’s financial, operational and
compliance controls and reviewing the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting functions, and the
adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s internal control
procedures on the continuing connected transactions.

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited Z & BB ZERER A
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

The management assists the Board in the implementation
of the Group’s policies, procedures and limits within the
Board’s approved risk appetite by identifying and
assessing the risks faced and monitoring the design and
operation of the relevant internal control measures to
mitigate and control these risks.

During the vyear, the Group has engaged an external
independent professional firm to review its internal control
system covering all relevant financial, operational and
compliance control functions within an established
framework. Reports prepared by this firm are submitted to
the Audit Committee of the Company twice a year for
review to ensure that an effective and adequate internal
control system is in place.

The Group has also engaged an independent professional
consultant to identify, evaluate and prioritise the significant
risks exposed to the Group through reviewing the
implemented system and procedures, including areas
covering financial, operational and legal compliance
controls and risk management functions. In addition, a
structured approach to risk management was adopted and
a risk-based three-year internal audit plan was introduced
through restructuring of internal control system in order to
address the significant risks identified and assessed by the
Group.

During the year, the Board has conducted a review on the
effectiveness of risk management and internal control
systems through the Audit Committee and the outsourced
internal auditor. The scope of review was previously
determined and approved by the Audit Committee.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Board
considered that the Company’s internal control and risk
management systems are adequate and effective and the
Company has complied with the code provisions on
internal control and risk management of the CG Code.

TRERHE (R)

EEERAHMLEEE CRR  HHES
EHITAREZER BFUAMEZSHEZE
BOBMEE N RF| - W ER AR A RREIEE
Z AT BB - AR R AR S B o

FA - AEECDERINEBIEERBRTER
MEERS  BRCEYNRBANMB AR
% BERKERDIE R - ZEBTFMWKX
MRtz BEREARTDZBRZEGEMN -
NEREUNREH I NBEERREFE

AEECKRERABIEXEREBRNCETH
HERERF SEREMS 2ERERARE
Z R EREEINEET E - AFER - FHERFEFA
SERHCERAR - -BE  AEERARERE
e RBRER L WEBEHENIEE R 55
ARBEBRBERNAIEZ=FRE - LEHAR
SE DR MG 2 ERER

FR - EEZEEBERZBERINERNHERD
HAKENRRE R R ABRPEE RGBT
R - A BEELRBEZRZ BERE L
JE ©

HE_Z— \F+_A=+—HILFE EFg
RANRRAERE I K E R E R HIE IR K&
B MARRTEETEERARTRBBAR
Eoi% e AR B IR # 5T AR
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EREREE(A)

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
FACING THE COMPANY

Foreign Exchange Risk

Most of the Group’s transactions were conducted in US
dollars, Renminbi or Hong Kong dollars. As such, the
Group is aware of the potential foreign currency risk that
may arise from the fluctuation of exchange rates between
US dollars, Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars. The Group
will closely monitor its overall foreign exchange exposure
with a view to safeguarding the Group from exchange rate
risks.

Competition Risk

Competition risk arises from the emergence of a number of
competitors in the industry. Price cut from competitors
intensifies the risk. The Group believes that the provision
of quality products and after sales service to customers
are the only way to gain and maintain customer
confidence and loyalty.

PROCEDURES AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
FOR HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF
INSIDE INFORMATION

The handling and dissemination of inside information of the
Group is strictly controlled to avoid unauthorised use of
inside information. All staff are required to sign the
employee confidentiality agreement and access to inside
information is restricted to employees on a need to-know
basis. In addition, the Group also set out procedures for
inside information identification, reporting and disclosure.
The Group will review the effectiveness of the current
procedures from time to time to ensure the compliance of
the relevant regulatory requirements.

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited &= ¥ B ZERER AT
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
tEEREE(R)

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION PEE 2 <
The total auditor's remuneration in relation to statutory AEEEMNFINEBT ZEEMERESFTAER
audit work and non-audit services of the Group payable to Fi 7 B85 TE iz R I RS X BEM B 2 20 T

the Company’s external auditor, RSM Hong Kong, is set
out as follows:

2018 2017
—E—N\EF —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEIT FET
Statutory audit EEEZ 1,770 1,750
Non-audit services!" T ZREO 353 443
Total BB 2,123 2,193
Note: Htit -
1. Non-audit services mainly include agreed-upon procedures on interim 1. FEZRBETEFPHREEZNTERF KRB E AR
results and tax advisory services. % e
COMPANY SECRETARY NEME
The Company Secretary of the Company is a full time RRABZRRMEABARRZZ2HESE -BEZ
employee of the Company. For the year ended 31 - N\FF+ZA=FT—HLEFE RAWEDE
December 2018, the Company Secretary has duly FLEMHABIEI BB ERFINEE -

complied with the relevant professional training requirement
under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

DIVIDEND POLICY R EBUR

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (“Dividend RAFERMREBER (TREBEK]) - BEEAA
Policy”), pursuant to which the Company may declare and AT MARAIMRE ([IRE]) EM RIRERES -
distribute dividends to the shareholders of the Company EMRREREERESCROIEZZAE T
(the “Shareholders”), provided that the declaration and FE M E A AR AR AR B BUR PR RR 3R B9 HEfE o

payment of dividend shall remain to be recommended by
the Board and any final dividend for the financial year will
be subject to shareholders’ approval.

In proposing any dividend payout, the Board shall take into ERBREAMNEREN EFef8ZE(HFR
account, among other things, the Company’s current and F)ARRNRIERRAREE  DEERFTE R
future operations, corporate development plans, liquidity BESMRN BEREKRKRARRFBHEERT K -
position, capital requirements and future expected capital &I /NEI el )N SE: R NG o3PS
needs, as well as dividends received from the Company’s EoREMEBENTEFRTHASHS AE ¥R
subsidiaries and associates. Any payment of the dividend FrEmBAARARRG 2 BB ERERIMEK -

by the Company is also subject to any requirements under
the Cayman Islands law, the Listing Rules of Stock
Exchange and the Company’s Articles of Association.
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EREREE(A)

The Board will continue to review the Dividend Policy from
time to time and may adopt changes as appropriate at the
relevant time as part of its commitment to maximizing
shareholder value, taking into consideration the financial
performance of the Company and market conditions.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for convening extraordinary general
meeting on requisition

Pursuant to Article 64 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, an extraordinary general meeting may be
convened on the requisition of one or more shareholders
holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition, not less
than one tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
having the right of voting at general meetings. Such
requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or the
Company Secretary for the purpose of requiring an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition. Such meeting shall be held within two months
after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of
such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so
in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred
by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the
Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

Procedure for putting forward proposals at
general meeting

A shareholder shall make a written requisition to the Board
or the Company Secretary at the Company’s office in
Hong Kong, specifying the shareholding information of the
shareholder, contact details and the proposal he/she
intends to put forward at the general meeting regarding
any specified business and its supporting documents.

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited &= ¥ B ZERER AT

EE BB TR REEER - WA s 18R
RERNEEZE EFREBNEIRRNGE&K
AEwERE - WRBEEARR 2 MBRE RS

BB -

BRERzER
ARBRARRBHIXEZRRF

REARPMBERZAAF64E  BRREIARE
NAR—E2EZERARREREM  ZFRR
RIBHERE AARAAR A BEHRAT DR+
DZ—HEARERRARG LRE - BRAERAMN
EEAMNEFTSHAQRAWERL  HAEXE
FEREIEBMERMIERZEMNFHMmEHK
RENAE AHERAEERZFRERME
ARBR MEZTEEFLEEXAHET
“t-BRRBETREEREESE  AlFK
ANEZ2FRAN)AARRTABTERE
BB REAREFEEREZRARSRM BRI
BREER BRAARREERBRA -

RIERXELREERZER

BRREBHNARFEENRERANARNFRZEES
SRFMEREEBEER - ERAFAZBRN
BAEER - RFABAER  ARERMEMAR
MEHMINBRAE LIREMNEE LA GRS -



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Shareholders’ enquiries

Shareholders should direct their questions in relation to
their shareholdings to the Company’s share registrar.
Shareholders may at any time make a request for the
Company’s information to the extent that such information
is publicly available. Shareholders may send written
enquiries to the Board by writing to the Company
Secretary at the Company’s Hong Kong office at Room A,
29th Floor, Tower B, Billion Centre, 1 Wang Kwong Road,
Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

Constitutional Documents
There is no change in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the year ended 31 December 2018.

EREREE(F)

R R 1R

R EMAR B BP ERER DA BERE
ZREE o BRAIBER ZRKRMBEBARRZAMH
BH -BRRTAMHAAWERNEFTGIELSE
A ARAEBRER MU BBEBNENRE
RRE RERPOBE2EAE -

HEERXH
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

B A EREAHE

This is the third environmental, social & governance
(“ESG”) report published by Ka Shui International Holdings
Limited (“Ka Shui” or the “Company”), covering the period
from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2018 (the
“Reporting Period”). The ESG report was prepared in
accordance with the “comply or explain” provisions of
Appendix 27 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“Stock Exchange”). The board of directors has
acknowledged its responsibility to oversee the Company’s
sustainable development and review the truthfulness,
accuracy and completeness of the ESG report. The ESG
report highlights sustainability efforts and achievements of
the Company and its major manufacturing facilities
(collectively, the “Group”) in Guangdong, as listed below:

— Ka Fung Industrial Technology (Huizhou) Company
Limited (“Ka Fung”)

—  Ka Yi Technology (Huizhou) Company Limited (“Ka Yi”)

—  Ka Shui Technology (Huizhou) Company Limited (“Ka
Shui Technology”)

Ka Shui welcomes your feedback on the ESG report and
other sustainability-related matters. We will continuously
improve our ESG strategy and work towards our vision to
develop into a leading green and high-tech enterprise. If
you have any comments or suggestions, please contact us
through email at enquiry@kashui.com.

L ERERZERER AR ([Ek]k A2
?‘J%M%ani&iﬁ ié,fé}u(fiaiﬁ Fam—gir,
ERDBE BME-Z—NF—A—H=ZZ
—}\i-i— A=+—B8E(®REHME]D - R
B e mEEARENRBEEABARSMER
T(F%’M&Fﬂ) EA5 FmARAMSE -+
FJE%M#JEI’J%E;E%E%'J EFCEREBA
Eﬁ*ﬂ NAMAFEERE  UEEHEREN
BEEM ERERTEY-IRIE LS EERR
iﬁ%$®7&ﬁﬁf%%£xiﬁ 5 e (4518
[(RNEED A HES I RKSE - TS

- REIEXMBREMNARAR(RZD

- REMRGEMNAR2E(EED

—  EHFREMNER2E ((ERBH])

SNECIGEIRG R ERRE R EMATHEF
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Identify key |dentify Conduct materiality Prioritise
stakeholders materiality topics assessment materiality topics
BRIFERHHE B FRE EITEE M BrREEEMTE
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

The participation of stakeholders, including both internal
and external, is crucial for corporate social responsibility
(“CSR”) implementation and continued success in ESG
management. We identify our key stakeholders and
communicate with them on an ongoing basis through
various channels to understand their expectations and
concerns so as to refine our sustainability strategies and to

Bz - H2RERHRE ()

FOE(BEABRMDN2ENPEHSEE
(EEMHEEETDNERIRE HERERE
BENRERNEBRER - RACHNEEZRHN
FoWEBRRREFERMIIER - THEMLM
BRI R BT - HE T 5T & B API A AT 45 AE SRR XL 1
HER RmEHE - RMAEEBI2F0E
BREEE  FF  REMEEBIRNRE A

address risks. During the Reporting Period, we have ERMABR - IHELEAPEZZ27/0T
engaged our key stakeholders, including the Board of
Directors, customers, employees and suppliers or
contractors, to hear their voices. The summary of

stakeholder engagement is presented below:

Stakeholder¥ i} & Communication Channel;# i &

Board of Directors e Company website A 7] 48k

- e Annual and Interim Reports F 3R & b Hi ¥R &
e HKEx News H22 P52 5
o Regular meetings & #i & #

Customers e Company website A 7] 43uf4
=P e Customer satisfaction surveys & FimEEAE
e Customer service hotlines & F IR #§ 243

Employees e Training and orientation Il %8 & %3
{==] o Intranet VB4
e Opinion box & 7.4
e Annual appraisal FE {4
e Relationship building activities 1237 B & K )E &)
o Whistle-blowing mechanism £& & {4 |

Suppliers or contractors e Monthly and annual assessments A E & & & ;4
R SR Y e Tendering and procurement processes FR1E & 57 i 7 12
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BRig - H2RERKRE(R)

To identify material sustainability-related topics, we have
conducted an online survey to gather views from our key
stakeholders. The survey consists of 22 ESG topics,
covering areas in operational practices, employment,
environmental protection and community investment.
Stakeholders are invited to rate the importance of those
topics from a stakeholder or a business perspective. The
materiality assessment matrix is presented below:

AERETHERENEZEIE  RAUNBLA
EFARETEFNENER - AEBIE22ER
BoMEHERFE  REBEEESR RE R
BRERMEREED - FHERBLIFNHERX
E¥BAETEZETENEEE - EBHTHE
PEZ25IEAT

Materiality Assessment Matrix

EE M GER
Medium Priority High Priority
RESEIRT =EERF
Lilo:)
3 Lic
S
g8
2 #
£ &
2
E @ 0
Low Priority o Medium Priority
REBEIRF REERT

Importance to business

HEBHERY
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
Bz - H2RERHRE ()

High Priority & @5 XF Medium Priority B @5E/XFF Low Priority K{2%& R F
1 Air emission 11 Employee development 2 Greenhouse gas emissions
ZE R EBE#ER BE R
3 Hazardous waste generation 14 Customer Satisfaction 4 Non-hazardous waste generation
BEEREYMES EPWER BEREYES
10 Occupational health and safety 16 Product and service labelling 5 Energy use
BEEREREZR EmkRBEH EENGREE
12 Child labour 19 Customer privacy 6 Water use
ET BEFILE AKX
13 Forced labour 20 Supply chain management 7 Use of materials
BB T HEEER MHE A
15 Product quality and safety 8 Labour rights
EmZEERkLr 25 TR
18 Intellectual properties 9 Diversity and equal opportunity
R EE Rk TFERE
21 Business ethics 17 Marketing communication
[EE3ER & i E S
22 Community support
e &
With the results, we prioritised those ESG topics into 3 RIBER  BAKZERS HHEERIED
categories: high, medium and low, for better strategic B=E m  PRIE  AEEITEITRBERS
planning and resource allocation. Acknowledging feedback RERDE - HPIBRHFHENRLE - W0
from our stakeholders, we are committed to strengthening WIRE M EEEIRRIIR - BUAREE -

our ESG performance, governance and policies.
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ENVIRONIVIENTAL SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

OUR SUSTAINABILITY APPROACH

To implant CSR considerations into our management
model, we have formulated the Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy Statement, in line with our core values
“pursuit of excellence, creation of values, unity and mutual
trust, harmonious development, green production and
giving back to the community”. It is a group-wide policy
implemented at all levels of staff.

Sustainable
Operations
A EEE

4ing For

Qur

People
HAlEET

We focus on four key areas and are dedicated to fostering
the well-being of our employees, customers, environment
and community through leveraging our technology,
innovation and expertise. It acts as an effective internal
control system to handle ESG-related risks and to help us
visualise corporate sustainability.

Guided by this management framework, we incorporate
these corporate values into our operational business level.
Various tools, including 7S Management, Group
Environmental Policy, Group Quality Policy and Group Anti-
Corruption Policy, are developed with reference to
international and industry-specific standards, such as
Social Accountability International SA 8000, Responsible
Business Alliance (“RBA”) Code of Conduct and relevant
ISO standards.

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited Z & BB ZERER A
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EE
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RE - GHERRE (R

The 7S Management ([ 7SEE |)

The 7S Management was originated from the 5S management, and its building blocks are the most powerful
lean manufacturing tools. The 5S come from Japanese terms beginning with the letter “S” — Seiri, Seiton,
Seiso, Seiketsu and Shitsuke, and together with two additional phrases — “Safety” and “Save” to complete
our management approach. It is particularly used for successfully guiding our employees over the years to
maintain a healthy and safe workplace, to manufacture quality products and to conserve resources through
behavioural changes.

TSERRNESER  mME—EFAZHREY (S AN BREER LA SSREMAEFHAISIMNBEE —
Seiri[ 23 | - Seiton[# 18 | - Seiso[/& 17| * Seiketsu[ /52 ] K Shitsuke[ =& ] * M 5 7h @ {0 57 52 /=& Safety [ %
2| MSave A - E7EFABRETERMOERE W - EEFEZLHEARKINMES R M E L IR
RERZENIESHA KNEEEERENERRERITAREMEHNEIR

A. BUSINESS ETHICS A EEEE
Pursuing Excellence In Business EBREHE
“Respecting people, honouring customers, fostering [AABE - LAY « BIEAIF RFENR
innovation, and supporting continuous improvement” ZIZRWMEZLERA - BIURE - 1
are Ka Shui’s key operating principles. We firmly BEAEREBEYR AERMOEMEZRNER
believe doing business ethically and creating MHEAENHENEE Dol BRMEBR
sustainable values for our business partners and the TEHEROEBFEAOBER RMOAELSE
community are the keys to guide us through the BREPETHEEANEERESR BN
evolving business world. Complying with all THERMOER LBRKEM -

applicable laws and regulations in our operation, we
strive to pursue excellence in our business.

Product Responsibility ZE &S {F

Group Quality Policy & E &E B ¥

1. Provision of adequate training to our workforce
RETRHFTEHEIN

2. Advance planning to prevent occurrence of quality problems
RATGTEIAGT I B B &

3. Good relationship with our customers and suppliers
B R A R PR B R AT R AR

4. Continuous improvement on customer satisfaction

TEREEFmEE
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Delivering high-quality products and services is the
core mission of Ka Shui. To satisfy customers’
expectations and to build trust, we have established
robust internal control processes with reference to
international and industry-specific standards, as well
as customers’ requirements. For instance, our
manufacturing facility, Ka Fung is certified with ISO
9001:2005 Quality Management System for the
manufacture of plastic injection products. Internal and
external audits are performed to ensure full
compliance with applicable laws and regulations.
Corrective and preventive procedures are in place to
handle any product non-conformity to our quality
standards. All of our employees are devoted to
working according to their job responsibilities defined
in the quality system and do the best to satisfy our
customers. We are also committed to providing
accurate and complete information about our
products and services, marketing, advertising and
labelling to protect the interests of our customers.

In addition, we have an ISO/IEC17025 accredited
Research and Development (“R&D”) laboratory,
specialising in research and testing of high
performance nonferrous light alloy. With the
laboratory, authoritative testing services, such as
mechanical testing, photoelectric property testing,
hazardous substances testing, are available to offer
effective technical supports for product quality
control.

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited Z & BB ZERER A
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BRig - H2RERKRE(R)
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
Bz - H2RERHRE ()

Ka Shui’s efforts on maintaining high quality standards has been recognised by Lenovo and awarded the
Quality Guardian Award. The award is attributed to our strict quality controls with persistence of whole
participation, system implementation, continuous improvement, quality assurance and comprehensive services.
FnERFBEERESESIBEANRN  WESEAEER - BERYREAMABRBHREERE  BHE28
L - ZEWAT  HENE  mERERZERS -

We actively take the lead in ensuring the safeness of BMBEGTE  BiBHRANET RS RE
our products by identifying and evaluating risk factors mHERER  BRERELE @ EhmERE
of our services and products, and thus effectively ZEzERE - BZMB N BRBRIIENE
controlling those risks. We are dedicated to BEFERBER (CEEMERSINI A
controlling our use of hazardous substances in our EMERS]) R 2mai - 3 - Kk
processes for the safety of the environment, EREIVMEEmarfl 6 RERR
employees, customers and end-users by ensuring all Bl1) - AERIRMERER  EE - ERP k&
of our operations are complied with international BKAPLEMBEFFRBEEYME -

regulations such as Restriction of Hazardous
Substances (“RoHS”) and Registration, Evaluation,
Authorisation and Restriction of Chemicals
(“REACH").
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During the Reporting Period, the Group was not
aware of any material non-compliance with laws and
regulations relating to health and safety, advertising
and labelling matters of products and services in
Hong Kong and Mainland China.

Business Conduct

Ka Shui upholds the principle of “Compliance,
Integrity, Fairness, and Anti-corruption” seriously and
does not tolerate any form of bribery in order to do
business ethically and responsibly. With this strong
commitment, all employees are strictly prohibited
from receiving, directly or indirectly, any form of
benefits such as presents and money by stating
clearly in our Group Anti-Corruption Policy and Staff
Handbook. Sufficient training is also provided to let
employees be familiar with our standards and related
ordinances.

Whistle-blowing mechanism is also set up for
reporting any suspicious cases of corruption. Staff is
welcomed to report anonymously through suggestion
box, email, QQ or by face-to-face communication.
We promise to handle the issue timely and fairly
within three working days.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not
aware of any material non-compliance with laws and
regulations relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and
money laundering in Hong Kong and Mainland
China.

Intellectual Property Rights

As a part of the technological industry, we
understand the importance of intellectual property to
business. There are patents and trademarks held for
our technologies and developed materials at Ka Shui.
Therefore, we strictly adhere to our confidentiality
and data protection policy, by clearly specifying in
our Staff Handbook, the employment contract and
staff non-disclosure agreement. Adequate training on
intellectual property right protection is also organised
for all employees to strictly follow all the rules and
regulations, striving to best protect the Group and
our customers’ interests in intellectual properties.

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited Z & BB ZERER A

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BRig - H2RERKRE(R)

RmEHRRE  AEEY T AR EFMEEE
ErBEAREERMRBNEERZE &
ERBEREEEENTETERIERB
\;E/O

EHH

BInRBEERIEQTE  BERE  2F
RIE -~ ZIEBEHRIRA - REEAEANE
i NERBXBREIREE - RETHEE
A BMESERERBENREIFM
FERINR  BEAAREREERIEERK
BEMPANMNE - Y EesE - Hfh
RETENFZI  FREEATHMANGE
KA BIED

TAPI IR SRS B R - DA SR S AT ] A) &R
REEZ  WEULE TERERME  BF
B QQEEHHEHBRERER - WA
AEZEIEAARKERAERES B

%o

RmEHRRE  AEEY N ABEFMEEE
KRABAENEEE  9R  BEFRARER
R BSTIRRFOERBIL

ROGEk EE AR

ERMBRITEN—DF  RFMPABMBE
BYE—ECENERE - RhiSA LK
MA B B HA R AR » FEkt - 34
EETIFM RBEAHRETRERZ
BRHNEA - ABEE T RE R EURRER
R-BMLRMEREENTRNABE
RIRELE - BRI B TR AR AR ARB -
BENREANKEREPEMNBERTEN
Ma o



In addition to protecting our own rights, we also
value and respect the rights of other personnel and
parties. We will not use third party’s intellectual
property in our business without prior authorisation.

Customer Satisfaction & Privacy

To build a close customer relationship and loyalty, it
is our fundamental goal to listen to our customer
feedback closely and satisfy their expectations. We
conduct customer satisfaction surveys twice a year to
help us understand how our customers perceive our
products and services. In case of any dissatisfaction
or return of product from customers, we will
investigate the reasons and set up improvement
plans on our production and service. Constant
follow-up procedures are implemented to prevent
recurrence of the same deficiency.

Endeavouring to build a trust relationship, strict rules
are set up to ensure proper handling of any
confidential information of clients and the Group.
Clear guidelines and procedures are in place to
regulate how to collect and handle customers’
information. We also sign confidentiality and non-
disclosure agreements with our clients to protect all
customers’ confidential business information and
product information.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not
aware of any material non-compliance with laws and
regulations relating to privacy matters of products
and services in Hong Kong and Mainland China.
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Supplier Management

As a leading company specialising in magnesium,
aluminium and zinc alloys die casting, and plastic
injection moulding, we strive to convey our CSR
values to business partners that we interact with and
build mutual trust. All new suppliers are required to
go through a thorough supplier assessment which
consists of not only criteria linked to product quality,
but also a wide range of CSR-related aspects, such
as environmental protection, occupational health and
safety (“OHS”), intellectual property rights, privacy,
labour standard and welfares, in order to make sure
our values are aligned. To meet raising customer
expectations and demands, we have developed
detailed policies and procedures to effectively
manage the product quality of our suppliers through
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the monthly and annual assessments based on
product quality, delivery time, customer complaint (if
any) and other CSR-related aspects.

Aspect £iIE Requirement E3K

Anti-corruption We have established strict rules for all our business partners which are detailed

RIEH in our Code of Conduct and Group Anti-Corruption Policy. We require all
suppliers to follow the content stated in the declaration of integrity; otherwise,
they will be blacklisted and may be subject to legal prosecution.
BRHEREBEEBEERHRIEBRBONMRA > ZERVERMNTRATRIREER
RBBERDFHMATR - HARRAAEHERETHREZRAMANANT B8
P IIA B ZE - WAL BERRLFR ©

Child and forced labour We require our suppliers and subcontractors to follow the same labour practice

BT R@AST at Ka Shui by adding the requirement of child and forced labour prohibition in
partnership agreements. It is also one of the bases for the selection and
evaluation processes. If the suppliers and subcontractors are found to be have
employ child or forced labour, they are required to undergo the remedy
procedures and make improvement plans. Otherwise, they will be disqualified.
BHERFEELRDEEETRIRNERS TEN  EAERHEBET MAZIL
EIRBALTINER - cthBEERTEBARENER — NBRHEF RS
BREERAETINRAST  MAREIHMIRF IS ESETE - BRI EIUS
B o
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Aspect £iiE Requirement E3K

Environmental Suppliers have to sign the Supplier Environmental Agreement to ensure they
protection understand our CSR policy and are committed to accomplishing our
IRIBIRE expectations according to ISO 14001 Environmental Managing System. Since we

strictly follow the RoHS and REACH standards, suppliers are required to declare
that their supplying materials are complying with the standards, and also to
submit testing reports performed by a third party for verification of the
compliance. For instance, chemical suppliers are required to submit Material
Safety Data Sheet to disclose the health and safety hazard information of the
chemicals and corresponding health and safety measures. We will request
improvement plans in case of discovery of violation. Ka Shui may terminate the
business relationship if no corrective or preventive actions are taken.
HEFVARSHEARRHSE BRRSFAQRMNGELSELEER - WK
HIRIRISO 14001 IRREBRBAEREAMNPL - AXHMBERETESTVER
H R b B e - FHE - RERRGINERE - HERCABRAREHENERT
SRE TRXBBF=ZFTHTNAIHERE  UBREFESTaH - fl0 - E2mE
EEARRIMHAZ2BER  URBLERNRERZ2BEERAREERNRZ
B2 NERER KK ERBCEE - 1R FERIMA ESFER 5
Bt - 323 Al 4% E R TS RRAR o

OHS Suppliers are required to sign the Safety Responsibility Agreement to show their
BEemRLsr commitments in safeguarding worker’'s working conditions. For example, all
workers have to be provided with sufficient protective equipment and trained
before on-boarding.
HENEARELTETHE  ARARSERELATEGRG S EE A - 0
W FBEIAAEARER BN ERE  WAEEXTEAEIEI -

Product safety Suppliers are required to declare that all products supplied to Ka Shui conform

EmLs to the requirements of REACH and RoHS.
HEFARAMEGHETEZRNERIFA(C 2ot 77 RELRHRE
EMERGIEEK o

Apart from managing our suppliers, we also look BREERMAOMEEREIN  RMBEDEE
closely at the ethicality of our procurement activities. BMRBITAEEETER - fln - &BMT
For example, we do not source minerals such as ERBEXZIREEEYENTIREME
tantalum, tin, tungsten and gold from whose (IR R FE B LA ABEIR) IR R E
extraction and trade in unstable regions affected by SREY (M - 15 B5RES)  BAEM
armed groups such as the Democratic Republic of L b [ B8 P A B o

Congo or adjoining countries, which have been
known for perpetrating human right abuses.
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EMPLOYEE

Respecting Our People

Ka Shui upholds the values of “Respect, Passion,
Integrity, Teamwork, and Initiative”. They have been
major elements in our business philosophy since the
beginning of our business back in 1980. We believe
that people can bring us continuous innovation and
improved productivity. Our employees, in particular,
are whom we profoundly respect as they are the
backbone supporting the sustainable growth of Ka
Shui.

Labour Rights

Ka Shui cares about children’s health, safety,
education, and development; therefore, we strictly
prohibit child labour, who is under the age of 16, in
all our subsidiaries. Under the “Prohibition of Child
Labour and Remedy Guidelines”, staff’s identification
documents are checked before employment and
regular investigations are conducted to ensure no
underaged persons are hired. If any child labour is
found, remedy procedures will be carried out by
sending the children back home, followed by
providing medical health check and sufficient living
expenses until they are 16 years old. We aim to offer
as much assistance as possible and alleviate
potential negative impacts on them. For juvenile
workers who are under the age of 18, they are not
allowed to engage in certain positions with potential
safety and health hazards. We will register with the
local labour authority and provide physical health
examinations before on board. In addition, we also
ensure our staff work consensually, and are free from
any forced labour in the workplace.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not
aware of any material non-compliance with laws and
regulations relating to preventing child and forced
labour.
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Favourable Workplace

Talents are the foundation of a successful business
and we strive to maintain a motivated workplace for
all. We have a set of comprehensive policies in place
to provide guidance for management of our human
resources.

QOur people are remunerated with competitive wages,
fixed working hours, comprehensive insurance
coverage and mandatory provident fund, which are in
line with national regulations and also other
standards including SA8000 Social Accountability
International Standard and RBA code of conduct. All
employees are entitled to paid leaves such as
statutory holidays, annual leave, maternity leave,
paternity leave, sick leave, work injury leave, marriage
leave and funeral leave (subject to local regulations).
At Ka Shui, deduction of wages as a means of
disciplinary action is prohibited. Instead, we provide
incentives to employees with outstanding
achievements and performances to recognise their
efforts throughout the year.

The Group strives to create a working environment
that is free from discrimination. We grant fair and
equal employment opportunities based on
qualifications, experiences and abilities. In respect of
recruitment, promotion, performance evaluation, and
salary management, we will not take unfair and
differentiated treatment due to differences on the
ground of nationality, age, gender, sexual orientation,
gender identity, ethnicity, disability, pregnancy,
political inclination, and/or other forms of difference
that is unrelated to the job requirements. Female
employees will not be dismissed and their wages will
not be deducted due to pregnancy, maternity,
breastfeeding etc.

We respect diversity and freedom of association, and
we prohibit any forms of discrimination, harassment,
and victimisation at the workplace. At the same time,
to build unity and mutual trust, we operate an
anonymous whistle-blowing system to encourage the
reporting of misconduct while respecting the privacy
of the whistle-blowers.
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During the Reporting Period, the Group was not
aware of any material non-compliance with laws and
regulations relating to compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest
periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-
discrimination, and other benefits and welfare in
Hong Kong and Mainland China.

Training & Development

Ka Shui always views the talents of our employees
as the most valuable asset. To let our staff grow
professionally and develop their career path, we
provide a series of internal training programmes and
encourage them to participate in external training
opportunities.

We have set up the Ka Shui Enterprise Academy in
2005, which is responsible to leverage learning
opportunities and promote corporate culture
exchange. The academy collects the training
demands from each department and formulates an
annual training plan for individual employees
accordingly. Through lectures and relationship-
building activities, our people at different job
positions and levels have chances to nurture our rich
corporate culture and develop in both personal and
professional domains. Training programmes covering
various topics based on industry-wide standard RBA
requirements, covering topics related to
reinforcement of labour rights, ethics, as well as
OHS, so that these concepts can be internalised and
contribute to building of unity and mutual trust within
the Group. Training records are well kept and
feedbacks are collected for continuous improvement
and future planning. We also establish an
apprenticeship programme to train and develop our
technical personnel, as well as to enhance the sense
of belonging among employees. Experienced mentors
are assigned to help and guide new employees in
terms of job skills, professional ethics, and personal
development. During the Reporting Period, we have
organised training sessions such as:

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited Z & BB ZERER A

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BRig - H2RERKRE(R)

RmEHRRE  AEEY T HNBEFMEKNE
REFBRTFEARENGEENER  BE
REF - TERHE  KERHE  FERE -
ZHMN  REBAEREMENREILE B
ERMERBMR

sl Sk R

R EENTERREENEE -RT
FETEXREYHRELBEBE  RM
RE—ZRIIAEZIEE - LB
EANERIE DI -

AR ST RAFRIEREERR 2
rEENMABEEHE  RECEIERR
SR ESHFANFIFER . SENET
HIERENFEEITE - BEBERE
YRERNES  RATRBAZMRRNNE
THERESESEENEEXE  YEME
ARBERHEER - RMORHERITER
EEERERBETAEERZEIIF S
WMEBBME T AERN Bk RBER
FHEZ2EZEIE  ERFHMTERA
b YEEARERNELEERER
BMZ2REFEICE - WREDEEE
DA 5 48 Bt AR AR B - MR L
SREEINFIIRERIMAR - WHER
BENRBER - FTESE TR  BXE
BREAZRITEHELREENEME
BIMIEE - RIEHRE - RS RS EE
FIERE - 0

o



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Bz - H2RERHRE ()

[ S

Seminar on Die Casting & Precision Machining

Technology
R85 MBIl TEAT RS I

We have a clear career advancement system to
provide employees guidance on pursuing their career
paths. Employees with excellent performance will be
rewarded the “Excellent Staff Award” based on their
efforts on showing responsible attitude, maintaining
high level of ethics, getting along well in a team or
demonstrating other outstanding abilities. In addition,
an annual appraisal is conducted to assess
employees’ performances and ethical behaviours in a
fair and objective manner. It is also an opportunity
for employees to reflect their difficulties and opinions
to the management so as to achieve a two-way
communication.

Occupational Health and Safety

Ka Shui takes full responsibility to provide a healthy
and safe workplace for our employees by protecting
them from work-related injuries or accidents. We
organise physical examination for all employees every
year and for newly recruited staff. Comprehensive
OHS training is also provided to enrich their
knowledge on occupational health and the correct
ways of using protective equipment such as safety
glasses and protective gloves. Based on employees’
job natures and needs, we provide extra training to
ensure their complete acknowledgment to all the
potential hazards and dangers in workplace, and are
competent to safely perform duties.

Corporate Supervision Management Program
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As a company with manufacturing processes such as
metal alloys die casting and plastic injection
moulding, there are potential work-related hazards.
We have therefore set up our health and safety
policy and a safety management system to identify,
control and evaluate these OHS risk to ensure
employees are following the safety procedures.
Measures to safeguard our employees from
accidents and occupational diseases include daily
safety inspection at production sites by our safety
team, periodic machinery safety inspection and
hygiene control. Each department is assessed
against its safe production performance every month.
If any hazard is identified, timely action plans will be
developed to mitigate the corresponding risks.

In spite of the above preventive measures, first-aiders
are stationed in our production sites as required in
related legal provisions for any immediate first-aid
support. An emergency procure plan is also
developed to cope with emergency situations. Drills
for fire and other emergency situations are
periodically conducted and reviewed to increase
staff’'s safety awareness and response efficiency in
case of emergency events.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not
aware of any material non-compliance with laws and
regulations relating to providing a safe working
environment and protecting employees from
occupational hazards in Hong Kong and Mainland
China.

Employee Relationships

We strive to maintain a harmonious working
environment and good relationship with our
employees by setting up a multi-channel
communication system for staff, union and the
management. We are committed to maintaining an
open dialogue among employees, the union and the
management, and to improving employee satisfaction
by means of meetings, forums, sports competitions
and other activities. Employees are also encouraged
to express their opinions or complaints via the
internal opinion box. We promise to respect their
feedback and to handle them timely and impartially.
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A wide range of recreational and relationship building BMRRSERERETRAERNEE - N
activities are organised to strengthen the bonding mgES 2 MMBE RIFSMMERER
among our employee and build a sense of belonging VEBER REHENSALEREY
to the Group among the employees, such as ERNTELE FHFRSRPUEES
monthly birthday parties, basketball, singing FE -RMBEIIIESHREHRESE  BE
competitions, Chinese New Year gathering and Mid- £ - BERERPIENS - IREIEEA
Autumn Lantern Carnival during the Reporting Period. & o

We also provide physical fithness rooms, library,
internet rooms, and badminton courts in workplaces
to foster a work-life balance.

Parent-Child Factory Visit Tug of War Competition

BFIm2E BOR LB

# ARELAHS N

=N

Mid-Autumn Festival Party Basketball Competition
R EEE FEIRLE
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Dancing Class Monthly Birthday Party
TEIE AR SR4EBRRE
C. ENVIRONMENT C. ®E
Protecting Our Environment REIRIE

Group Environmental Policy B RIEB%

Observe all applicable national and local laws and regulations strictly

BB E TR A EARBE R Kt 77 8RR KOER

Establish, implement and strengthen our environmental management system, as well as setting of goals for
environmental achievements

BY BHIINBREEEER  THERREKRERF

Introduce cleaner production in steps; striving to conserve resource uses and reduce waste or effluent
BLWITIRREE  SHBHERNER @ B EYHEEK

Provide training and education to promote the idea of sustainable development across the supply chain
REFIERHE  AEREHERSHAIFEZRENER

Provide channels for relevant interested parties and the public to get access to our environmental
performance tracking

RBERNET R ARATRHEEIIRE G BURIEH RE

As a leading green and high-tech manufacturer, we EAE—RELNZCERRRBEER &K
try our best to move us towards a greener MBNERGEEE - ?ﬁﬁa%ﬂi%lfﬁ
production. We have a Group Environmental Policy in RE - BRI EEE - A&
place outlining our management approaches to BAOEIRIBENEE IE?E&%‘:EZ%ISO
minimise environmental impacts, supported by the 14001 : 2015IREEIEE A RABHI N -

ISO 14001:2015 certified Environmental Management
System at Ka Fung and Ka Yi.
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To ensure full compliance with applicable laws and
regulations, internal and external inspections by third
parties on wastewater discharges, air emissions,
hazardous waste disposals and noise generation are
conducted at regular intervals. We have also tracked
and publicly disclosed our consumption and emission
data to better understand and manage our
environmental footprints. All emissions and
discharges are only carried out with valid permits
and licenses.

We also actively promote the practice of
environmental protection in daily office and factory
operation, develop the environmental awareness of
our employees by training and encourage them to
participate in different green activities.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not
aware of any material non-compliance with laws and
regulations relating to air and greenhouse gas
emissions, discharges into water and land,
generation of waste and use of resources in Hong
Kong and Mainland China.
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RS #HEHERRE (R

With limited amount of resources and increasing EHRB)SAMERREN - BEERBR -
environmental pollution issues on our planet, Ka Shui Hit - ZwmmEERRLERERTNS
places high importance on reducing the Z-RMARMOERPREMBNELE
environmental footprints of our products to create BE BAZREMNEDRE KA
values for our customers and other stakeholders. By BREIEE INFE  Bf7xD 7T HRIERM
taking our product’s life-cycle into consideration and BEADSREENBELEDBEHRTRER
using the “cradle to grave” approach, we fully HIRBENEE - AmBEHSTHERER
understand the impacts of our products on the TIaE AR E 5 IR H IR 52 -

environment during its entire life process, from raw
material input to final disposal. Findings from the life-
cycle analysis enable us to control our footprint in an
integrated manner.

Life-cycle analysis 4 &5 B 81 5 47

o Raw material A1 %}
e Energy 82JR

e Product
Pr\OC?‘SS e Semi-product &L
B2

o Effluents &7k
o Exhausts &R
o Waste 1)
 Noise B2 &
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Apart from implementing green measures at our
offices and factories, we proactively explore
opportunities to achieve our environmental goals. We
have set the following environmental targets and
corresponding actions:

Target BiZE Action 1T}

100% compliance — Keep a clear waste generation record
rate of hazardous of each department

waste disposal FEPI AR EYE £
BREYREEEZR — Appoint qualified waste collectors for
100% disposal

BEAEBRNEYMRERAEEEY
— Maintain an archive to track disposal

statistics

TRIFHE 22 LABR BE RE W) B B Y St BUR
— Evaluate the compliance status

SR ERBER

Zero complaint — Comply with all applicable laws and
TF regulations
BRI A AR HER NOER
— Raise employees’ awareness
— Supervise environmental controls
closely
T B BRI
— Improve the environment of the
production sites and the surrounding
neighbourhoods
RELESWREERE

Reduce aluminium — Improve production processes to
and zinc alloy scrap enhance resource efficiency
WAt RENE SE BEAERRE  ReEBERME

# — Source high-quality slag powder to

increase recycle rate
ERAREEMIUREREKE

Bz - H2RERHRE ()

BREBRLAZERIREMKEEEIN - A
LEGERRERREAZOHRE - HME
HEATREBZERAENTH

Achievement %

During the Reporting Period, there was
no instance of non-compliance relating to
hazardous waste disposal. Procedures for
achieving 100% compliance rate will be
detailed in the section “Waste
Management”.

REE M SRS FEERENRESR
BT ERIBEN o EE100% & 18 K2
FEiEREYEIR ] —Enaf #Rai A o

During the Reporting Period, there was
no compliant received relating to
environmental issues.

RIS HE - SERE EREREAREN
RERBER -

The scrap production ratios have been
reduced to 2.95% and 4.5% for zinc alloy
and aluminium alloy respectively at Ka Yi.
ERH #HeehEEeNERES IR
1K %2.95% % 4.5% °
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
B HEHEARE (H)

Waste Management BRI ER

Reduce ~
Recycle

Bl

We strive to reduce our waste generation and
disposal by two key actions: reduce and recycle.
Reduction is the most preferable approach in our
holistic waste management. We reduce raw and
office  material consumption by improving the
efficiency of the production process in order to cut
raw material inputs and minimise product failures,
which in turn lower the amount of waste generated.

When waste is unavoidably generated, we exercise
waste separation, aligned with the 7S Management,
to separate waste into three categories: valuable
waste, hazardous waste and non-hazardous waste.
They are separated into dedicated bins with clear
labels. This is a vital step in to isolate hazardous
waste which requires different approaches to handle,
and to scavenge the valuable waste for recycling. In
the meantime, Ka Shui Enterprise Academy organises
training sessions on waste separation, from time to
time, to ensure employees are familiar with the
practices. For valuable waste such as metals from
the leftover in production, we will recycle back into
the production cycle. For waste which inevitably ends
up with being disposed of, which is the least
preferable option, will only be handled by qualified
collectors.

It is our duty to ensure that hazardous waste, such
as waste oil residue, paint, sludge, chemicals and
their containers, is disposed of in strict compliance
with relevant laws and regulations. Hazardous waste
is sorted, collected, labelled, stored and transported
with special cares. For effective hazardous waste
management, each department logs its generation
records monthly, as a basis for continuous
improvement planning.

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited &= ¥ B ZERER AT
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A contingency plan is also established to cope with
emergency circumstances such as chemical leakage,
fire, explosion or other accidents that may occur
when handling hazardous waste. The plan provides
our staff with timely and appropriate response
actions to minimise the potential environmental and
health impacts incurred under such circumstances.

During the Reporting Period, the Group disposed of
a total of 58.62 tonnes of non-hazardous waste and
394.06 tonnes of hazardous waste:

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Bz - H2RERHRE ()

AT E AT S AR IR ek
%HT—I ?"*EE’]?&%‘ /E, Zzuﬂﬁq—uuj /)%‘
NI BIFREMER - ZtBIARMNE
ITRHERKIEZENEETE  UEER

EEABBEL TELNEERERREY
g o

E§$W21394n0621W§¥§%§5_¥W5

Waste Generation EE¥IE & 2018

Hazardous waste HEREY
Chemical waste {22 gE £}
Other E A

Total 45t

Intensity (tonnes/million pieces of product) 3& & (A

Non-hazardous waste #EEEE
Domestic waste & i EE 1)

Total 45t

Intensity (tonnes/million pieces of product) 3& & (A

Air & Greenhouse Gas Emissions

During our manufacturing processes such as
moulding and scrapping, a certain amount of air
pollutants is emitted. To reduce our emissions, we
have installed filtering devices for our major air
pollutants, such as volatile organic compound and
particulate matter (“PM”), along our production chain
to ensure the emission level complies with the laws
and regulations. Third parties are appointed to
conduct annual air quality testing to ensure air
pollutants are controlled properly and the level of
emissions does not exceed the threshold limit.

390.52
3.54

394.06

W, SEBHESR) 0.43

58.62

58.62

WS REBHER) 0.06

RIS REEREHER
ERMNEEBRE (MERRER)PEE
E-EHENZERSEY - BT RLEEN
E RMERERMNEERALKRTBR
BEARERMOEZEZRSRY - 118
BHEARIAaRENY ([BRY]) - A
FERBEDUKF T B ARMER - RIAEH
FZNEFETERREER  AERZE
RS RYEE IR R BUKFE BB R
8-
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BRig - H2RERKRE(R)

To control exhausts from motor vehicles, all of our
company vehicles are maintained regularly and
inspected annually. The engines should be turned off
when they are idling. During the Reporting Period,
the Group’s total air emissions generated by
company vehicles and stationary fuel usage were as
follows:

BTEGAENRBENR  ARRMEN
EROEHRREREFET RRE - B
PR ERE o NG - AEEm
N ATE LM BREBYERE RE TR
BEREMT

Air Emission & EEHER 2018

Nitrogen oxides (kg) @& (A7)
Sulphur oxides (kg) Br&b% (A T)
PM (kg) R Y (A FT)

We are committed to reducing our greenhouse gas
(“GHG”) emissions in order to alleviate the growing
challenges of climate change. We have conducted a
GHG emission assessment’ to understand the
Group’s emission pattern, which is mainly contributed
by use of purchased electricity, fuels and refrigerant.
During the Reporting Period, the Group’s total GHG
emission was 45,299.20 tCO,e. The increase is
mainly attributed to higher electricity consumption in
our expanding businesses.

252.62
2.27
21.51

BMBAOBLBAERE(CEERE] OB
W DAE R SRR B 25 ER IS A PR o A
BHEITEEREHNR G WTHRAEE
MEEMER  WFEFEZANFEFRERENS
7 BB REVSHE - RERE B - AEE/
158 = REEHE N E B45,299.20 A M — &1L
REE - ZIEBEEARBEMTEIRAD
EBHRHEHEEL I -

Greenhouse Gas Emission j& = ®EEHER

Scope 1 — Direct GHG emissions? (tCO,g)
HE— — EEAZEREBH(AE_StiEE)

Scope 2 — Energy indirect GHG emissions® (tCO,e)
HE_— - EREEREREFIC(AE_|StRES

Total GHG emissions (tCO,e)
REREHNER (AE_SF{LHREE)

GHG Intensity (tCO,e/million pieces of product)
BERBHRAE (AM-_StREE SESHER)
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3,853.91

41,445.29

45,299.20

49.83



Note:

1. The carbon assessment is conducted based on the “How to
prepare an ESG Report? Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance
on Environmental KPIs” published by HKEx and international
standards such as ISO 14064 and GHG Protocol.

2. Scope 1 represents direct GHG emissions generated by the
use of refrigerant and fuels for stationary and mobile
sources.

3. Scope 2 represents energy indirect GHG emissions generated

by the use of electricity.

Use of Resources

Reducing our consumption of these resources not
only conserves the environment, but also results in
operation cost reduction and creates values to our
stakeholders. To effectively and wisely manage our
use of resources, we have set up the Energy and
Resource Consumption Control Procedure, which
clearly outlines the responsibility of each department
on managing each resource type, including electricity,
fuel, water, paper, raw materials, and packaging
materials. Our production facilities are installed with
metres at specified locations to record our resources
uses, and hence we can understand our
consumption patterns and identify areas for further
improvement.

Energy Consumption

The major types of energy resource consumed are
purchased electricity, natural gas for boilers and
gasoline for vehicles. We are committed to utilising
energy efficiently and thus reducing corresponding
greenhouse gas emissions by monitoring our energy
usage.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
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Apart from monitoring, we always look for feasible
opportunities to lower our energy usage. By
practising green procurement, we tend to purchase
machinery and electrical appliances which are
certified with energy-saving labels. In the office
context, we hope to promote energy saving
behaviour among staff by reminding them to switch
off electrical equipment, such as computers, printers,
and shredders when not in use. Reminders are also
placed next to power switches to remind staff
members of avoiding unnecessary consumption of
electricity while meeting the operation needs of
lighting and air conditioning. For vehicle fuel, we
conduct regular maintenance and annual inspection
to ensure vehicles are always operating in good
condition to increase fuel efficiency.

During the Reporting Period, the Group consumed a
total of 47,818,650.83 kWh of electricity, 1,635,354
m? of natural gas, 81,584.46 litres of gasoline,
61,326.42 litres of diesel oil and 45,378 m® of
liquefied petroleum gas (“‘LPG”). Their respective
intensities are as follows:

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BRig - H2RERKRE(R)

BT ERIZAN - Bt —EESKATH
HeRERMANERERE -HETHRE
REMRE RAERBEASHOERER
MR MERS - EMAETREE - RAIFE
HBRR BEEIETEAKUEMRASE
REWER - FTEIEMPFARYE - B 2ERS
2REMBEEMLR - RPEFRRESZER
REERR - REER TR T MENENIHRE
EEHMRATH  RAEHETEZENSE
Bl - UERE#SENRIFRE - RS
KA R o

REmEBHE AEBERET & &
47,818,650.83 T EL/\Kr & 7 ~ 1,635,354
FAKRKIRR ~ 81,584.46F )4 * 61,326.42
Fr4E7H K 45,3783 KB AR R - E 4
BASRE T ¢

Energy Consumption HEiRH$E 2018

Electricity (kWh) & 77 (T FL /M)

47,818,650.83

Intensity (kWh/million pieces of product) 38 (T E/\6, S H & HER) 52,603.36
Natural gas (m3) XAR (3277 K) 1,635,354.00
Intensity (m*/million pieces of product) 8 E (I 5K, BEHEHER) 1,799.09
Gasoline (litres) 7558 (F+) 81,584.46
Intensity (litres/million pieces of product) & fE (F+,/ & & & (4 & ) 89.75
Diesel oil (litres) 4¢Jd (F+) 61,326.42
Intensity (litres/million pieces of product) 38 f& (/& B & 4HE ) 67.47
LPG (m®) &b AmE (325 K) 45,378.00
Intensity (m3/million pieces of product) & (M2 5K SHBHEM) 49.92
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Water Resources

To reduce our water consumption, we have
implemented an effective water management through
efficient water use and water recycling. Measures
carried out include monitoring our water use,
inspecting water pipes regularly to prevent water
leakage, and promoting water-saving behaviours to all
staff. In case of water leakage, maintenance will be
conducted timely to avoid wastage. For domestic
water use, “water saving” signs are placed near
water taps to remind our staff to treasure water
resources. In addition, we strive to reuse and recycle
our water resources as much as possible such that
employees are encouraged to propose water-saving
initiatives. During the Reporting Period, the Group
consumed a total of 346,133.59 m® of water and
there was no issue in sourcing water.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Bz - H2RERHRE ()

KER
BIERKER BB ERE R AKM
KEBREEMBRNKEIR  EHEHRE
FEBERNAKE - EHBREKEURLE
FRK - URAAEE IS EHKITA -
ERKBAT BEETEREBSIUE
BEEORE o« ERAKAE - FRAITEKEESEH
WAL ETEFA K] R  IRERMMNE
TE2EKER - LA - BB HBEERM
EUKER BB MbEEE TIREE
KR RSB AEBEBHXERE
346,133.5937 77 KH)7K » HAPEEE/K A E
W B IR o

Water Use FHK 2018

Freshwater (m?) 7K (3277 2K)

346,133.59

Intensity (m®million pieces of product) & (L H K, B H & HESR) 380.79

Our major effluents include industrial and domestic
wastewater from canteen, toilet and septic tanks. To
ensure the discharge of all effluents complies with
relevant laws and regulations, as well as the
requirements of local environmental protection
authorities, we pose strict controls on our production
sites’ discharge activities by following the Water
Pollution Control Procedure. Chemicals and oils are
also kept away from the inlet of water pipes to
prevent contamination of water bodies.

BPNEZEKRBIERY AT R
T EREKREEREK - BIERFTAREX
BB A HBEERE AR U RE IR
REERE K - BPIRRIS IR B AKS 24T
BERUEERSOBEMUEEETES -t
20 KR EREEKE AD - AR HK

o

i
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To further lower our amount of wastewater, we made
efforts on water reclamation by installing a
wastewater treatment system at Ka Shui Technology.
Industrial wastewater is processed and 60% of the
treated water is successfully recycled in our
manufacturing processes. The sludge remained is
then collected and disposed of by a qualified
recycler. During the Reporting Period, the total
quantity of wastewater discharged was 54,641.00
m3.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
BRig - H2RERKRE(R)

BE—DRLEKE BUEERMER
HIEKEBRG - BAONRKEEFIA -
T ¥REKEBIRIE - M60% LS 5 I8 K 7K 7E
BPMEEBEPRIEU - FERESTR
MEBERBNEKRERESE - RREH
Ml - BEKE R AR 2 R 54,641.0037 75 K o

Effluent 57k 2018

Wastewater (m?3) BE7K (37 75 K) 54,641.00
Intensity (m3/million pieces of product) 38f& (25K, /S HBHEMR) 60.11

Use of Materials

We aim to use sustainable materials which bring less
harm to the environment and human throughout the
entire product life cycle; therefore, we strictly manage
the raw materials of our products in compliance with
international standards, including RoHS and REACH
to govern the use of the regulated hazardous
substances and chemicals in production. In addition,
we also follow the Forest Stewardship Council
standard as requested by our clients to ensure the
wooden material are sourced from sustainable
origins.

E  Ka Shui International Holdings Limited 2 & Bl BX 2 IR G BR A &)

HEFA
BFMNBEREMNAAFERROME - &
EEEMBMRLOHRERABNESE
At - HPIRBEBEREE (BREREEY
BRHIREmEM  FhH - RERR
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TEEERAEME RMeBm o st - T
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
Bz - H2RERHRE ()

The major types of raw materials consumed are BEMERNEEREEFLER  £4%  8EE
plastic, magnesium alloy, aluminium alloy, and zinc NG HMRIDEMEHEREMH A
alloy. Our approaches to reduce raw material usage BIERAEERE - BLEEBRE  MEES
include upgrading production equipment, optimising REEI - B ERENER - UWRETLE
the production process, offering training to our ERRBEFT IR REBERDTEBE
employees, recycling scrapped products, and better oo RIRE IR - AEEHEIEFE11,613.91
strategic planning to control and minimise the NMERMEL - FFEWT

occurrence of unqualified products. During the
Reporting Period, the Group consumed a total of
11,618.91 tonnes of raw materials and details are as

follows:
Plastic (tonnes) 8B (AHE) 7,998.92
Magnesium alloy (tonnes) 4 & (A1) 2,616.25
Aluminum alloy (tonnes) 84 % (A HE) 612.11
Zinc alloy (tonnes) #¥ & 4% (A NE) 386.63
Total (tonnes) 485t (A W) 11,613.91
Intensity (tonnes/million pieces of product) /& (AWM & @ B HER) 12.78
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

I%iﬁ X ?‘iééﬁirg $&¢(ll\ﬁ)

As a responsible producer, packaging materials are
also used for product containment and protection in
order to deliver excellent products to our customers.
Major types of packaging materials used are carton
box, plastic, sticker and wood. The amount of
packaging materials consumed is summarised as
follows:

ERBEANEER REMBBHEAR
EMmEES RIR#E LxmiiszﬁH’\J%?)Exﬁ
EFEMNER FHANBEMBEZZEEESR
MAR - BB B RO o BEMELERER
BT -

Packaging Material 835 #f #} 2018

Carton box (tonnes) 4%48 (AME) 141.80
Plastic (tonnes) 82 (/A NE) 6.03
Sticker (tonnes) BE 4% (A HE) 5.98
Other (tonnes) E th (A1) 20.76
Wood (tonnes) A#F (A1) 75.05

Total (tonnes) 45t (2AHE) 249.62

Intensity (tonnes/million pieces of product) 38 & (AWE B H B ES) 0.27

Ka Shui advocates the concept of a “paperless
office” and thus we greatly encourage our employees
to make full use of e-communication channels such
as the intranet to use paper as least as possible.
During the Reporting Period, a total of 12.78 tonnes
of paper was consumed.

Noise Generation

Noise is inevitably generated from vehicles and
machinery such as generators and compressors at
our manufacturing facilities. In order to reduce the
noise level and nuisance to the surroundings, high-
efficient machinery are opted to reduce the operation
time and regular maintenances are performed to
ensure the equipment is in good condition. We are
also committed to strictly adhering noise level
standards according to the relevant laws and
regulations.
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Beyond Ka Shui

As a pioneer in magnesium, aluminium and zinc
alloys die casting, we also actively engage in R&D of
sustainable technology to create green values for our
stakeholders. We aim to foster innovation on the use
of materials, products and technologies, leading to
higher energy efficiency for the end products, higher
resource utilisation efficiency in the manufacturing
process, and less impact to the environment.

Ka Shui’'s Advanced Out Mold Release (“AOMR”)
technology has been awarded the gold medal in the
46th Geneva International Exhibition. AOMR, combing
two advanced surface finishing technologies, is a
green technology to replace passivation and spray
painting. It shares the benefits of the both
technologies: () high production output and cost
effective; (i) good performance and highly protective
coating; and (i) low carbon emission and less VOCs
emission.

Apart from instiling the sense of environmental
responsibility within the Group, we strive to step
forward to exert influences on and raise awareness of
other parties associated with Ka Shui. Related
parties, including transportation providers, waste
collectors, raw material suppliers, chemical suppliers,
and canteen operators, are all required to comply
with our “Environmental Requirements of Related
Party”. For example, raw material suppliers are
required to use recyclable packaging as far as
possible and waste collectors are required to obtain
relevant permits and qualifications. In case of
violation, Ka Shui will follow the issues seriously and
may terminate the business relationship if there are
no improvements.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

RS #HEHERRE (R

During the Reporting Period, Ka Shui’s efforts on
advocating innovative technology have been
recognised by the following awards:

DPIOME

eneva

SALON
INTERNATIONAL
DES INVENTIONS

GENEVE

B e b 11

demromme ok M Bmpea (eIt o e
[

o0 —
|

| - e

PR BIRT - 3T ARS8 A B T E
AT RIEM R :

G

v s ERSR A
“innavaires Techrology”
Ahempsivesni Award
218
A TR )
M St Indemabonal
Hedings L¥d

Gold medal in the 46th Geneva International Exhibition Hong Kong Innovative Technology Achievement Award

EEORANEERERAR LRESR

Asia International Innovative Invention Award

3 M B B 3 A
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Certificate of Recognition for “Continuous Support of
Bose New Product Development and Bose Cost

Reduction Goals”
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
Bz - H2RERHRE ()

D. COMMUNITY D. #&

Engaging Our Community EEE M E

Ka Shui strives to be a socially responsible ERBIRNAEHEEARNEE - BB
enterprise. By making use of our competency and FAEMEOE N RME  BMHEEER
knowledge, we aims to make positive contributions BMESTRIENTEELEERER - &
to the community where we live and work in. We MEIRONZHF A SFERNKFIER
focus on () supporting local education projects for (M 7 B ERE S IERERE R AT
youth development; (i) collaborating with local B R(i)2HERBRET -

charities on poverty and disaster relief initiatives; and
(i) participating in environmental conservation

activities.

We always encourage our staff to involve in BM—ExBEI2ELRRY  #uE
community services by establishing a volunteer team FEEER - BELHEE - 2hFsEdL
which arranges activities continuously. Ka Shui has @5 BIRRERE M5 EFER
supported various areas of community activities KEREE - RREHE - AEB2EUAT
including environmental protection, education, youth £I15:

development, poverty relief and charity. During the
Reporting Period, the Group participated in the
following events:

Guangzhou City Construction College’s Visit to Traffic Safety Campaign
Ka Shui Technology Park RBLEIEE

BN EREE 2B R XE

Annual Report 2018 Z & — \F F 3




ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

RS #HEHERRE (R
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We donated to the “Outstanding Industrial Attachment Scholarship” and “Design Education Fund” of VTC

respectively in 2018.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

29th Floor, Lee Garden Two, 28 Yun Ping Road
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
KA SHUI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Ka Shui International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 103 to 263,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2018, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2018, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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RSM Hong Kong
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

B % B R ()

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. The key audit matters we identified are:

1. Fair value measurement of land

2. Allowance for inventories

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited %= % BB IE R B R AT
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter

B BAD R ()

BREZEIE (&)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

FAREZEIR BMNESEPHAREZSEMEELR
1. Fair value measurement of land Our procedures in relation to the fair value
TH R ERGE measurement of land included:

Refer to notes 5(e), 7 and 19 to the consolidated
financial statements.

2R M MEMTES(E) - 7X19 -

The Group measures its land at fair value using a
market approach. The valuation is a level 3 fair
value measurement as it involves adjustments to
market comparables to reflect the particular
characteristics of the land, including location and
plot sizes, which are based on unobservable
inputs that are subjective. The value of land is
sensitive to these inputs. In order to determine
an appropriate fair value of the land, the Group
appointed an independent professional valuer to
perform the assessment.

ESEERAMSE RATEAEE LM - HE
RE-ERTVEFE ARERIRRTHAE
R ERETHAE ARt ARELE &
T RE KR/ - BTN 28R
Bt - Ty BEUYZSE2HBR - REEZ LT
WEREATE  ESEZREBEVEXMGERME
fTa1E o

BB LA FEMNEETHRTF B

—  Evaluation of the independent external valuer’s
competence, capabilities and objectivity;
AHEEREMEER e HREBIT

—  Assessing the valuation methodologies used and
the appropriateness of the key assumptions and
comparables;
AEFTAMESEAREERRRAZLRER

=] L .
EERRE

— Checking the accuracy of the observable inputs;
RETBR2RRTRRE

— Reviewing the appropriateness of those
adjustments which were based on unobservable
inputs; and
R R T BR2HMERBREERE &

Mok

— Assessing the adequacy of the disclosures in
respect of the fair value of land.
e A FEMERERT S -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
BN % B R ()

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued) EREXSIE(E)

Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

FAREZEIR BMNESEPHAREZSEMEELR

2. Allowance for inventories Our procedures in relation to the allowance for
FEEE inventories included:

B EEREETNREF B

Refer to notes 5(a) and 24 to the consolidated
financial statements.

20476 M MR M RE5(@) K24 -

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
identifies obsolete and slow-moving inventory
items that are not probable for use in future
production or to be sold out. It also identifies any
other inventories with net realisable value below
cost. The identification is based on forecasts of
customers’ future orders and future market
conditions, and involves subjective estimation.
The allowance has impact on the carrying
amount of inventories and the profit or loss for
the year.

RImER ESEHNTAIRERBIERKREES
BB RFEHTEER o RIFHEAI A #IRF
BEERKANEFMEMETS - ZHEAIEABAE
PAREKITERRKASZRARER WP REEH
st - FABBHFANTEREEREREGRE -

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the Other Information.
The Other Information comprises all of the information
included in the 2018 annual report of the Company other
than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does

not cover the Other Information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited Z BRI RER AT

Reviewing inventory ageing analysis to identify
obsolete or slow-moving inventories;

BREFEREDN - #BRBRIPHFS

Testing whether the net realisable value of major
items of inventories exceeded cost by reviewing
sales after the reporting date; and
EHBREEPRNOEE AR TEFTEANA
B REEDERNKAN &

Reviewing the appropriateness of the allowance
for inventories by reference to information about
subsequent sales or usage.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

OTHER INFORMATION (Continued)

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the Other
Information and, in doing so, consider whether the Other
Information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this Other
Information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

B BAD R ()

Hi&E* ()

ERMEZSEEVBERRE - RANEEEME
HEFR  EU@iES  ZREMENEE B
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ERER  HEUFEERERRAL -
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EERAERBELGHMRERMNCERY
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

BN % B R ()

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

° |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited Z BRI RER AT
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’'s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’'s
report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on
the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

B BAD R ()
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

BN % B R ()

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Ms. Liu Fung Yi.

RSM Hong Kong
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
26 March 2019

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited %= % BB IE R B R AT
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
GEESER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T—/\F+_A=+—ALLFE

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
B #t FEiT FETT
Revenue [ ON 8 1,852,329 1,738,738
Cost of sales $HE AR (1,404,530) (1,428,969)
Gross profit EF 447,799 309,769
Other income E Uk A 9 20,900 16,670
Impairment losses on trade B 5 W IE R EEE
receivables (132) (764)
Reversals of impairment losses on H 5 W IR R EEE
trade receivables [B] $& 764 —
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEAX (33,586) (30,465)
General and administrative expenses — & & 17 XX (269,644) (271,500)
Other operating expenses and income L fth & & 5 57 &2 Uk A 11 (26,881) (21,288)
Profit from operations BERF 139,220 2,422
Finance costs B A A 12 (13,167) (16,115)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HENB AW 37(b) - 96,011
Share of losses of associates BoeE Nl EiE 22 (146) (325)
Profit before tax B Bt A itz F) 125,907 81,993
Income tax expense FriS 8 f 2 13 (12,505) (45,862)
Profit for the year FE R 14 113,402 36,131
Attributable to: AT AL RE(G LS :
Owners of the Company AKAaERFEA 113,556 33,998
Non-controlling interests eI = (154) 2,133
113,402 36,131
HK Cents HK Cents
=3/l JBEA
Earnings per share BREF 18
Basic BN 12.71 3.80
Diluted B 12.71 3.80
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GEEBERHEMEEKER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-_ZT—\F+-_A=+—RALLFE

2018 2017
—B-N\E —E—LF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FETT FET
Profit for the year FE R 113,402 36,131
Other comprehensive income: Hih 2w 2s -
Items that will not be reclassified BT EE DR B
to profit or loss: ZHEA
Surplus on revaluation of leasehold land & T EEEMH 2 &8k 20,858 15,017
Income tax on items that will not be TeENM EEEE 2IAE
reclassified to profit or loss ZFTE (6,647) (1,576)
14,211 13,441
Items that may be reclassified B 7R Em s HE -

to profit or loss:

Exchange differences on translating foreign & GINEFEE L 2 E K

operations =% (40,578) 48,061
Share of translation reserve of associates # 7 Hi & N & FE X & (25) (16)
Exchange differences reclassified to profit ZE#F D fEE B 2 HEEI

or loss on disposal of a foreign XBENER

operation - 6,118

(40,603) 54,163
Other comprehensive income FRkHEEGCEZERZE

for the year, net of tax (26,392) 67,604
Total comprehensive income FRE2EWEEEE

for the year 87,010 103,735
Attributable to: LT AT RE(G#ED :

Owners of the Company AKRARIERFEEA 88,118 97,081

Non-controlling interests FEPE AR HE = (1,108) 6,654

87,010 103,735
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
wEMBRR R

At 31 December 2018 R=ZZE—\F+=-_A=+—8H

2018 2017
—E—)\F —E—+F
Note HK$’000 HK$’'000
k3 F#EIT FET
Non-current assets EREEE
Property, plant and equipment VI - WS e 19 766,155 770,592
Club membership gMEs 21 718 718
Investments in associates REtENF 28 E 22 9,931 1,336
Financial assets at FVTOCI/Available- & A F{Ezt AE 2 HE
for-sale financial assets Wz &REE,
AL ESHEE 23 - —
Deposits paid for acquisition of TEREEYMSE  HER
property, plant and equipment REzEe 8,287 10,569
Deferred tax assets RERIIAE B 32 215 310
785,306 783,525
Current assets REEE
Inventories 7E 24 244,755 252,406
Right of return assets RO & E 2R 111 -
Trade receivables B 5 U GRIA 25 376,785 415,392
Contract assets EHNEE 26 14,670 —
Prepayments, deposits and other FENFRIE  EZe &
receivables H b fE U FR I8 40,842 69,545
Due from associates JE U Bt 5 A B SR8 22 108 —
Current tax assets BVHATR B & = 995 —
Restricted bank balances BRHIRITIER 27 5,517 3,234
Bank and cash balances R1T MR € Ak 27 250,606 243,994
934,389 984,571
Current liabilities REEE
Trade payables B 5 RN RIE 28 264,032 367,394
Deposits received Bz e - 12,615
Contract liabilities EHaE 26 1,500 —
Refund liabilities RYBE 241 =
Other payables and accruals H A RIB R
EEtER 28 95,284 83,069
Due to associates JE {-F Bt 2 A B FRIE 22 3,257 617
Due to a related company P& BB A Al SR IA 29 - 4,465
Bank borrowings HRAT B X 30 242,854 326,611
Current tax liabilities BNEfFEIE & 1& 44,118 31,253
651,286 826,024
Net current assets mENEEFE 283,103 158,547
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)
mE BRI R GE)

At 31 December 2018 R=ZZE—/\F+=-_A=+—8

2018 2017

=t S S

Note HK$°000 HK$'000

Kt F#EITT FEIT

Total assets less current liabilities & E2{ERRE & & 1,068,409 942,072
Non-current liabilities ERHEE

Bank borrowings RITERK 30 81,848 41,667

Deferred tax liabilities FIERIBEE 32 28,701 33,762

110,549 75,429

NET ASSETS BEFE 957,860 866,643
Capital and reserves BERRHEE

Share capital P& A 33 89,376 89,376

Reserves el 35 850,881 761,946

Equity attributable to owners of  AA T #EEIEH AEWS

the Company s 940,257 851,322
Non-controlling interests FEdE R HELS 17,603 15,321
TOTAL EQUITY AR 957,860 866,643
Approved by the Board of Directors on 26 March 2019 LEEEN _T—NF=A -+ AHE A
and are signed on its behalf by: NTESEREEE

Lee Yuen Fat Wong Wing Chuen
FEE Bk
Director Director

EE EE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

GERBEDR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-—T—\F+_-_A=+—HILEE

Attributable to owners of the Company

FATRERTABEERD

Foreign

currency Share Land
Share Share  Retained  Capital  Merger translation option  Statutory revaluation
capital premium earnings  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve

1HEfR
Bx EftiaR RERH A5RG Eitfit RRERSE 1]
HKS000 HKS000  HKS000  HKSO0D HKS000  HKS'000 HK$000

- -

FVTOCI
reserve
BATE
ARR

Total

a8
8000

Non-
controlling
interests

Fithin
HK$000

Total
equity

At 1 January 2017 RZF-t£-A-A 89,376 204650 311511 8,701 (9,931)  (47,4%) 10 25,152 181,206 - 763179 8328 771,607
Total comprehensive income ERRERELE

for the year - - 33,998 - - 49,642 - - 13441 - 97,081 6,654 103,735
Reclassification of reserve upon ~ IHERBAREEHR

disposal of a subsidiary PHRE = - 0 = = = - (5004 (67,131) = = = =
2016 final cvidend paid SHZF-~ExEBRE

(note 17) (Wi17) - - Bl - - - - - - - By - 8%
Capital contribution from REEERERZETRA

non-controling interests - - - - - - - - - - - 339 339
Changes n equiy for the year ~ EMEZEE - - 117,85 = - 460 - (5094 (53,690 - 814 6,993 9,136
At 31 December 2017 and RZZ—tE+ZA=1-H

1 January 2018 R=5-\&-A-H 89,376 204,650 428,796 8,701 (9,931) 2,146 10 58 121,516 - 851,322 15,321 866,643
Adjustments on inital IRERz A%

application of
— HKFRS 9 ot 3) - BANBREER

S9% (Hrits) - - 86 - - - - - - (8309 o7 - 7
~ HKFRS 15 (note §) - BARBREER
Z16% (Hit3) - - 988 - - - - - - - 985 - 9882

Restated balance at RZE-\§-A-R

1 January 2018 Bl 89,376 204650 446854 8701  (0931) 2,146 10 5 127516 (8303) 861077 15321 876,398
Total comprehensive income FM2ENEAE

for the year - - 11355 - - (39,649) - - 142 - 8118 (1,108 87,010
2017 final dividend paid KBt ERBRE

(hote 17) (Wit17) - - (893 - - - - - - - (893 - (893
Lapse of share options KHzBhE - - 10 - - - (10) - - - - - -
Capital contribution from REFBRERZEREA

non-controling interests - - - - - - - - - - - 3,390 3,390
Changes in equy for the year £ ToER2E - - 104628 - - (3849) (10 - - 79180 2282 81462
At 31 December 2018 RZE-\E+ZA=1-B 89,376 204,650 551,482 8,701 (9,931)  (37,503) - 58 141727 (8,303) 940,257 17,603 957,860
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
GERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE=-T—/\F+=-_A=+—HILFE

2018 2017
—B-N\E —E—LF
Note HK$°000 HK$'000

Hiit FETT T

NET CASH GENERATED FROM BEELEMBREFAE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 37(a) 177,193 24,282

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING BEFEIZIREEE

ACTIVITIES
Disposal of a subsidiary HENB A A 37(b) - 219,814
Interest received SR @ PS) 300 354
Proceeds from disposals of LEWE - R REE

property, plant and equipment 5,719 494
Purchase of property, plant and IBEWE BB NEE

equipment (100,439) (60,020)
Repayment to a former subsidiary for EERMBATIEE

purchase of property, plant and Y2 - Hees Rk

equipment other than land and (b R FEEEYBR 51 )

buildings - (22,810)
Increase in amount due to JE 1 BE B X B ZRIE 15 A0

a related company - 2,042
Deposit paid for the acquisition of SEANE/E I Y8

property, plant and equipment ZE & (1,706) (10,245)
Investment in an associate REEE R a2 "E (10,916) —

Net cash (used in)/generated from %&ES (FiiE)

investing activities FBZIREFHE (107,042) 129,629
CASH FLOWS FROM REEEHZRERE

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividend paid B A (8,938) (8,938)
Capital contribution from REJFEERERSE 2 BN

non-controlling interest BTA 3,390 339
Net short term bank loans repaid EBREHETERFER (25,596) (184,221)
Repaid from/(advance to) associates H ‘& A GIEE

(B1F) }E 11 (530)

Repayment of long term bank loans 1a;a§HﬁfEfT§%k (137,562) (150,190)
Long term bank loans raised B RHSRITER 120,000 134,603
Net cash used in financing AEEHREZ

activities R&EFHE (48,695) (208,937)

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited = & B B2 = i G R A &




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
GERERER(A)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T—/\F+_A=+—ALLFE

2018 2017
—E—N\EF — Tt
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
g3 FET FET
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) HE&RERREIER
IN CASH AND CASH W (R iR
EQUIVALENTS 21,456 (55,026)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS MR—H—HMEEER
AT 1 JANUARY ZEELEH 243,994 296,008
Effect of foreign exchange rate fEREHZE
changes (14,844) 3,012

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ®+—-—A=+—H#

AT 31 DECEMBER HE&ERZERBREE£ER 250,606 243,994
ANALYSIS OF CASH AND HE&ERZERBRELIER

CASH EQUIVALENTS i
Bank and cash balances $R17 &R IR & 4k 27 250,606 243,994
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R a B R M A

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T— \F+-_A=+—ALFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman
Islands as an exempted company with limited liability
under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.
The address of its registered office is Clifton House,
75 Fort Street, P.O. Box 1350 GT, George Town,
Grand Cayman, Cayman lIslands. The address of its
principal place of business is Room A, 29/F., Tower
B, Billion Centre, 1 Wang Kwong Road, Kowloon
Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong. The Company’s shares
are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company.
The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out
in note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, as at
31 December 2018, Precisefull Limited, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”), is the
ultimate parent and Mr. LEE Yuen Fat (“Mr. Lee”) is
the ultimate controlling party of the Company.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”). HKFRSs comprise Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (‘HKFRS”); Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS”); and
Interpretations. These consolidated financial
statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”) and with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622).
Significant accounting policies adopted by the Group
are disclosed below.

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited Z BRI RER AT

AT EHE
RAARBEREHES AR EZEREHST
ML AEZHREERARE - HFMiltEE
I 25 A Clifton House, 75 Fort Street, P.O.
Box 1350 GT, George Town, Grand
Cayman, Cayman lIslands o H = & & 2t
HARBBNENEERLE-—FRERPL
BEE2OHEAE c KRR 2RO EBBHAER
SHERAR ([BFT]) ER EmM -

ARAR—HKREZERRF - M B R A
M EEXBERAGE P RARM 20

KRR EERE RZE—NF+=A
=+—H - Precisefull Limited (— &R % B
BREEEMKLZAR]) AREKF AT
TRBEE([FRE]) BARR 2 &KE
f&7 o

i ) B 2%
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BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of the
Group. Note 3 provides information on any changes
in accounting policies resulting from initial application
of these developments to the extent that they are
relevant to the Group for the current and prior
accounting periods reflected in these consolidated
financial statements.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

(@) Application of new and revised
HKFRSs

The HKICPA has issued a number of new and
revised HKFRSs that are first effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018. Of these, the following developments are
relevant to the Group’s consolidated financial
statements:

(i)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments; and

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers.

(it

The Group has not applied any new standard
or interpretation that is not yet effective for the
current accounting period.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B R R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-_T—/\F+ A=+ —ALFE

IR (F)
EESHMACEBEMETRAEELAS
FTHIME R E R T RIBERM 2T &
KIERIBAMBREED - EREREH
BREFRB AR ERZSHAER
EREAMBEMRMI B2 AFEERBESH
METBER 2 EREBF RN RE MR
FMEES -

KRR REBT R BMBREE
2l

FER I REETERUBRE
A

FEE NS EMZIEHA MR
ERTMEEMBREEN  BER=
E-N\F—HA-BHZERFERNFE
HIRAX - P TINERMEAE
B E M BRR AR

(a)

BEMBHREENESRSHT
2R

TR BHREERF165- KA
EPAKHUA -

(i

AEBARBEBEAHRESI S5
MR AR ERI L RRE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B B A% R R MY ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE=-T—/\F+=-_A=+—HILFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

(@) Application of new and revised HKFRSs
(Continued)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
HKFRS 9 replaces the provisions of HKAS 39
that relate to the recognition, classification and
measurement of financial assets and financial
liabilities, derecognition of financial instruments,
impairment of financial assets and hedge
accounting.

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 in
accordance with the transition provisions set
out in HKFRS 9, i.e. applied the classification
and measurement requirements retrospectively
to instruments that have not been
derecognised as at 1 January 2018 (date of
initial application) and has not applied the
requirements to instruments that have already
been derecognised as at 1 January 2018. The
difference between carrying amounts as at 31
December 2017 and the carrying amounts as
at 1 January 2018 are recognised in the
opening retained earnings and other
components of equity, without restating
comparative information.

Accordingly, certain comparative information
may not be comparable as comparative
information was prepared under HKAS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement.

The adoption of HKFRS 9 resulted in the

following changes to the Group’s accounting
policies.

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited %= % BB IE R B R AT

IR RS T B B R R
Al (%)

(a)

FER ] REETEEMBRE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

(a)

Application of new and revised HKFRSs
(Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
(Continued)

()

(i)

Classification

From 1 January 2018, the Group
classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

° those to be measured subsequently
at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”)
or at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL”); and

° those to be measured at amortised
cost.

The classification depends on the
Group’s business model for managing the
financial assets and the contractual terms
of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains
and losses will either be recorded in profit
or loss or other comprehensive income.
For investments in equity instruments that
are not held for trading, this will depend
on whether the Group has made an
irrevocable election at the time of initial
recognition to account for the equity
investment at FVTOCI.

Measurement

The Group reclassifies debt investments
when and only when its business model
for managing those assets changes.

e B R R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T—/\F+_A=+—ALLFE

SR RS T B B B R
Al ()

W=

(a) FERAMII REEITEFEMBRE
#8I(8])
EEMBREENFEREMTE
(48)

() ol
BE-ZE—\F—H—HE K
SEBHESREESIEATY
STEER

.« EEEATEHARMD
B2 ok 1 2 (B A
HREHEE R

s RERBHKAFES -

FZOBEANAREEE S R
BEZEBERARBRGREZ

BRI

IEAFEFEZEEMS -
W REBBRBEABRIEA
EEKEAN UL FFEEER
ZEATEREME » HHE
RRAEERE LR VIAHE
SRR A T AT B A8 S A AR
BEBEAFEFAREMEER
AR e

i) =
ARER @R ERE
MR RABEE - RIEK
SAEENHA -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B B A% R R MY ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE=-T—/\F+=-_A=+—HILFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

(@) Application of new and revised HKFRSs

(Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

(Continued)

(i) Measurement (Continued)
At initial recognition, the Group measures
a financial asset at its fair value plus, in
the case of a financial asset not at
FVTPL, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at FVTPL are
expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded
derivatives are considered in their entirety
when determining whether their cash
flows are solely payment of principal and
interest.

Subsequent measurement of debt
instruments depends on the Group’s
business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the
asset. There are three measurement
categories into which the Group classifies
its debt instruments:

o Amortised cost: Assets that are held
for collection of contractual cash
flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of
principal and interest are measured
at amortised cost. Interest income
from these financial assets is
included in other income using the
effective interest rate method. Any
gain or loss arising on
derecognition is recognised directly
in profit or loss and presented in
other gains/(losses), together with
foreign exchange gains and losses.
Impairment losses are presented as
separate line item in the statement
of profit or loss.

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited %= % BB IE R B R AT

IR RS T B B R R
Al (%)

(a) FEAMIREETEEUBRE
A8 (4])
EEUBREEAEREMTIR
(48)

(i) FZE (&)

RAEERE - AEBIZEARQ
FES M (IR A FEFA
BRECeRmEEMS) WES
BMEEEEREZR KRG
EEMEE -RAFENAR
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TREENRERESEER
AeRMNEREAR REEE
EATAE T ABIREREE -

BHETAZERFEIRRA
SEERBEEZEHEARE
EZRERERNE AEEZ
—EFF BRI REEBTA:

o HHAA: BEBRERAEH
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BE -RETMEEZRN
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

(@) Application of new and revised HKFRSs
(Continued)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
(Continued)
(i) Measurement (Continued)

o FVTOCI: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows
and for selling the financial assets,
where the assets’ cash flows
represent solely payments of
principal and interest, are measured
at FVTOCI. Movements in the
carrying amount are taken through
other comprehensive income,
except for the recognition of
impairment gains or losses, interest
revenue and foreign exchange gains
and losses which are recognised in
profit or loss. When the financial
asset is derecognised, the
cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified from equity to
profit or loss and recognised in
other gains/(losses). Interest income
from these financial assets is
included in other income using the
effective interest rate method.
Foreign exchange gains and losses
are presented in other gains/
(losses) and impairment losses are
presented as separate line item in
the statement of profit or loss.

o FVTPL: Assets that do not meet the
criteria for amortised cost or
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL. A
gain or loss on a debt investment
that is subsequently measured at
FVTPL is recognised in profit or loss
and presented net within other
gains/(losses) in the period in which
it arises.

%v’ﬁéﬂﬂ%iﬁ%%ﬁﬁi(nﬁ)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-_T—/\F+ A=+ —ALFE

3. HMFIIRKETEEBUBREE
A (£8)

(a)

FER M REETEEUBRE

A8 (4])

EHEMBREEINSEREMT A
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(i) = (&)

. BEAFEFAREMEEK
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B B R B A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-_ZT—\F+-_A=+—RALLFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

(a)

Application of new and revised HKFRSs
(Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
(Continued)

(i)

(i)

Measurement (Continued)

The Group subsequently measures all
equity investments at fair value. Where the
Group’s management has elected to
present fair value gains and losses on
equity investments in other comprehensive
income, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and
losses to profit or loss following the
derecognition of the investment. Dividends
from such investments continue to be
recognised in profit or loss as other
income when the Group’s right to receive
payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial
assets at FVTPL are recognised in other
gains/(losses) in the statement of profit or
loss as applicable. Impairment losses
(and reversal of impairment losses) on
equity investments measured at FVTOCI
are not reported separately from other
changes in fair value.

Impairment

From 1 January 2018, the Group
assesses on a forward-looking basis the
expected credit losses (“ECLs”)
associated with its debt instruments
carried at amortised cost and FVTOCI.
The impairment methodology applied
depends on whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk.

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited = & B B2 = i G R A &
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B R R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T—/\F+_A=+—ALLFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG .
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

(a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs

(Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

(Continued)

(i) Impairment (Continueq)
HKFRS 9 requires the Group to recognise
and measure either a 12-month ECL or a
lifetime ECL, depending on the asset and
the facts and circumstances.

For trade receivables, the Group applies
the simplified approach permitted by
HKFRS 9, which requires expected
lifetime losses to be recognised from
initial recognition of the receivables.

The following table summarises the
impact on the Group’s opening retained
earnings as at 1 January 2018:

SR RS T B B B R
Al ()

(a) FERFMITREEITEEMBRE
B (&)
FEMBREREAFOREMTR
(4%8)

(i) JBL1E (4&)
BB HREEREIRERA
SEREEENFERBERE
REFE1I2EANEHREER
RIRETAHEERK -

B ZERUERENE  ARE
ERBEBWBHREERFIRA
AR @ETTE - BERREBY
4R BE SR B U R IR E T R TR AR AR
FEK-

TERBAHAREER =T N
F-A-—BZHORERNZ

B/ 48R .
-2

Note HK$’000
Bt FET
Reclassification of non-trading equity B At HEEH DB EIR
investment from available-for-sale ANEEFAE M 2K
to financial assets at FVTOCI BEMEEZIEE
IR & @) 8,303
Increase in impairment losses for B 5 & E e W IE BB
trade and other receivables 51838 N b) 97)
Related tax 1B RATIE -
Adjustment to retained earnings BE-Z—N\&—H—H
from adoption of HKFRS 9 RNE B R EZER
on 1 January 2018 FOREMRBBAF 2 AR 8,206
Attributable to: LA AT FE(G R
Owners of the Company RAvIERTFBA 8,206
Non-controlling interest FEVERR A 2 =
8,206
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B B R B A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE=-T—/\F+=-_A=+—HILFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 3. BT RZBETEBMBREE
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING B (&)
STANDARDS (Continued)

(a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs (a) FERAHITIREEITEEUBRE
(Continued) #A| (4&)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments EEMBRELENSESREMTIR
(Continued) (48)
(i) Impairment (Continued) (i) JRAE (%)
The following table and the accompanying TREATEEMH EEERSE
notes below explain the original ER—Z-N\F-—H-BzZ%
measurement categories under HKAS 39 HemMEELAASSENSE
and the new measurement categories MIBE T 2 R EHAI R ES
under HKFRS 9 for each class of the B 55 R E QSR IA T~ 2 st
Group’s financial assets as at 1 January =55 -
2018.
Carrying Carrying
Classification Classification amount under amount under
Financial assets Note  under HKAS 39 under HKFRS 9 HKAS 39 HKFRS 9
FEMBRE FEGIHER FEMBREE
EHTrERISEs0%  EHIFR $305RETZ AISRIETZ
SREE Wi HETZHE BTZHE fREE fREE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Equity investments @  Available-for-sale FVTOCI — —
RERE Ak & BRATEFAE
2 E Mz
Trade receivables (b) Loans and receivables Amortised cost 415,392 415,295
B EKTIE ERRERZRE B
Deposits and other ) Loans and receivables  Amortised cost
receivables 17,948 17,948
Be REMWERRIE ERREKRE BHEA
Restricted bank () Loans and receivables  Amortised cost
balances 3,234 3,234
BB BIRITER ERREKRE B R
Bank and cash balances () Loans and receivables  Amortised cost 243,994 243,994
RITRA S8R ERRERE BHpAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B R R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T—/\F+_A=+—ALLFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG .
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

(a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs (a)
(Continued)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
(Continued)
(i) Impairment (Continueq)
The impact of these changes on the

SR RS T B B B R
Al ()

FEFR# T REETEEUBRE

1| (48)

EEMBREENFEREMTE

(48)

(i) L 1E (&)
ZEEEAEE RS I VE

Group’s equity is as follows: R
Effect on Effect on
FVTOCI retained
reserve earnings
HiBAEETA
Hit 2 mEr 2 HRERA
HEzHE e
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B it FET FET
Opening balance HA ) 4% g4k
— HKAS 39 — BB g5
AR 395 = 428,796
Reclassification of BRIt EENHE
non-trading equity ZERATEA
investments from Hih 22
available-for-sale to TRIBEECIEER
financial assets at iz # &
FVTOCH @ (8,303) 8,303
Opening balance HA 1 4E B
— HKFRS 9 — BEUBRE
ZRIFE 95 (8,303) 437,099

The effect on retained earnings is before
adjustment for impairment (see below).

The measurement categories for all
financial liabilites remain the same. The
carrying amounts for all financial liabilities
at 1 January 2018 have not been
impacted by the initial application.

HRBEEBNNEEEHERER
A (RT3 e

ESRABNERMNGR
BR -R-_FT—-—N\F—H—H
FEsRABNEREERER
NIRRT E -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B B A% R R MY ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-_ZT—\F+-_A=+—RALLFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

(a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs
(Continued)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
(Continued)
(i) Impairment (Continueq)
Note:

(a) These equity investments represent
investments that the Group intends to hold for
the long term for strategic purposes. The
Group elected to present in other
comprehensive income changes in the fair
value of these investments because these
investments are held as long-term strategic
investments. As a result, the fully impaired
investment was reclassified from available-for-
sale financial assets to financial assets at
FVTOCI and impairment losses of
HK$8,303,000 were reclassified from retained
earnings to the FVTOCI reserve on 1 January
2018. Unlike HKAS 39, the accumulated
impairment losses related to these
investments will never be reclassified to profit
or loss.

(b) Trade and other receivables that were
classified as loans and receivables under
HKAS 39 are now classified at amortised
cost. An increase of approximately
HK$97,000 in the allowance for impairment of
the trade receivables was recognised in
opening retained earnings at 1 January 2018
on transition to HKFRS 9.

(c) These financial assets were classified as loans
and receivables under HKAS 39 are now
classified at amortised cost. No further
impairment allowance was recognised in
opening accumulated losses at 1 January
2018 on transition to HKFRS 9.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A B R I ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T—/\F+_A=+—ALLFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 3. ERMAFITRZBETEBMBERELE
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING Al (&)
STANDARDS (Continued)

(a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs (a) FERAMEIREETEEMBRE
(Continued) A (&)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments EEMBREENFEREMTE
(Continued) (48)
(i) Impairment (Continued) (i) L 1E (&)

For assets in scope of the HKFRS 9
impairment model, impairment losses are
generally expected to increase and
become more volatile. The Group has
determined that the application of HKFRS
9 impairment model requirements at 1
January 2018 results in an additional
impairment allowance as follows:

BBV BHREERFFRE
EABBEANEEMS - — K
EHREBESEMBEEEE
TRE - AEBCEEN_-F
—N\F-A—-HEAEEMK
WEEAEIFRMEEAZRE
BHEIINRERBEOT

HK$'000
FE T

Specific impairment allowance at
31 December 2017 under HKAS 39

BEETEREIREAT 2
—E—+HF+A=+—HZ

5 E R B 764
Additional impairment recognised at RZZE-N\F—-—HA—BH®RZ
1 January 2018 on trade and B 5 R E A EUGRIE RSN E
other receivables 97
Impairment allowance at 1 January 2018 &S #EREER|EISRIE N 2
under HKFRS 9 —E-NF—HA—Hz
VERIERE R ] 861
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B B R B A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BHEZE T —\F+_A=+—HILFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

(@) Application of new and revised HKFRSs
(Continued)
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers
HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive
framework for determining whether, how much
and when revenue is recognised. It replaced
HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction
Contracts and related interpretations.

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 retrospectively
with the cumulative effect of initially applying this
standard recognised at the date of initial
application, 1 January 2018. Any difference at the
date of initial application is recognised in the
opening retained earnings (or other components
of equity, as appropriate) and comparative
information has not been restated. Furthermore,
in accordance with the transition provisions in
HKFRS 15, the Group has elected to apply the
standard retrospectively only to contracts that are
not completed at 1 January 2018. Accordingly,
certain comparative information may not be
comparable as comparative information was
prepared under HKAS 18 Revenue.

The Group manufactures and sells a range of
zinc, magnesium and aluminium alloy die
casting, plastic injection products and
components which are original equipment
manufacturing products (“OEM Products”)
which have no alternative use to the Group.
The Group also sells lighting products and
home appliances which have alternative use to
the Group. In prior reporting periods, revenue
from the sales of OEM Products, lighting
products and home appliances is recognised
when the risk and rewards of ownership have
been passed to the customers.

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited %= % BB IE R B R AT

IR RS T B B R R
Al (%)

(a)

FEAMT REETEEMBRE
R (8|)
FRMBREEAEIREERE
EOL: DL DN

BB HmELERNE15RAEE WA
R ZORMKHERREY THEAE
R-HBRBAEGTERFI18HRIK
A BREEFEREIREBESOR
HERE -

AEBEPEHEAEBH K REE
AIF165% YRR A - F
—N\E—A—RERMBEM LIRS
AN R R E - ARG ER B H
MERIRNBIRE B (KE b
sHAERE D (RER)) AR -
HERERAKREED - bH - REF
76 W 5 ¥R 2 Rl S 165k &Y 3B R 1 15
X AREDEBEHRN _FT-N\F
—A—BARTEUNEKERIEHER
IR Bt - AR EEBRE R TIIR
BEEBSTENF18HRBARS - &
ETHBREMRBREELER -

AEBERERHE— R - iR
EeEE BRIBEMRTIM
ZEEMRRREEEER ([RRE
SUEEm])  HASBEYEERA
® o AREMHERAER R ER
B ZEERHASERERAE -
RBERESHE  EMAEIER R
CHEBBREEFE - AIEAKXAR
REREEM  BAERRRESRE
HEZWA -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

(a)

Application of new and revised HKFRSs
(Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Continued)

The adoption of HKFRS 15 resulted in the
following changes to the Group’s accounting
policies on revenue recognition.

()

Revenue from sales of OEM Products
Under HKFRS 15, OEM Products that
have no alternative use to the Group and
when the Group has enforceable right to
payment from the customers for
performance completed to date, the
Group recognises revenue as the
performance obligation satisfied over time
in accordance with the input method, by
reference to the costs incurred to date
over the total expected costs. Otherwise,
sales are recognised when control of the
products has been transferred, being
when the products have been delivered
to the designated location prescribed by
the customer.

For revenue recognised over time,
payment is not due from the customer
until the delivery has been made and
therefore a contract asset is recognised
over the period in which the goods are
produced, representing the entity’s right
to consideration for the goods produced
to date. A receivable is recognised when
the goods are delivered as this is the
point in time that the consideration is
unconditional because only the passage
of time is required before the payment is
due.

e B R R R ()
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B B A% R R MY ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-_ZT—\F+-_A=+—RALLFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 3.

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

(@) Application of new and revised HKFRSs

(Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with

Customers (Continued)

(i) Revenue from sales of non-OEM Products
(lighting products and home appliances)
Under HKFRS 15, sales of non-OEM
Products are recognsied when control of
the products has been transferred, being
when the products are delivered to the
customers. Delivery occurs when the
products have been shipped to the specific
location, the risks of obsolescence and loss
have been transferred to the customers,
and either customer has accepted the
products in accordance with the sales
contracts, the acceptance provisions have
lapsed, or the Group has objective
evidence that all criteria for acceptance
have been satisfied.

The following table summarises the impact on
the Group’s opening retained earnings as at 1
January 2018 is as follows:

RANFTR] KRBT BB M B RS L
8l (48)

(a) FERHFTREBITEEMBRE
R (8|)
BEEMBREENE1KBERE

WA (48)
()  FFRRFEREEm (FEHE K
KiEes ) 2 HENRA

REZEAVBHRSE EAF15
B RRRBREEMZIHE
REmEZEH#EDEBBE (AEM
RNEFPR) #R - /NENRT
BRATEE  ERCREER
EHE  REBRRIBRZEA
BREEBERF TFERE
HEANEXEM RWARTE
EXRY AAKEERHIR
ERACNTAMABRYIRE

TRANR-_ZE-N\F-A—HHLE
EMHMREBANNFENBLE

Note HK$’000
i3 FET
Sales of OEM Products with an SHE BB 1] & b1 T RGRE T
enforceable right to payment 2R RS E (i) 2,713
Sales of moulds which were billed HEREMR —HELERE 2
together with products HE (i) 9,278
Effect on deferred tax liabilities BEERIEEEZRE v) (2,139)
Adjustment to retained earnings BE-Z—\F—H—B&RHM
from adoption of HKFRS 15 BB B mE 2R E 155
on 1 January 2018 HIRB AR 2 HE 9,852
Attributable to: AT AL EMMER:
Owners of the Company RARERFAA 9,852
Non-controlling interest FEE IS HE 2 =
9,852
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
%éﬂﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁ#ﬁ(nﬁ)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-_T—/\F+ A=+ —ALFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG .
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

RMFI RG] BBV EREE
A (£8)

(a)

Application of new and revised HKFRSs
(Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Continued)

The following tables summarise the estimated
impact of adoption of HKFRS 15 on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2018, by
comparing the amounts reported under HKFRS
15 in these consolidated financial statements
with estimates of the hypothetical amounts that
would have been recognised under HKAS 18 if
the superseded standard had continued to
apply to 2018 instead of HKFRS 15. These
tables show only those line items impacted by
the adoption of HKFRS 15:

(a) FERAMIREETEFEUBRE
1| (48)
EHMBBREERNE1558KEERE
HBgUE N (48)

LTI REBEAEEEHREZ_Z
—N\FE+-_A=1+—HILFELREE
HIRRPIRIBEE B SRS ERE15
FREMESE - BWET SR
F185% (MIEB AU B REERFE15
FIEBER—_Z— \FER  ARE
%8 B AR A ZE Bl AN R HE SR MO R AR
HEFEBEL LR - MBMERAS
BYHREERNB15RE A EEZS
B SRRMEI R E - 2FIRER
N E|BRINE B TSRS 2R B 1555
MEMIER -

Amounts Hypothetical Estimated
reported in amounts impact of
accordance under adoption of

with HKFRS 15 HKASs 18 HKFRS15
REBEEMH RMEEME
HEE REFEST SR
B15%MBE EHIE 185 %155
&8 ZRELE ALY 7
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i3 FAT FAT FAT
As at 31 December 2018 RZ=F—-/\&
+-HA=+-H
Consolidated statement of  ZABBMAR
financial position (extract) (Hs%)
Contract assets ANEE 0 & (i) 14,670 = 14,670
Inventories & 0 (i) & (i) 244,755 253,010 (8,255)
Right of return assets REIEE 2T () & (i) 111 = 111
Deposits received BlEe 0 & (iv) = 1,500 (1,500)
Contract liabilities BHEE ()& (iv) 1,500 = 1,500
Refund liabilities RHEE () & (i) 241 = 241
Deferred tax liabilities EEHEARE (0 (i & v 28,701 27,782 969
Retained earnings RE&F 551,482 545,633 5,849
Foreign currency translation ~ E X 5
reserve (37,503) (36,970) (533)
For the year ended BE-S-0\%
31 December 2018 +ZA=+-HLEE
Consolidated statement of A EHRR (%)
profit or loss (extract)
Revenue WA 1,852,329 1,859,157 (6,828)
Cost of sales HENA (1,404,530) (1,406,112) 1,582
Income tax FEH (12,505) (13,601) 1,096
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B B R B A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T— \F+-_A=+—ALFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

(a)

Application of new and revised HKFRSs
(Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Continued)

Note:
(i)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

The differences arise as a result of the changes in
accounting policies described above.

Certain moulds sold to customers are ordered
together with the products, and the costs of moulds
are recovered through the price of the products. The
Group determined that the moulds are separate
performance obligations in a sales contract.
Transaction price is allocated to the moulds, resulting
in earlier recognition of the revenue for the moulds
when the control of them has been passed to the
customers before the delivery of products.

Certain contracts with customers enable the Group to
have enforceable right to payment for OEM Products
manufactured to date if the customers terminate the
contracts. Revenue for these contracts should be
recognised over time as the Group satisfies the
performance obligations during manufacturing,
resulting in earlier recognition of revenue.

When the customer has a right to return the product
within a given period, the Group is obliged to refund
the purchase price. The Group previously did not
recognise a provision for refunds which was
measured on a net basis at the margin on the sale
due to immateriality at 31 December 2017.

Under HKFRS 15, a refund liability for the expected
refunds to customers is recognised as adjustments
to revenue amounting to approximately HK$241,000
at 31 December 2018 in refund liabilities. At the
same time, the Group has a right to recover the
product from the customer where the customer
exercises his right of return and recognises an asset
and a corresponding adjustment to profit or loss
amounting to approximately HK$241,000 at 31
December 2018.

Contract liabilities for billing in advance recognised in
relation to sales of goods were previously presented
as “Deposits received”. The amount was reclassified
as “Contract liabilities” so that the terminology is
consistent with HKFRS 15.

The recognition of revenue from the sales of moulds
and the sales of OEM Products over time as
described in note (i) above resulted in temporary
differences in the contract assets. Deferred tax
liabilities were recognised accordingly.

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited = & B B2 = i G R A &
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

(b)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective

The Group has not early applied new and
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective for the financial year beginning
1 January 2018. These new and revised
HKFRSs include the following which may be
relevant to the Group.

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on

or after

HKFRS 16 Leases 1 January 2019
The Group is in the process of making an
assessment of what the impact of these
amendments and new standards is expected to
be in the period of initial application. So far the
Group has identified some aspects of HKFRS
16 which may have a significant impact on the
consolidated financial statements. Further
details of the expected impacts are discussed
below. While the assessment has been
substantially completed for HKFRS 16, the
actual impacts upon the initial adoption of the
standards may differ as the assessment
completed to date is based on the information
currently available to the Group, and further
impacts may be identified before the standards
are initially applied in the Group’s interim
financial report for the six months ending 30
June 2019. The Group may also change its
accounting policy elections, including the
transition options, until the standards are
initially applied in that interim financial report.

e B R R R ()
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B B R B A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BHEZE T —\F+_A=+—HILFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (Continued)
HKFRS 16 Leases
HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases and
related interpretations. The new standard
introduces a single accounting model for
lessees. For lessees, the distinction between
operating and finance leases is removed and
lessees will recognise right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities for all leases (with optional
exemptions for short-term leases and leases of
low value assets). HKFRS 16 carries forward
the accounting requirements for lessors in
HKAS 17 substantially unchanged. Lessors will
therefore continue to classify leases as
operating or financing leases.

HKFRS 16 is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2019. The
Group intends to apply the simplified transition
approach and will not restate comparative
amounts for the year prior to first adoption.

Based on a preliminary assessment, the standard
will affect primarily the accounting for the Group’s
operating leases. The Group’s leases of office
premises, factories, warehouses, staff quarters
and office equipment are currently classified as
operating leases and the lease payments are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term. Under HKFRS 16, the Group
may need to recognise and measure a liability at
the present value of the future minimum lease
payments and recognise a corresponding right-of-
use asset for these leases. The interest expense
on the lease liability and depreciation on the right-
of-use asset will be recognised in profit or loss.
The Group’s assets and liabilities will increase and
the timing of expense recognition will also be
impacted as a result.
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ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

As disclosed in note 38, the Group’s future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases for its office premises, factories,
warehouses, staff quarters and office equipment
amounted to approximately HK$16,403,000 as
at 31 December 2018. These leases are
expected to be recognised as lease liabilities,
with corresponding right-of-use assets, once
HKFRS 16 is adopted. The amounts will be
adjusted for the effects of discounting and the
transition reliefs available to the Group.

(b)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, unless
mentioned otherwise in the accounting policies below
(e.g. leasehold land that are measured at fair value).

The preparation of consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies.
The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in note 5.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B B R B A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE=-T—/\F+=-_A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
The significant accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below.

(a)

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries made up to 31 December.
Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group
has control. The Group controls an entity when
it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. The Group has power over an
entity when the Group has existing rights that
give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities, i.e. activities that significantly affect
the entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers
its potential voting rights as well as potential
voting rights held by other parties. A potential
voting right is considered only if the holder has
the practical ability to exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They
are de-consolidated from the date the control
ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a
subsidiary that results in a loss of control
represents the difference between (i) the fair
value of the consideration of the sale plus the
fair value of any investment retained in that
subsidiary and (i) the Company’s share of the
net assets of that subsidiary plus any remaining
goodwill and any accumulated foreign currency
translation reserve relating to that subsidiary.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

Consolidation (Continued)

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised
profits are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries
have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in
subsidiaries not attributable, directly or
indirectly, to the Company. Non-controlling
interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position and consolidated
statement of changes in equity within equity.
Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and
consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income as an allocation of
profit or loss and total comprehensive income
for the year between the non-controlling
shareholders and owners of the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling shareholders even if this results in
the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in
a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of
control are accounted for as equity transactions
(i.e. transactions with owners in their capacity as
owners). The carrying amounts of the controlling
and non-controlling interests are adjusted to
reflect the changes in their relative interests in
the subsidiary. Any difference between the
amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised
directly in equity and attributed to the owners of
the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B B R B A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T— \F+-_A=+—ALFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Consolidation (Continued)

In the Company’s statement of financial
position, investments in subsidiaries are stated
at cost less impairment losses, unless the
investment is classified as held for sale (or
included in a disposal group that is classified
as held for sale).

Business combination and goodwill
The acquisition method is used to account for
the acquisition of a subsidiary in a business
combination. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at the
acquisition-date fair value of the assets given,
equity instruments issued, liabilities incurred
and any contingent consideration. Acquisition-
related costs are recognised as expenses in the
periods in which the costs are incurred and the
services are received. ldentifiable assets and
liabilities of the subsidiary in the acquisition are
measured at their acquisition-date fair values.

The excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred over the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable assets
and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. Any
excess of the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
over the sum of the consideration transferred is
recognised in consolidated profit or loss as a
gain on bargain purchase which is attributed to
the Group.

In a business combination achieved in stages,
the previously held equity interest in the
subsidiary is remeasured at its acquisition-date
fair value and the resulting gain or loss is
recognised in consolidated profit or loss. The fair
value is added to the sum of the consideration
transferred in a business combination to
calculate the goodwiill.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b)

Business combination and goodwill
(Continued)

The non-controlling interests in the subsidiary
are initially measured at the non-controlling
shareholders’ proportionate share of the net fair
value of the subsidiary’s identifiable assets and
liabilities at the acquisition date.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at
cost less accumulated impairment losses. For
the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is allocated
to each of the cash-generating units (“CGUSs”)
or groups of CGUs that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination. Each
unit or group of units to which the goodwill is
allocated represents the lowest level within the
Group at which the goodwill is monitored for
internal management purposes. Goodwill
impairment reviews are undertaken annually or
more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate a potential impairment.
The carrying value of the CGU containing the
goodwill is compared to its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of value in use
and the fair value less costs of disposal. Any
impairment is recognised immediately as an
expense and is not subsequently reversed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B B R B A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE=-T—/\F+=-_A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c)

Associates

Associates are entities over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of an entity but is not
control or joint control over those policies. The
existence and effect of potential voting rights
that are currently exercisable or convertible,
including potential voting rights held by other
entities, are considered when assessing whether
the Group has significant influence. In assessing
whether a potential voting right contributes to
significant influence, the holder’s intention and
financial ability to exercise or convert that right
is not considered.

Investment in an associate is accounted for in
the consolidated financial statements by the
equity method and is initially recognised at
cost. Identifiable assets and liabilities of the
associate in an acquisition are measured at
their fair values at the acquisition date. The
excess of the cost of the investment over the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the
associate’s identifiable assets and liabilities is
recorded as goodwill. The goodwill is included
in the carrying amount of the investment and is
tested for impairment together with the
investment at the end of each reporting period
when there is objective evidence that the
investment is impaired. Any excess of the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of
acquisition is recognised in consolidated profit
or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c)

Associates (Continued)

The Group’s share of an associate’s post-
acquisition profits or losses and other
comprehensive income is recognised in
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. When the Group’s share
of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its
interest in the associate (which includes any
long-term interests that, in substance, form
part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate), the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred obligations
or made payments on behalf of the associate.
If the associate subsequently reports profits,
the Group resumes recognising its share of
those profits only after its share of the profits
equals the share of losses not recognised.

The gain or loss on the disposal of an
associate that results in a loss of significant
influence represents the difference between (i)
the fair value of the consideration of the sale
plus the fair value of any investment retained in
that associate and (i) the Group’s entire
carrying amount of that associate (including
goodwill) and any related accumulated foreign
currency translation reserve. If an investment in
an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture, the Group continues to apply the
equity method and does not remeasure the
retained interest.

Unrealised profits on transactions between the
Group and its associates are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interests in the
associates. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of associates have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B B R B A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BHEZE T —\F+_A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d) Foreign currency translation

U]

(i)

Functional and presentation currency
[tems included in the financial statements
of each of the Group’s entities are
measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which
the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$”), which is the Company’s
functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances in each
entity’s financial statements
Transactions in foreign currencies are
translated into the functional currency on
initial recognition using the exchange
rates prevailing on the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign
currencies are translated at the exchange
rates at the end of each reporting period.
Gains and losses resulting from this
translation policy are recognised in profit
or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at
fair value in foreign currencies are
translated using the exchange rates at the
dates when the fair values are
determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary
item is recognised in other comprehensive
income, any exchange component of
that gain or loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income. When a gain or
loss on a non-monetary item is recognised
in profit or loss, any exchange component
of that gain or loss is recognised in profit
or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d) Foreign currency translation
(Continued)

(iii)

Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the
Group entities that have a functional
currency different from the Company’s
presentation currency are translated into
the Company’s presentation currency as
follows:

— Assets and liabilities for each
statement of financial position
presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that
statement of financial position;

— Income and expenses are translated
at average exchange rates for the
period (unless this average rate is
not a reasonable approximation of
the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates,
in which case income and
expenses are translated at the
exchange rates on the transaction
dates); and

— Al resulting exchange differences
are recognised in other
comprehensive income and
accumulated in the foreign currency
translation reserve.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B B R B A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BHEZE T —\F+_A=+—HILFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d)

(e)

Foreign currency translation

(Continued)

(iii) Translation on consolidation
(Continued)
On consolidation, exchange differences
arising from the translation of monetary
items that form part of the net investment
in foreign entities are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated
in the foreign currency translation reserve.
When a foreign operation is sold, such
exchange differences are reclassified to
consolidated profit or loss as part of the
gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising
on the acquisition of a foreign entity are
treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign entity and translated at the closing
rate.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than
leasehold land (classified as finance leases), held
for use in the production or supply of goods or
services, or for administrative purposes (other
than properties under construction as described
below), are stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost, less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. All other
repairs and maintenance are recognised in
profit or loss during the period in which they
are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

Leasehold land held for use in the production
or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes, are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at
their revalued amounts, being the fair value at
the date of revaluation, less any subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses. Revaluations
are performed with sufficient regularity such
that the carrying amounts do not differ
materially from those that would be determined
using fair values at the end of each reporting
period.

Any revaluation increase arising on the
revaluation of such land is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in land
revaluation reserve, except to the extent that it
reverses a revaluation decrease for the same
asset previously recognised in profit or loss, in
which case the increase is credited to profit or
loss to the extent of the decrease previously
expensed. A decrease in the carrying amount
arising on the revaluation of such land is
recognised in profit or loss to the extent that it
exceeds the balance, if any, held in the land
revaluation reserve relating to a previous
revaluation of that asset.

Depreciation of revalued land is recognised in
profit or loss. On the subsequent sale or
retirement of a revalued land, the attributable
revaluation surplus remaining in the land
revaluation reserve is transferred directly to
retained earnings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B B R B A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BHEZE T —\F+_A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment
(Continued)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
is calculated at rates sufficient to write off their
cost or revalued amounts less their residual
values over the estimated useful lives on a
straight-line basis. The principal useful lives are
as follows:
Buildings 5 to 20 years or over the
unexpired term of lease
over the unexpired term of
lease
over the shorter of 3 years
and the unexpired term

Leasehold land

Leasehold improvements

of the lease
Plant and machinery 5 to 10 years
Computer equipment 3 to 5 years
Furniture, fixtures and 3 10 5 years
office equipment
Motor vehicles 310 5 years
The residual values, useful lives and

depreciation method are reviewed and
adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period.

Construction in progress represents buildings
under construction and plant and equipment
pending installation, and is stated at cost less
impairment losses. Depreciation begins when
the relevant assets are available for use.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant
and equipment is the difference between the
net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of
the relevant asset, and is recognised in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A B R I ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-_T—/\F+ A=+ —ALFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f)

(9)

(h)

Leases
The Group as lessee

()

Operating leases

Leases that do not substantially transfer
to the Group all the risks and rewards of
ownership of assets are accounted for as
operating leases. Lease payments (net of
any incentives received from the lessor)
are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessor

()

Operating leases

Leases that do not substantially transfer
to the lessees all the risks and rewards
of ownership of assets are accounted for
as operating leases. Rental income from
operating leases is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease.

Research and development
expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised
as an expense in the period in which it is
incurred.

Club membership

Club membership with indefinite useful life is
stated at cost less any impairment losses.
Impairment is reviewed annually or when there
is any indication that the club membership has
suffered an impairment loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B B R B A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T— \F+-_A=+—ALFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i)

)

(k)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined using
the weighted average basis. The cost of
finished goods and work in progress comprises
raw materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of all production overhead
expenditure, and where appropriate,
subcontracting charges. Net realisable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary
to make the sale.

Other contract costs
Other contract costs are the incremental costs
of obtaining a contract with a customer.

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are
those costs that the Group incurs to obtain a
contract with a customer that it would not
have incurred if the contract had not been
obtained. Incremental costs of obtaining a
contract are capitalised when incurred if the
costs are expected to be recovered, unless the
expected amortisation period is one year or
less from the date of initial recognition of the
asset, in which case the costs are expensed
when incurred. Other costs of obtaining a
contract are expensed when incurred.

Contract assets and contract liabilities
Contract asset is recognised when the Group
recognises revenue before being
unconditionally entitled to the consideration
under the payment terms set out in the
contract. Contract assets are assessed for
ECLs in accordance with the policy set out in
note 4(x) and are reclassified to receivables
when the right to the consideration has
become unconditional.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k)

()

Contract assets and contract liabilities
(Continued)

A contract liability is recognised when the
customer pays consideration before the Group
recognises the related revenue. A contract
liability would also be recognised if the Group
has an unconditional right to receive
consideration before the Group recognises the

related revenue. In such cases, a
corresponding receivable would also be
recognised.

For a single contract with the customer, either
a net contract asset or a net contract liability is
presented. For multiple contracts, contract
assets and contract liabilities of unrelated
contracts are not presented on a net basis.

Policy prior to 1 January 2018

In the comparative period, contract liabilities
were recorded for deposits received from
customers relating to sales of OEM Products
and moulds. The balance was presented as the
“deposits received” (as a liability). The balance
has been reclassified as on 1 January 2018 as
shown in note 3.

Recognition and derecognition of
financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position when the Group becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B B R B A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T— \F+-_A=+—ALFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

Recognition and derecognition of
financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets and financial liabilities are
initially measured at fair value. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets
and financial liabilities at FVTPL) are added to
or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises a financial asset only
when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its
retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to
pay. If the Group retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred
financial asset, the Group continues to
recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the
proceeds received.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities
when, and only when, the Group’s obligations
are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable, including any
non-cash assets transferred or liabilities
assumed, is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A B R I ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-_T—/\F+ A=+ —ALFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. ETESEBER (E)

(Continued)

(m) &EREE

(m) Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a
trade date basis. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention
in the marketplace. All recognised financial
assets are measured subsequently in their
entirety at either amortised cost or fair value,
depending on the classification of the financial
assets.

Debt instruments

Debt instruments held by the Group are
classified into one of the following
measurement categories:

= amortised cost, if the instrument is held
for the collection of contractual cash
flows which represent solely payments of
principal and interest. Interest income
from the instrument is calculated using
the effective interest method. Typically,
trade receivables, other receivables, cash
and bank balances are classified in this
category.

—  FVTOCI — recycling, if the contractual
cash flows of the instruments comprise
solely payments of principal and interest
and the instrument is held within a
business model whose objective is
achieved by both the collection of
contractual cash flows and sale. Changes
in fair value are recognised in other
comprehensive income, except for the
recognition in profit or loss of ECLs,
interest income (calculated using the
effective interest method) and foreign
exchange gains and losses. When the
instrument is derecognised, the amount
accumulated in other comprehensive
income is recycled from equity to profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B B R B A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T— \F+-_A=+—ALFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. ETESEBER (E)

(Continued)

(m) Financial assets (Continued) (m) &RLEE (&)

Debt instruments (Continued)

— FVTPL if the instrument does not meet the
criteria for being measured at amortised
cost or FVTOCI (recycling). Changes in
the fair value of the instrument (including
interest) are recognised in profit or loss.

Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified
as FVTPL unless the equity investment is not
held for trading purposes and on initial
recognition of the investment the Group makes
an election to designate the investment at
FVTOCI (non-recycling) such that subsequent
changes in fair value are recognised in other
comprehensive income. Such elections are
made on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but
may only be made if the investment meets the
definition of equity from the issuer’s
perspective. Where such an election is made,
the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income remains in the fair value
reserve (non-recycling) until the investment is
disposed of. At the time of disposal, the
amount accumulated in the fair value reserve
(non-recycling) is transferred to retained
earnings. It is not recycled through profit or
loss. Dividends from an investment in equity
securities, irrespective of whether classified as
at FVTPL or FVTOCI, are recognised in profit or
loss as other income.

Policy prior to 1 January 2018

Investments in securities held for trading were
classified as financial assets measured at
FVTPL. Any attributable transaction costs were
recognised in profit or loss as incurred. At the
end of each reporting period the fair value was
remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss
being recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(m) Financial assets (Continued)

(n)

Equity investments (Continued)

Policy prior to 1 January 2018 (Continued)
Dated debt securities that the Group had the
positive ability and intention to hold to maturity
were classified as held-to-maturity securities.
Held-to-maturity securities were stated at
amortised cost.

Investments which did not fall into any of the
above categories were classified as available-
for-sale financial assets. At the end of each
reporting period the fair value was remeasured,
with any resultant gain or loss being
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the fair
value reserve (recycling). Dividend income from
equity investments and interest income from
debt securities calculated using the effective
interest method were recognised in profit or
loss respectively. Foreign exchange gains and
losses arising from debt securities were also
recognised in profit or loss. When the
investments were derecognised or impaired,
the cumulative gain or loss recognised in equity
was reclassified to profit or loss.

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has
an unconditional right to receive consideration.
A right to receive consideration is unconditional
if only the passage of time is required before
payment of that consideration is due. If
revenue has been recognised before the Group
has an unconditional right to receive
consideration, the amount is presented as a
contract asset.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using
the effective interest method less allowance for
credit losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B B R B A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T— \F+-_A=+—ALFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(o)

(p)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at
bank and on hand, demand deposits with
banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, having been within three
months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management are also included as a
component of cash and cash equivalents for
the purpose of the consolidated cash flow
statement. Cash and cash equivalents are
assessed for ECL.

Financial liabilities and equity
instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are
classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument under HKFRSs. An equity
instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group
after deducting all of its liabilities. The
accounting policies adopted for specific
financial liabilities and equity instruments are set
out below.

(i) Borrowings
Borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value, net of transaction costs incurred,
and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current
liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after
the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(p)

Financial liabilities and equity

instruments (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Financial guarantee contract liabilities
Financial guarantee contracts are
recognised as a financial liability at the
time the guarantee is issued. The liability
is initially measured at fair value and
subsequently at the higher of:

= the amount determined in accordance
with the ECL model under HKFRS 9;
and

= the amount initially recognised less,
where appropriate, the cumulative
amount of income recognised in
accordance with the principles of
HKFRS 15.

The fair value of financial guarantees is
determined based on the present value of
the difference in cash flows between the
contractual payments required under the
debt instrument and the payments that
would be required without the guarantee,
or the estimated amount that would be
payable to a third party for assuming the
obligations.

Where guarantees in relation to loans or
other payables of associates are provided
for no compensation, the fair values are
accounted for as contributions and
recognised as part of the cost of the
investment.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised
initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method unless
the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated
at cost.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B B R B A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T— \F+-_A=+—ALFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(p)

(q)

Financial liabilities and equity

instruments (Continued)

(iv) Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that
evidence a residual interest in the assets
of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recorded at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when control over a
product or service is transferred to the
customer, at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected
to be entitled, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes
and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

For OEM Products that have no alternative use
to the Group and when the Group has an
enforceable right to payment from the
customers for performance completed to date,
the Group recognises revenue from the sales of
such OEM Products as the performance
obligation is satisfied over time in accordance
with the input method, by reference to the
costs incurred to date over the total expected
costs. Otherwise, sales are recognised when
control of the products has been transferred,
being when the products are delivered to the
customers. Delivery occurs when the products
have been delivered to the designated location
prescribed by the customer. Payment for
goods is not due from the customer until the
OEM Products are delivered to the customer
and therefore a contract asset is recognised
over the period in which the goods are
produced, representing the entity’s right to
consideration for the services performed to
date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(q)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Revenue from the sales of non-OEM Products
is recognised when control of the goods has
transferred, being when the goods have been
shipped to the customer’s specific location
(delivery). Following delivery, the customer has
full discretion over the manner of distribution
and price to sell the goods, has the primary
responsibility when on selling the goods and
bears the risks of obsolescence and loss in
relation to the goods. A receivable is
recognised by the Group when the goods are
delivered to the customer as this represents
the point in time at which the right to
consideration becomes unconditional, as only
the passage of time is required before payment
is due.

Revenue from sales of moulds is recognised
when the quality of moulds are accepted by
the customers, and the customers have the
legal title to the moulds and can direct the
Group to use them for production.

Interest income is recognised as it accrues
using the effective interest method. For financial
assets measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI
(recycling) that are not credit-impaired, the
effective interest rate is applied to the gross
carrying amount of the asset. For credit
impaired financial assets, the effective interest
rate is applied to the amortised cost (i.e. gross
carrying amount net of loss allowance) of the
asset.

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B B R B A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE=-T—/\F+=-_A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(q)

(r)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Policy prior to 1 January 2018

Revenue is recognised when the amount of
revenue can be reliably measured and when it
is probable that future economic benefits will
flow to the Group when specific criteria have
been met for each of the Group’s activities.

Revenue from the sales of manufactured goods
and trading of materials is recognised on the
transfer of significant risks and rewards of
ownership, which generally coincides with the
time when the goods are delivered and the title
has passed to the customers.

Interest income is recognised on a time-
proportion basis using the effective interest
method.

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

Employee benefits

(i) Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave
and long service leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service
leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of the reporting
period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until
the time of leave.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(r)

(s)

Employee benefits (Continued)

(ii) Pension obligations
The Group contributes to defined
contribution retirement schemes which are
available to all employees. Contributions to
the schemes by the Group and employees
are calculated as a percentage of
employees’ basic salaries. The retirement
benefit scheme cost charged to profit or
loss represents contributions payable by
the Group to the funds.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the
earlier of the dates when the Group can
no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits, and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs and involves the
payment of termination benefits.

(iii)

Share-based payments

The Group issues equity-settled share-based
payments to certain employees. Equity-settled
share-based payments are measured at the fair
value (excluding the effect of non-market based
vesting conditions) of the equity instruments at
the date of grant. The fair value determined at
the grant date of the equity-settled share-
based payments is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, based on the
Group’s estimate of shares that will eventually
vest and adjusted for the effect of non-market
based vesting conditions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B B R B A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T— \F+-_A=+—ALFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(t)

(u)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets,
until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure
on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed
generally and used for the purpose of
obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount of
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation is
determined by applying a capitalisation rate to
the expenditures on that asset. The
capitalisation rate is the weighted average of
the borrowing costs applicable to the
borrowings of the Group that are outstanding
during the period, other than borrowings made
specifically for the purpose of obtaining a
qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they are
incurred.

Government grants

A government grant is recognised when there
is reasonable assurance that the Group will
comply with the conditions attaching to it and
that the grant will be received.

Government grants relating to income are
deferred and recognised in profit or loss over
the period to match them with the costs they
are intended to compensate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(u)

(v)

Government grants (Continued)
Government grants that become receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already
incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate
financial support to the Group with no future
related costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they become receivable.

Taxation
Income tax represents the sum of the current
tax and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
profit recognised in profit or loss because of
items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases
used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised
for all taxable temporary differences and
deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which deductible temporary
differences, unused tax losses or unused tax
credits can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B B R B A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T— \F+-_A=+—ALFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(v)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for
taxable temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries and associates,
except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period when the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based
on tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period. Deferred tax is recognised in
profit or loss, except when it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the deferred
tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and
liabilities reflects the tax consequences that
would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting
period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to set
off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority and the
Group intends to settle its current tax assets
and liabilities on a net basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(w)

Impairment of non-financial assets
The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are
reviewed at each reporting date for indications
of impairment and where an asset is impaired,
it is written down as an expense through the
consolidated statement of profit or loss to
its estimated recoverable amount unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount,
in which case the impairment loss is treated
as a revaluation decrease. The recoverable
amount is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from
other assets or groups of assets. If this is the
case, recoverable amount is determined for the
CGU to which the asset belongs. Recoverable
amount is the higher of value in use and the
fair value less costs of disposal of the individual
asset or the CGU.

Value in use is the present value of the
estimated future cash flows of the asset/CGU.
Present values are computed using pre-tax
discount rates that reflect the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset/CGU
whose impairment is being measured.

Impairment losses for CGUs are allocated first
against the goodwill of the unit and then pro
rata amongst the other assets of the CGU.
Subsequent increases in the recoverable
amount caused by changes in estimates are
credited to profit or loss to the extent that they
reverse the impairment unless the relevant
asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which
case the reversal of the impairment loss is
treated as a revaluation increase.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B B R B A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T— \F+-_A=+—ALFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(x)

Impairment of financial assets and
contract assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for
ECLs on investments in debt instruments that
are measured at amortised cost or at FVTOCI,
trade and other receivables and contract
assets, as well as on financial guarantee
contracts. The amount of ECLs is updated at
each reporting date to reflect changes in credit
risk since initial recognition of the respective
financial instrument.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for
trade receivables and contract assets. The
ECLs on these financial assets are estimated
using a provision matrix based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of
both the current as well as the forecast
direction of conditions at the reporting date,
including time value of money where
appropriate.

For all other financial instruments, the Group
recognises lifetime ECL when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. However, if the credit risk on the
financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
measures the loss allowance for that financial
instrument at an amount equal to 12-month
ECL.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result
from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument. In
contrast, 12-month ECL represents the portion
of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from
default events on a financial instrument that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting
date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(x)

Impairment of financial assets and
contract assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a
financial instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument at the reporting date with the risk of
a default occurring on the financial instrument
at the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that
is available without undue cost or effort.
Forward-looking information considered includes
the future prospects of the industries in which
the Group’s debtors operate, obtained from
economic expert reports, financial analysts,
governmental bodies, relevant think-tanks and
other similar organisations, as well as
consideration of various external sources of
actual and forecast economic information that
relate to the Group’s core operations.

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit risk
has increased significantly since initial
recognition:

— an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial instrument’s
external (if available) or internal credit
rating;

—  significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk for a particular
financial instrument;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B B R B A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE=-T—/\F+=-_A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(x)

Impairment of financial assets and
contract assets (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic
conditions that are expected to cause a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability
to meet its debt obligations;

an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of
the debtor;

significant increases in credit risk on other
financial instruments of the same debtor;
and

an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic or
technological environment of the debtor
that results in a significant decrease in
the debtor’'s ability to meet its debt
obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the
credit risk on a financial asset has increased

significantly since

initial recognition when

contractual payments are more than 30 days
past due, unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information that demonstrates
otherwise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(x)

Impairment of financial assets and
contract assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)
Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that
the credit risk on a financial instrument has not
increased significantly since initial recognition if
the financial instrument is determined to have
low credit risk at the reporting date. A financial
instrument is determined to have low credit risk
if:

(i) The financial instrument has a low risk of
default;

(i)  The debtor has a strong capacity to meet
its contractual cash flow obligations in the
near term; and

(i)  Adverse changes in economic and
business conditions in the longer term may,
but will not necessarily, reduce the ability
of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash
flow obligations.

The Group considers a financial asset to have
low credit risk when the asset has external
credit rating of “investment grade” in
accordance with the globally understood
definition or if an external rating is not
available, the asset has an internal rating of
“performing”. Performing means that the
counterparty has a strong financial position and
there is no past due amounts.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B B R B A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BHEZE T —\F+_A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(x)

Impairment of financial assets and
contract assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)
For financial guarantee contracts, the date that
the Group becomes a party to the irrevocable
commitment is considered to be the date of
initial recognition for the purposes of assessing
the financial instrument for impairment. In
assessing whether there has been a significant
increase in the credit risk since initial
recognition of a financial guarantee contracts,
the Group considers the changes in the risk
that the specified debtor will default on the
contract.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness
of the criteria used to identify whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk
and revises them as appropriate to ensure that
the criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount
becomes past due.

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as
constituting an event of default for internal
credit risk management purposes as historical
experience indicates that receivables that meet
either of the following criteria are generally not
recoverable.

— when there is a breach of financial
covenants by the counterparty; or

— information developed internally or
obtained from external sources indicates
that the debtor is unlikely to pay its
creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any
collaterals held by the Group).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(x)

Impairment of financial assets and
contract assets (Continued)

Definition of default (continued)

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group
considers that default has occurred when a
financial asset is more than 90 days past due
unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a
more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of that financial
asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial
asset is credit-impaired includes observable
data about the following events:

— significant financial difficulty of the issuer
or the counterparty;

= a breach of contract, such as a default or
past due event;

— the lender(s) of the counterparty, for
economic or contractual reasons relating
to the counterparty’s financial difficulty,
having granted to the counterparty a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not
otherwise consider; or

— it is becoming probable that the
counterparty will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation; or

—  the disappearance of an active market for
that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B B R B A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T— \F+-_A=+—ALFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(x)

Impairment of financial assets and
contract assets (Continued)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when
there is information indicating that the debtor is
in severe financial difficulty and there is no
realistic prospect of recovery, including when
the debtor has been placed under liquidation
or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or
in the case of trade receivables, when the
amounts are over two years past due,
whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets
written off may still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. Any recoveries made are
recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECLs is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is
based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information as described above.
As for the exposure at default, for financial
assets, this is represented by the assets’ gross
carrying amount at the reporting date.

For financial assets, the ECL is estimated as
the difference between all contractual cash
flows that are due to the Group in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
original effective interest rate. For a lease
receivable, the cash flows used for determining
the ECLs is consistent with the cash flows
used in measuring the lease receivable in
accordance with HKAS 17 Leases.

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited %= % BB IE R B R AT

4. FESFHHX(B)

(x)

EHEERSHEEREE)

AEEEEERMBREBARARE
MR BEERKCIEEREL
R (BEREFABRBERADEAR
ERF AEBHEEFENER
T REHSRBHABBNF (UK
RBRLEERE)) BEEMETRE
E-fEZRZAEER(WMEE)R B
MHEREEDARBEASENIK D
RFEERGNTED - HAIKREE
ER B R ER -

B RERERZEER

BHEEBENERENHE 2
MBAX (MENRNEXRIZEE) ME
KRB AT KB - FHER AR R
BHOBRENKERBERE YR
EXPRR I ATRE LB AR - BHR
fRAESH SREEAHEERR
S EHHMREAERS -

REMEEMS  BHEEBRRR
BAENENTAKENMBEENERS
mERAREEARUE - FIRHHE
RengcHnERbst YRREAR
BB BR MR BEIR o 3hAE S YRR N
5 REBEESFENFI7THREER
FEERAGEEFEENRERERM
EAHEHERKFENRESRE —
B o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(x)

Impairment of financial assets and
contract assets (Continued)
Measurement and recognition of ECL
(continued)

If the Group has measured the loss allowance
for a financial instrument at an amount equal to
lifetime ECL in the previous reporting period,
but determines at the current reporting date
that the conditions for lifetime ECL are no
longer met, the Group measures the loss
allowance at an amount equal to 12-month
ECL at the current reporting date, except for
assets for which simplified approach was used.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or
loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments
with a corresponding adjustment to their
carrying amount through a loss allowance
account, except for investments in debt
instruments that are measured at FVTOCI, for
which the loss allowance is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the
investment revaluation reserve, and does not
reduce the carrying amount of the financial
asset in the statement of financial position.

Policy prior to 1 January 2018

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
assesses whether its financial assets (other
than those at FVTPL) are impaired, based on
objective evidence that, as a result of one or
more events that occurred after the initial
recognition, the estimated future cash flows of
the (group of) financial asset(s) have been
affected.

For available-for-sale equity instruments, a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of the investment below its cost is considered
also to be objective evidence of impairment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B B R B A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T— \F+-_A=+—ALFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(x)

Impairment of financial assets and
contract assets (Continued)

Policy prior to 1 January 2018 (continued)

In addition, for trade receivables that are
assessed not to be impaired individually, the
Group assesses them collectively for
impairment, based on the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase
in the delayed payments in the portfolio,
observable changes in economic conditions
that correlate with default on receivables, etc.

Only for trade receivables, the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance
account and subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited against the
allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are
recognised in profit or loss.

For all other financial assets, the carrying
amount is directly reduced by the impairment
loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised
cost, if the amount of the impairment loss
decreases in a subsequent period and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed (either directly or by adjusting the
allowance account for trade receivables)
through profit or loss. However, the reversal
must not result in a carrying amount that
exceeds what the amortised cost of the
financial asset would have been had the
impairment not been recognised at the date the
impairment is reversed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(v)

()

Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised for liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group
has a present legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditures
expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow is remote.
Possible obligations, whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow is remote.

Events after the reporting period
Events after the reporting period that provide
additional information about the Group’s
position at the end of the reporting period are
adjusting events and are reflected in the
consolidated financial statements. Events after
the reporting period that are not adjusting
events are disclosed in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements when
material.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B B R B A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BHEZE T —\F+_A=+—HILFE

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

In the process of applying the accounting policies,
the directors have made the following judgements
that have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial statements
(apart from those involving estimations, which are
dealt with below).

Significant increase in credit risk

As explained in note 3, ECL are measured as an
allowance equal to 12-month ECL for stage 1
assets, or lifetime ECL for stage 2 or stage 3 assets.
An asset moves to stage 2 when its credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition. HKFRS
9 does not define what constitutes a significant
increase in credit risk. In assessing whether the
credit risk of an asset has significantly increased the
Group takes into account qualitative and quantitative
reasonable and supportable forward-looking
information.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
end of the reporting period, that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year, are discussed below.

(@) Allowance for inventories
The directors identify obsolete and slow-
moving inventory items that are no longer
probable for use in production or to be sold
out at the end of each reporting period. The
directors estimate the net realisable value for
such inventories based primarily on the latest
selling prices and costs of completion and
selling expenses estimated at current operation
conditions. The directors carry out an inventory
review on a product-by-product basis at the
end of each reporting period and makes
allowance for obsolete items.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY

ESTIMATES (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Allowance for inventories (Continued)
Where the actual outcome in future is different
from the original estimate, such difference will
impact the carrying value of inventories and
allowance charge/write-back in the period in
which such estimates have been changed.

The allowance on inventories as at 31
December 2018 was approximately
HK$35,123,000 (2017: HK$18,564,000).

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

The Group determines the estimated useful
lives, residual values and related depreciation
charges for the Group’s property, plant and
equipment. These estimates are based on the
historical experience of the actual useful lives
and residual values of property, plant and
equipment of similar nature and functions. The
Group will revise the depreciation charge where
useful lives and residual values are different to
those previously estimated, or it will write-off or
write-down technically obsolete or
strategic assets that have been abandoned.

non-

The carrying amount of property, plant and
equipment as at 31 December 2018 was
approximately HK$766,155,000 (2017:
HK$770,592,000).

e B R R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-_T—/\F+ A=+ —ALFE

5. BARHAEREZEMET (B)

AT FEAE RN EERIR (&)

(a)

(b)

FEEE (&)
HERARKAREMEFREMSA
ZR2 AREEERPEFEREE
KRB B EE -

R-—E—NE+=-_A=+—H £&
B4 5 4935,123,0008 T (—Z & — +
£F : 18,564,000/ 7T) °

ME  HWBRBELIRITE

AEBEBEAEEZME BB &R
R EFT AIERFR - FAEERA
BT EM X - WEBETRBELE
BRINBENYE - Bz RRERNER
AERFHEFRMMEEMNBELRE
th o B AlE A AR R R SRE B E ST Al
HEIRE  AEBESETNERX
X 2 2 P A S - 38 P 2 JF R RS

RZBE-N\FE+-_A=+—HB %
¥ BRLIXHEEDEAY
766,155,000 T (=& — £ F :
770,592,000/ 7T) °

Annual Report 2018 =& — )\ F £ i}




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B B R B A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-_ZT—\F+-_A=+—RALLFE

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(c)

Impairment of trade receivables and
contract assets

Prior to the adoption of HKFRS 9 on 1
January 2018, the management of the Group
assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is any objective evidence that
trade receivables and contract assets are
impaired. The provision policy for bad and
doubtful debts of the Group is based on the
evaluation of collectability and aging analysis of
accounts and on management’s judgement. A
considerable amount of judgement is required
in assessing the ultimate realisation of trade
receivables and contract assets including the
current creditworthiness and the past collection
history of each customer. If the financial
conditions of customers of the Group were to
deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their
ability to make payments, additional allowance
may be required.

As at 31 December 2017, the carrying
amounts of trade receivables and contract
assets are approximately HK$415,392,000 (net
of allowance for doubtful debts of
approximately HK$764,000) and HK$NIl
respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY

ESTIMATES (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(c)

Impairment of trade receivables and
contract assets (Continued)

Since the adoption of HKFRS 9 on 1 January
2018, the management of the Group estimates
the amount of impairment loss for ECL on
trade receivables and contract assets based on
the credit risk of trade receivables and contract
assets. The amount of the impairment loss
based on ECL model is measured as the
difference between all contractual cash flows
that are due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive, discounted at the
effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition. Where the future cash flows are
less than expected, or being revised downward
due to changes in facts and circumstances, a
material impairment loss may arise.

As at 31 December 2018, the carrying
amounts of trade receivables and contract
assets are approximately HK$376,785,000 (net
of allowance for doubtful debts of
approximately HK$229,000) and
HK$14,670,000 respectively.
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5. BARHAEREZEMET (B)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B B R B A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T— \F+-_A=+—ALFE

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(d)

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in
several jurisdictions. Significant estimates are
required in determining the provision for income
taxes. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the period in which
such determination is made. During the year,
approximately HK$12,505,000 (2017:
HK$45,862,000) of income tax was charged to
profit or loss based on the estimated profit
from operations.

Recognition of deferred tax assets, which
principally relates to deductible temporary
differences and tax losses, depends on
whether it is probable that future taxable profits
or taxable temporary differences will be
available against which deferred tax assets can
be utilised. In cases where the actual future
taxable profits or taxable temporary differences
generated are less than expected, a reversal of
deferred tax assets may arise, which will be
recognised in profit or loss for the period in
which such a reversal takes place. The
directors considered that, based on the profit
forecast of the group companies with tax
losses, it is probable that the tax losses can be
utilised in the foreseeable future. The profit
forecast required the use of judgement and
estimates.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets
with respect to tax losses as at 31 December
2018 was approximately HK$7,938,000 (2017:
HK$1,109,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY

ESTIMATES (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(e)

(f)

Fair value of leasehold land

The Group appointed an independent
professional valuer to assess the fair value of
the leasehold land. In determining the fair
value, the valuer has utilised a method of
valuation which involves certain estimates. The
directors have exercised their judgement and
are satisfied that the method of valuation is
reflective of the current market conditions.

The carrying amount of leasehold land as at
31 December 2018 was approximately
HK$209,770,000 (2017: HK$202,030,000).

Revenue and profit recognition

As explained in policy note 4(qg), revenue from
sales of moulds is recognised when the quality
of moulds is accepted by the customers and
the customers can direct the Group to use
them for production. Certain contracts with
customers may include moulds and products,
and the Group only charges the customers for
the products and recovers the costs of moulds
through the sales of products. Since moulds
and products are distinct performance
obligations, transaction price of a contract
should be allocated to moulds and products
separately. In the allocation of the transaction
price to moulds, the Group has to make
estimation of the stand-alone price of moulds
and the products, and the quantity of the
products that the moulds can be ultimately
manufactured. Actual outcomes of revenue may
be higher or lower than estimated at the end of
the reporting period, which would affect the
revenue and profit recognised in future years as
an adjustment to the amounts recorded to
date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B B R B A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-_ZT—\F+-_A=+—RALLFE

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

(Continued)

(f) Revenue and profit recognition (Continued)
In the comparative period, revenue from mould
of which the cost was recovered from sales of
products is recognised when the products
were sold.

During the year, approximately HK$207,600,000
(2017: HK$133,074,000) of revenue from
moulds was recognised.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: foreign currency risk, credit risk,
liquidity risk and interest rate risk. The Group’s
overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance.

(@) Foreign currency risk

The Group has certain exposure to foreign
currency risk as most of its business
transactions, assets and liabilities are principally
denominated in HK$, United States dollars
(‘USD”) and Renminbi (“RMB”). The Group
currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy in respect of other foreign
currency transactions, assets and liabilities. The
Group monitors its foreign currency exposure
closely and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need
arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(a)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2018, if HK$ had weakened
0.5 per cent (2017: 0.5 per cent) against USD
with all other variables held constant,
consolidated profit after tax for the year would
have been approximately HK$1,516,000 (2017:
HK$1,521,000) higher, arising mainly as a
result of the foreign exchange gain on trade
receivables and bank balances denominated in
USD, but partly offset by the foreign exchange
loss on trade and other payables denominated
in USD (2017: foreign exchange gain on trade
receivables and bank balances denominated in
USD, but partly offset by the foreign exchange
loss on trade and other payables denominated
in USD). If HK$ had strengthened 0.5 per cent
(2017: 0.5 per cent) against USD with all other
variables held constant, consolidated profit after
tax for the year would have been
approximately HK$1,516,000 (2017:
HK$1,521,000) lower, arising mainly as a result
of the foreign exchange loss on trade
receivables and bank balances denominated in
USD, but partly offset by the foreign exchange
gain on trade and other payables denominated
in USD (2017: foreign exchange loss on trade
receivables and bank balances denominated in
USD, but partly offset by the foreign exchange
gain on trade and other payables denominated
in USD).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B B R B A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T— \F+-_A=+—ALFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(a)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2018, if HK$ had weakened
5 per cent (2017: 5 per cent) against RMB with
all other variables held constant, consolidated
profit after tax for the year would have been
approximately HK$871,000 (2017:
HK$4,220,000) lower, arising mainly as a result
of the foreign exchange loss on trade
receivables and bank balances denominated in
HK$ held by the subsidiaries operating in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), but
partly offset by the foreign exchange gain on
bank balances denominated in RMB held by
the Hong Kong subsidiaries (2017: foreign
exchange loss on trade receivables and bank
balances denominated in HK$ held by the
subsidiaries operating in the PRC, but partly
offset by the foreign exchange gain on bank
balances denominated in RMB held by the
Hong Kong subsidiaries). If HK$ had
strengthened 5 per cent (2017: 5 per cent)
against RMB with all other variables held
constant, consolidated profit after tax for the
year would have been approximately
HK$871,000 (2017: HK$4,220,000) higher,
arising mainly as a result of the foreign
exchange gain on trade receivables and bank
balances denominated in HK$ held by the
subsidiaries operating in the PRC, but partly
offset by the foreign exchange loss on bank
balances denominated in RMB held by the
Hong Kong subsidiaries (2017: foreign
exchange gain on trade receivables and bank
balances denominated in HK$ held by the
subsidiaries operating in the PRC, but partly
offset by the foreign exchange loss on bank
balances denominated in RMB held by the
Hong Kong subsidiaries).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2018, if RMB had weakened
5 per cent (2017: 5 per cent) against USD with
all other variables held constant, consolidated
profit after tax for the year would have been
approximately HK$2,462,000 (2017:
HK$515,000) lower, arising mainly as a result of
the foreign exchange loss on trade payables of
the PRC subsidiaries denominated in USD
(2017: foreign exchange loss on trade payables
of the PRC subsidiaries denominated in USD).
If RMB had strengthened 5 per cent (2017: 5
per cent) against USD with all other variables
held constant, consolidated profit after tax for
the year would have been approximately
HK$2,462,000 (2017: HK$515,000) higher,
arising mainly as a result of the foreign
exchange gain on trade payables of the PRC
subsidiaries denominated in USD (2017: foreign
exchange gain on trade payables of the PRC
subsidiaries denominated in USD).

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will
not meet its obligations under a financial
instrument or customer contract, leading to a
financial loss. The Group is exposed to credit
risk from its operating activities (primarily trade
receivables) and from its financing activities,
including deposits with banks and financial
institutions, foreign exchange transactions and
other financial instruments. The Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from cash and
cash equivalents and derivative financial assets
is limited because the counterparties are banks
and financial institutions with high credit-rating
assigned by international credit-rating agencies,
for which the Group considers to have low
credit risk.

e B R R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-_T—/\F+ A=+ —ALFE

6. MBERERE (&)

(a)

(b)

S EE 2 B (48)
R-ZZE—NE+=-A=+—8 " A
RENZTEES(ZT—+F:
5%) ' MEMTHE S EMFITE - Al
FARBEES & BB DLD
2,462,000 L (=& — £ F :
515,000%87T) ' FEHRRFREEE
ZHMBRRIAETEEZE ZEMNK
HEAIIMNEBEBAMB(ZZ —+HF
REBREEZNBARIAETTEZ
B RNRBEEINEBEMB °
i AREEEETHBERS(ZE—+
F:5%) MEMETAZEHERET
B BIFRBRBERS &N N4
2,462,000 . (=& — & & :
515,000/%7T) * EZHRRNH R EE
2B RRIAETFEZE S ENR
THEAIMNEWZSAH (=T —+HF
RPBEEZWBARIAETTEZ
B 5 e BB E £ INERZEFTE) o

EEE
EERRAXSHUF I TETERT
HAXBFFEHNNELT  EHWHERX
MER AREmHELLES(E
ERESHREFIE) RERELD (8
RRTREREETR  IEXHR
He@m TR WEERR - A5E
AR RERREEE RITE®
REEMELNEERRAER AR
RHEF T HBBREEFREET
ERBESEEFANRITR K
B ASERREFERRTE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B B R B A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T— \F+-_A=+—ALFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets
Customer credit risk is managed by each
business unit subject to the Group’s
established policy, procedures and control
relating to customer credit risk management.
Individual credit evaluations are performed on
all customers requiring credit over a certain
amount. These evaluations focus on the
customer’s past history of making payments
when due and current ability to pay, and take
into account information specific to the
customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates.
Trade receivables are due within 30 to 120
days from the date of billing. Generally, debtors
with balances that are more than 30 days past
due or exceeding the credit limit granted are
requested to settle all outstanding balances
before any further credit is granted. Normally,
the Group does not obtain collateral from
customers.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables and contract assets at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated
using a provision matrix. As the Group’s
historical credit loss experience does not
indicate significantly different loss patterns for
different customer segments, the loss
allowance based on past due status is not
further distinguished between the Group’s
different customer bases.

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited %= % BB IE R B R AT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B R R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-_T—/\F+ A=+ —ALFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets
(Continued)

The following table provides information about
the Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs
for trade receivables as at 31 December 2018:

6. MBERERE (&)

(b)

EEmE (48)
BoRKURIERSHEE (&)

TRRBUEBAKER S EKHER
—B—\Ft+-A=+—BHEHRE
R RIS R A AR -

Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
TEREEE ARE4E{E i kgl
% HK$'000 HK$’000
FE T FE T
Neither past due nor impaired 7% 8 K R sk (B 0.02% 319,382 64
Up to 1 month &% 118 A 0.19% 53,047 101
2-3 months 2Z=31E A 1.09% 4,437 48
4-6 months 4% 618 A 2.29% 22 1
More than 6 months B 1B 61E A 12.20% 126 15
377,014 229

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss
experience over the past 3 years. These rates
are adjusted to reflect differences between
economic conditions during the period over
which the historic data has been collected,
current conditions and the Group’s view of
economic conditions over the expected lives of
the receivables.

The expected loss rates for contract assets are
very low since the contract assets are due
from several major customers and no default
from these customers has happened in the
past. Therefore, no loss allowance has been
made with respect to the contract assets.

BHERXTDERBEIFNERE
BER - ZEL RS FRAEARKRIK
S SRR MM - E AR
0 BN % [ 9 R U R OR TR HA R AR AR
BERRNBEZHNER -

EREEMNEHRBEXXEER AR
EREERBEBEIEER, Y HZX
EXRPBELSBELBEN - Bt -
WEENEEFDEMBE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B B R B A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-_ZT—\F+-_A=+—RALLFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets
(Continued)

Prior to 1 January 2018, an impairment loss
was recognised only when there was objective
evidence of impairment. At 31 December 2017,
trade receivables of approximately HK$764,000
was determined to be impaired. The aging
analysis of trade debtors that were not
considered to be impaired was as follows:

6. MBERERE (&)

(b)

SEEKE (&)
BoRKURIERSHEE (&)

RZZT—N\F—A—Af EEEF
BREREE SRR EESE - R
—E—+E+-_fF=+—H BHE
U FRIB #9764,00058 TT K FEE B TR
B AWEACRENE ZEENK
BOMBAT

2017

—E L4

HK$’000

FEIT

Neither past due nor impaired R 8 HA T R OB (B 351,370
Up to 3 months = %318 A 63,521
4 to 6 months 472618 A 254
7 to 12 months 72121 B 247
415,392

Receivables that were neither past due nor
impaired related to a wide range of customers
for whom there was no recent history of
default.

Receivables that were past due but not
impaired related to a number of independent
customers that had a good track record with
the Group. Based on past experience,
management believed that no impairment
allowance was necessary in respect of these
balances as there had been no significant
change in credit quality and the balances were
still considered fully recoverable.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets
(Continued)

Movement in the loss allowance account in
respect of trade receivables during the year is

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B R R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T—/\F+_A=+—ALLFE

6. BriEE

(b)

w e (&)

fEEmE b (&)
BORURERSHEE (F)

FRNERE S RUTIER R R ERE
BEHWT

as follows:
2018 2017
—F—N\F —E—tF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FETT FE T
At 31 December under R+-—A=+—HBREESS:T
HKAS 39 — specific R399 — RRIEE
allowance 764 —
Impact on initial application & X f& F & 78 B 755 3k & 2 B
of HKFRS 9 (note 3) FIRMIFTZE (M E3) 97 =
Adjusted balance M—HA—BEREEEH
at 1 January 861 =
Impairment losses FANFER B EEE
recognised for the year 132 764
Reversals [o] (764) —
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 229 764

The following significant changes in the gross
carrying amounts of trade receivables and
contract assets contributed to the increase in
the loss allowance during 2018:

— a reversal of specific allowance on trade
receivables with a gross carrying amount
of HK$764,000 after its recovery resulted
in a decrease in loss allowance of
HK$764,000, but partly off-set by;

—  specific write-off of bad debt happened
during the vyear, which increased the
historical loss rate; and

— increase in the expected loss rate due to
a forecast of the future poorer economic
condition.

BHRYGIARA N EERTAER
ATEREHEH T~ \FHERE
Rt

— EZESRWNREER®@FEAS
764,000 7T 45 51| 8 1B 43 A =]
Ik 1% B By Es 18 B E R 4> 764,000
BIT B

- FRABLENERFEME L
MTELBRE: Rk

—  BREHREERENLENR
W TREHER R -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B B R B A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T— \F+-_A=+—ALFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(b)

(c)

Credit risk (Continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost

All of the Group’s investments at amortised
cost are considered to have low credit risk,
and the loss allowance recognised during the
period was therefore limited to 12-month
expected losses.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its
liquidity requirements, its compliance with
lending covenants and its relationship with its
bankers to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and readily realisable
marketable securities and adequate committed
lines of funding from major financial institutions
to meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and longer term.

The following tables show the remaining
contractual maturities at the end of the
reporting period of the Group’s bank
borrowings and other financial liabilities, based
on undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or,
if floating, based on rates currently at the end
of the reporting period) and the earliest date
the Group can be required to pay.

Specifically, for bank loans which contain a
repayment on demand clause which can be
exercised at the bank’s sole discretion, the
analysis shows the cash outflow based on the
earliest period in which the entity can be
required to pay, that is if the lenders were to
invoke their unconditional rights to call the
loans with immediate effect. The maturity
analysis for other financial liabilities is prepared
based on the scheduled repayment dates.

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited %= % BB IE R B R AT

I EREE (R)

(b)

(c)

EEmEmE ()
REHR AT RN ERMEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B R R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-—T—\F+_-_A=+—HILEE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. HHERERE (H)
(Continued)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) HRENE2EE(E)

2018
—g-0\f
Maturity Analysis = Undiscounted cash outflows

HBESH - AERELRH

More than More than
1yearbut 2 years but Total

Within less than less than More than  undiscounted

On demand 1 year 2 years 5 years 5years cash outflows
—-ElL WENL iR

BEX -£f  EORWE  BOREE RENE BektesE
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
FET &L &L FET &L &L

Trade payables BHEME 51,808 212,224 - - - 264,032
Other payables and accruals ~ EHERZER
Eit &R 3 76,024 - - - 76,027
Due to associates EBERAFE 3,257 - - - - 3,057
Bank borrowings oI 186,260 60,196 56,19 28,106 - 330,681
241,328 348,444 56,119 28,106 - 673,997
2017
EtE
Maturity Analysis — Undiscounted cash outflows
HEAAT - AARRER

More than More than
1 year but 2 years but Total
Within less than less than More than  undiscounted
On demand 1 year 2 years 5 years 5years  cash outflows
&t MEN L A5
REX —FR  ESRBE  EORRE RENE  BERLER

HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS000 HKS'000
TEL TET TEL TEL TET TEL

Trade payables BAREMTE 89,059 278,335 = = - 367,394
Other payables and accruals ~ EHERFUER

&R 3 68,119 = = - 68,122

Due to associates (NG R 617 = - - _ 617

Due 10 a related company R BB ARNE 4,465 = = = = 4,465

Bank borrowings RS 189,575 141,616 27,634 15,191 - 374,016

283,719 488,070 27,634 15,191 - 814,614

Annual Report 2018 =& — )\ & 3§




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B B R B A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BHEZE T —\F+_A=+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. HBEkRERE (&)

(Continued)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) HRENEEDE(E)
The following table summarises the maturity NRBAB RN B R E K EEERE
analysis of bank borrowings with a repayment IRITE IR E R B 3 EE R
on demand clause based on agreed scheduled HEMEIHR B 21T - 2B EREE
repayments set out in the loan agreements. AT EFTERFBKRIE - AL« 7%
The amounts include interest payments LEoHEB EMEEHBE A (IR
computed using contractual rates. As a result, TR INHEEAEENSEAS -

these amounts were greater than the amounts
disclosed in the “on demand” time band in the
maturity analysis contained above.

Maturity Analysis — bank borrowings subject to a repayment
on demand clause based on scheduled repayments

HHBSH - RETERMMARERRERRNRTER

More than More than

On demand 1 year but 2 years but Total
or within less than less than More than  undiscounted

1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years cash outflows
BRERY —ElE REUL KR

—-Fh  BOREE  EIREF LENE BERHSH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

AT AT TAT AT AT
31 December 2018 —E-0\§
+ZA=+-H
Bank borrowings RITfER 167,335 21,614 - - 188,949
31 December 2017 Et%
+ZA=1+-H
Bank borrowings RITET 161,812 23,090 7,353 - 192,255
(d) Interest rate risk (d) FIZEER
R [E R’ Ax e -
The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk AR BRI R ER KRB HRITHF
=l H o i A4S 4
arises from its bank deposits, short term and GH R REIE - ZEFRRERIR
NE i it S 38 YL #eh NEF B
long term borrowings. These deposits and \EE%EEHWW%#R%&EM@THM$
borrowings bear interests at variable rates TR e
varied with the then prevailing market
condition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B R R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T—/\F+_A=+—ALLFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(d)

(e)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2018, if interest rates at that
date had been 10 basis points (2017: 10 basis
points) lower with all other variables held
constant, consolidated profit after tax for the
year would have been approximately
HK$124,000 (2017: HK$152,000) higher,
arising mainly as a result of lower interest
expenses on bank borrowings but partly offset
by lower interest income on bank balances. If
interest rates had been 100 basis points
(2017: 100 basis points) higher, with all other
variables held constant, consolidated profit after
tax for the year would have been
approximately HK$1,238,000 (2017:
HK$1,524,000) lower, arising mainly as a result
of higher interest expenses on bank
borrowings but partly offset by higher interest
income on bank balances.

Categories of financial instruments at
31 December 2018

6. MBERERE (&)

(d)

(e)

Financial assets: SREE:

Financial assets measured at REEXATEN SR
amortised cost BE

Loans and receivables (including — B K EWZIA (B1ER
cash and cash equivalents) & RERBEEER)

Available-for-sale financial assets At HE LR EE

Financial assets measured at BEAFEGFAHEMER
FVTOCI: WHNETRMEE :
Equity instruments RN T B

Financial liabilities: SRERE:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost 1% # #55k 7 51 & H) 4 @b

=K

FlZ=REE (8
R-ZZE—NE+=A=+—8 7
ETHAOEER (= —L£F : 10f#
22 MEMAESLEEZTE
AlF R B &R S i B A5 3 4
124,000/ 7L (ZF — £ 4F : 152,000
BT EERRRITEROF S
SR ARTER - DT E T HIRITE
BRI BUR AR DTS o (mAIE £
F100EEE (= —+F : 100fEFE
25 mMEMATEEHESTE - A
FRABBES A G B R DL
1,238,000/ 70 (ZZF — 4 : R
4RA B8 HN1,524,00087T) * £ B
AR IRITE AT ST
RS 2 2 RIRTT AR A B U A
H TS o

R-T—-N\E+-HA=+—H%
MIBRZHE

2018 2017
—E-N\E —TtF
HK$000 HK$'000
FETT FET
638,211 —

- 680,568

668,018 808,876
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B B R B A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BHEZE T —\F+_A=+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. MKEKRERE (&)
(Continued)
()  Fair values (H AFE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial AEB2eREERSRABBRES
assets and financial liabilities as reflected in the Bk R R 2 BRE A E B E R
consolidated statement of financial position ZEZAFE-

approximate their respective fair values.

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 7. AFEEE
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell AFEEMS2EECERFTEB8HES
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly FREFPHEEEMF KM LEZE G
transaction between market participants at the FHER - TXHRBEFTRAATFTESERTE
measurement date. The following disclosures of fair HAFE AETEAFENGBET AR
value measurements use a fair value hierarchy that Rk A= EL&R :

categorises into three levels the inputs to valuation
techniques used to measure fair value:

Level 1 inputs: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active F1E - AEBE NG E HHHER
markets for identical assets or ZHEREERAERER
liabilities that the Group can access M52 ME CRERAE) -

at the measurement date.

Level 2 inputs: inputs other than quoted prices F2fE : F—EAMERERREN
included within Level 1 that are Hh - BENBEEE KM
observable for the asset or liability, EERGH 228 -

either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs: unobservable inputs for the asset or el 5 BEXBEIABRE L2
liability. & o

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and AEENHRKAERBESHE LA S

transfers out of any of the three levels as of the date BEEENE M = ERFEARE LB -

of the event or change in circumstances that caused
the transfer.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B R R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T—\F+-_A=+—HILFE

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

(Continued)

(@) Disclosures of level in fair value

7. DV EFEGE)

(a) AFEFRFRBIEE -

hierarchy:
Fair value measurement using: Total
AFEFEFA Yy
Description IEH Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2018
E1E E2/E $IE —F—-N\EF
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FETT FET FET
Recurring fair value TEEMEAFENE:
measurements:
Leasehold land HETH
Commercial [ES
— Hong Kong - B - - 56,370 56,370
Commercial e
— the PRC — HE - - 153,400 153,400
Total &t - - 209,770 209,770
Fair value measurement using: Total
NFEFTEMA g
Description 1HH Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2017
F1E EofE FIE —T—LF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET FHBT THET
Recurring fair value BEHEATENE
measurements:
Leasehold land HELH
Commercial e
— Hong Kong — BB = = 55,630 55,630
Commercial [EES
— the PRC — fE - — 146,400 146,400
Total CEl — - 202,030 202,030

Annual Report 2018 =& — )\ & 3§




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
5 B R B ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE=-T—/\F+=-_A=+—HILFE

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 7. DAY EFEGE)
(Continued)
(b) Reconciliation of assets measured at (b) REBEE=BAFEIEMNSEYH
fair value based on level 3: fR :

Properties held
for own use

— Leasehold 2018
land Total
FHIEERYME —B—N\EF
— HEL gt
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEi Fi&T
At beginning of year F4 202,030 202,030
Recognised in profit or loss: RIBERER :
Depreciation charge for FRREER AR
the year recognised in cost —MRRITHFAXF
of sales and general and ERZTERY
administrative expenses (5,786) (5,786)
Gain on revaluation of HETHEBESERZ
leasehold land Wz 265 265
Recognised in other comprehensive 7 £ i & [ U =5 7 #ER
income:
Exchange differences on BMEBINEBEEZ
translating foreign operations & 5 EF (7,597) (7,597)
Surplus on revaluation of HELHEBEEM
leasehold land B ER 20,858 20,858
At end of year FR 209,770 209,770
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A B R I ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-_T—/\F+ A=+ —ALFE

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 7. AFEFE(E)
(Continued)
(b) Reconciliation of assets measured at (b) REBEFE=BAFEHFIEMNEEH
fair value based on level 3: BR : (8)

(Continued)

Properties held

for own use
— Leasehold 2017
land Total
FIEEAME —E—t5F
— s+ st
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FET
At beginning of year F1)) 244,474 244 474
Additions NE 15,380 15,380
Disposal of a subsidiary HENB AR (76,116) (76,116)
Recognised in profit or loss: RiBmE P RER
Depreciation charge for FARBEENAR—
the year recognised in cost M RATH A S R
of sales and general and ZIERX
administrative expenses (5,882) (5,882)
Deficit in revaluation of HETwEESEMZ
leasehold land &8 (578) (578)
Recognised in other comprehensive 7 £ b & [ Uk 25 7 fERR.
income:
Exchange differences on BREBINEBEEZ
translating foreign operations b N Z=%8 9,735 9,735
Surplus on revaluation of HETwEESEMZ
leasehold land ik 15,017 15,017
At end of year FR 202,030 202,030
The total gains or losses recognised in other PE M2 W e R T RR 2 B R 38
comprehensive income are presented in surplus BIRireEakEMmEmkmEi T
on revaluation of leasehold land and exchange ZHEETHEEEGH BB RIRES
differences on translating foreign operations in INETFEEZEHZRET -
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.
The total gains or losses recognised in profit or R N IR 2 B e S 1B T 4R
loss are presented in cost of sales, general BHEBmKRPIHEKE  — B RITE
and administrative expenses and other A REMEERSY RIEZET -

operating expenses and income in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B B R B A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-_ZT—\F+-_A=+—RALLFE

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
(Continued)

(b)

(c)

Reconciliation of assets measured at
fair value based on level 3:
(Continued)

All the gains or losses recognised in profit or
loss for the year were attributable to the
unrealised gain and loss of the leasehold land
held at the end of the reporting period.

Disclosure of valuation process used
by the Group and valuation techniques
and inputs used in fair value
measurements at 31 December 2018:
The Group’s financial controller is responsible
for the fair value measurements of assets and
liabilities required for financial reporting
purposes, including Level 3 fair value
measurements. The financial controller reports
directly to the Board of Directors for these fair
value measurements. Discussions of valuation
processes and results are held between the
financial controller and the Board of Directors
at least twice a year.

For Level 3 fair value measurements, the Group
will normally engage external valuation experts
with the recognised professional qualifications
and recent experience to perform the
valuations.

Key unobservable inputs used in level 3 fair
value measurements are mainly adjusted
accommodation value/price per square metre/
square feet of the PRC and Hong Kong
leasehold land estimated based on recent
market transactions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A B R I ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T—\F+-_A=+—HILFE

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 7. AVEFE (&)

(Continued)

(c) Disclosure of valuation process used (c) R=ZFE—N\E+ZH=+—HBXK
by the Group and valuation techniques SEMRANGEEFRAFE
and inputs used in fair value FFEFRFRANEERDERZ2E
measurements at 31 December 2018: WEE : (48)

(Continued)
Level 3 fair value measurements EEEATHERE
Fair value
AT
Effect on
fair value
Valuation for increase
Description technique Unobservable inputs Range of comparables of inputs 2018 2017
syEng
] fEERE TTRENSY THEEE AFEMHE e D CTE
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Land use rights in Direct comparison  Adjusted accommodation ~ RMB1,479/square metre Increase 13,300 14,400
Egongling Vilage, approach valug per square metre -RMB,538/square metre #m
Pinghu Town, BRLBE taking into account the (2017: RMB1,527/square metre
Shenzhen City, differences from the -RMBH,743/square metre)
the PRC comparables with BYRKARE 41912 B TR X
PEMImTRERLE respect fo location, size,  ARE15387T (2514
Rt EmE tenure and yield rate Sy YN AR Il
BEZBWHERTI 0% AAREA,1437)
Hit RRERRYE
REERNBTIREE
BEAEHR
Land use rights in Direct comparison  Adjusted price per square  RMB580/square metre Increase 131,100 125,600
Western District of approach metre taking into -RMB594/square mefre 1
Daya By, Huzhou ~ ERILEE account the differences  (2017: RMB522/square metre
City, the PRC from the comparables -RMB535/square metre)
HEENATERRA with respect to location,  SFARAREEB0TEEFFARA
TiERE size, tenure and yield R¥o04 (ZE3—+F: 5TS
rate KARBSRTERETRAR

BEEAYELHING . %57
i EE TG
E22NETHANS
ER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B B R B A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-_ZT—\F+-_A=+—RALLFE

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 7. AFEFE(E)

(Continued)

(c) Disclosure of valuation process used () R=ZFE—NE+ZZH=+—HBXK
by the Group and valuation techniques ESEMERANGEEFRAFE
and inputs used in fair value FFEFRFRANEESERZ2E M
measurements at 31 December 2018: WEE - (48)

(Continued)
Level 3 fair value measurements EZEATEHER=E(E)
(Continued)
Fair value
AFE
Effect on
fair value
Valuation for increase
Description technique Unobservable inputs Range of comparables of inputs 2017
syEng
EH thiERHE AIRENEY Tt HEE AFENFE “3-+t%
HK$'000
A7
Land use rights in Direct comparison  Adjusted price per square  RMB144/square metre Increase 9,000 6,400
Wuhu Ciy, approach metre (2017: Adusted -RMB386/square metre i
Anhui Province, ERIEE price per square metre)  (2017: RMB144/square metre
the PRC taking into account the -RMB180/square metre)
PEEHEERTN L diferences from the  BEFRARBIUTETETRA
R comparables with R3O (Z5—t4: 574
respect to location, sz,  AARBIUTEEEARAR
tenure and yield rate #1807T)
BEBMHRTI %
B EREIRNE
EEENGTHALH
BER(ZZ-1%:§
ThREAZER)
Land use rights in Direct comparison  Adjusted price per square  HK$11,480/square fest Increase 40,730 39,930
Bilion Centre, approach feet taking into account ~ -HK$13,906/square fest %m
Kowoon Bay, ERIBE the diferences from the  (2017: HK$11,480/square feet
Hong Kong comparables with -HK$13,906/square feet)
EANEEERP LY respect {0 location and & FR11 48025 AR
THERE size 130068 (Z5—+5: 5T

G W YL AR 40ETEEEAR
ZENETAREAE  13906%T)
B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A B R I ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T—\F+-_A=+—HILFE

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 7. AFEFE(E)

(Continued)

(c) Disclosure of valuation process used (c) R=ZFE—N\E+ZH=+—HBXK
by the Group and valuation techniques SEMRANGEEFRAFE
and inputs used in fair value FFEFRFRANEERDERZ2E
measurements at 31 December 2018: WEE : (48)

(Continued)
Level 3 fair value measurements EZEATEER=E(E)
(Continued)
Fair value
AT
Effect on
fair value
Valuation for increase
Description technique Unobservable inputs Range of comparables of inputs 2018 2017
syEns
] ERE TIRENEY TLHEE ATENYE P D CT-tF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Land use rights in Direct comparison ~ Adjusted price per souare  HK$4,920/square fest Increase 15,640 15,700
Kinetic Industrial approach feet taking into account -HK$7,168/square fest E1
Centre, BRI the differences from the  (2017: HK$4,856/square feet
Kowloon Bay, comparables with -HK$6,689/square feet)
Hong Kong respect to location and ~ §F A R420ETEETAR
BENERENTEH L sz 71688 (Z5—tE  §TS
MibERE BapathowEREE  R4856ETEETARG660%
EENBTARERE 7
i
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B B A% R R MY ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-_ZT—\F+-_A=+—RALLFE

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
(Continued)

(c) Disclosure of valuation process used
by the Group and valuation techniques
and inputs used in fair value
measurements at 31 December 2018:
(Continued)

Level 3 fair value measurements
(Continued)

The fair value of leasehold land held for own use
located in the PRC and Hong Kong is
determined using direct comparison approach
by reference to recent sales price of comparable
leasehold land on an accommodation value per
metre or price per square metre/square feet
basis, adjusted for a premium or a discount
specific to the quality of the Group’s leasehold
land compared to the recent sales. Higher
premium for higher quality land will result in a
higher fair value measurement.

During the two years, there were no changes in
the valuation techniques used.

8. REVENUE

(a) Disaggregation of revenue
The Group is principally engaged in the
manufacture and sale of zinc, magnesium and
aluminium alloy die casting and plastic injection
products and components, trading of lighting
products and home appliances.

Disaggregation of revenue derived from the
transfer of goods and services over time and at
a point in time is as follows:

7. DFVEFEGE)

(c)

8. WA

(a)

R-ZT—-N\E+A=+—8B=%X
SEMERANGEEEFRAEE
sFEFMERANGELERZEHH
W - (8)

FZEATEER)

NRFEEREERBIFEANEEL
WHRFEDNERERLEEAEE
ERC2EALBHEE I BHHE
&I REEERKE T IR F
TRER  UERAKEHEELHNE
B8R 3 S LB Bl B R B e
FELPE -2HELHAZTARS
HE - WAEERRSNRAFEFER
1B -

AFREEE T » B8 PR B 1 E 7 3 1
£8 -

PN 5 )
AEEEERSLEEREER &R
BETERE ERIEEMMETR
H RPAERMRERELES -

AEENRN —BRERRNE RS
BEmERBELEWASTFAOT

2018 2017
Timing of revenue recognition W\ f&EBE: —E—-N\F —ET—tF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FETT FET

Products transferred at a point RE-—RHERER
in time 1,643,024 1,738,738
Products transferred over time R—EEEEZER 209,305 —
1,852,329 1,738,738
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

8.

REVENUE (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Disaggregation of revenue (Continued)
Disaggregation of revenue from major products
are as follows:

e B R R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T—\F+-_A=+—HILFE

8. WA (G&R)

(a)

A5 ()
KEXTBERZBADHFAT :

2018 2017

Types of products ERES —EZ—N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000

FEIT FET

Die casting products BREE® 872,338 967,887
Plastic injection products PBRRF B E 718,311 605,705
Moulds HE 207,600 133,074
Others EAh 54,080 32,072
1,852,329 1,738,738

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 using
the cumulative effect method. Under this
method, the comparative information is not
restated and was prepared in accordance with
HKAS 18.

Transaction price allocated to the
remaining performance obligation for
contracts with customers

The transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially
unsatisfied) as at 31 December 2018 and the
expected timing of recognising revenue as
follows:

(b)

AEEERARFEZEEINERER
BN GEREERNEG - RIEZT
E o LBRENLESD - RREEE
B ERFE 18RS -

SEEEFSVNAGERAHTE
83X 5 fEE

RZE-N\FEFTZA=+—HAEREE
FIERB A B E CREBITHED REST)
#1325 B A% 12 M s M A Y T8 HA B e 40
T

Sales of goods
HEER
HK$'000

FET

Within one year
More than one year

—FRA
—FE

35,241
156,998

192,239
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B B A% R R MY ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE=-T—/\F+=-_A=+—HILFE

9. OTHER INCOME 9. HMWA
2018 2017
—E-0\%F —ET—+tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEiT FET
Interest income on bank deposits R1T1F A B U A 300 354
Rental income He A 176 140
Reimbursement from customers RE R E 11,994 9,955
Compensation from suppliers HEREmEE 598 —
Sales of scrap materials FERISHE 3,290 1,565
Government grants BT & 2,679 3,260
Others Eith 1,863 1,396
20,900 16,670
Government grants mainly comprised unconditional HEE e ZRERGGEIEREEZ
support for subsidising the Group’s research and M2 &R -
development.
10. SEGMENT INFORMATION 10. 7 EEF

For management purposes, the Group’s operation is
currently categorised into six (2017: six) operating
divisions — zinc, magnesium, aluminium alloy die
casting, plastic injection products and components,
as well as trading of lighting products and home
appliances. These divisions are the basis of the
Group’s five reportable segments. The Group’s
reportable segments are strategic business units that
offer different products. They are managed separately
because each business requires different technology
and different cost measurement.

The Group’s other operating segments include
trading of lighting products and home appliances.
None of these segments meets any of the
quantitative thresholds for determining reportable
segments. The information of these other operating
segments is included in the ‘Others’ column.

Segment profits or losses do not include interest
income, corporate income, gain on disposal of a
subsidiary, share of losses of associates, corporate
expenses, finance costs and income tax expense.

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited = & B B2 = i G R A &
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B R R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T—\F+-_A=+—HILFE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 10. S EEH (&)
Information about reportable segment profit ERBBRFNBEZELNOT :
or loss:

Magnesium Aluminium
Zinc alloy alloy die alloy die Plastic
die casting casting casting injection Others Total

He2BE GesBE  BeeBE  RiE Rt L
HKSO00  HKSO00  KKSO00  HKSU00  HKSUOD  HKSUOD
FEL FET FET FEL FET FET

Year ended 31 December 2018 HE=F-\%

tZA=t-BLEE
Revenue from external customers ~ REINRR P AIMA 168,362 561,695 161,303 906,369 54,080 1,852,329
Segment profi AEER 9,119 40,198 3,076 86,734 5,449 145,476
Depreciation and amortisation NEREH 351 29,511 4712 42,029 312 80,135
Impairment losses on property, % BERaERE
plant and equipment BE 1,369 2,492 - - - 3,861
Impairment losses on investments in - REEE ATz REHERE
associates - - - - 1,652 1,652

Magnesium Aluminium

Zinc alloy alloy die alloy die Plastic
die casting casting casting injection Qthers Total
#aeBE  GAEEE  BRtEE ) i Hfh 2y

HKS'000 HK$1000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$1000 HKS'000
TET TEL TET TET TEL TET

Year ended 31 December 2017 HZE-Z—+%

TZRA=T-ALEE
Revenue from external customers  RESMREFHMHA 203,685 588,843 201,928 712,210 32,072 1738,738
Segment proft/{oss) ABEH/ (B8 6,476 (24,566) 2,149 41,362 (3,110) 2311
Depreciation and amortisation NEREH 5,007 33,970 6,319 39,576 77 85,439
Impaiment losses on property, 9% - BERRXEREEE
plant and equipment - 8,752 - - - 8,752
Restructuring expenses (aofe) EQABRE(WE) = 25,696 - - — 25,696
Note: The amount was included in general and administrative Hiat - Z—REREEGTA—RRITEASZH ©

expenses which is one-off in nature.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
5 B R B ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-_ZT—\F+-_A=+—RALLFE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 10. S EEH (&)
Reconciliation of reportable segment SRS EIBUCN - BFIFEIE Z HER -

revenue, profit or loss:

2018 2017
—E-N\EF —T—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Revenue 1PN
Total revenue of reportable segments 2R 28 2 42U A 1,852,329 1,738,738
Unallocated amounts Rkt gE] - —
Consolidated revenue e WA 1,852,329 1,738,738
2018 2017
—E-N\%F T+t F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE FETT
Profit or loss okl oF |
Total profit of reportable segments E2 D 548 % F 145,476 22,311
Unallocated amounts: NOEHE -
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HENB AW - 96,011
Share of losses of associates oS N RE R (146) (325)
Interest income FLE WA 300 354
Finance costs A& AR (13,167) (16,115)
Income tax expense FriS & F 2 (12,505) (45,862)
Corporate income TEKA 205 86
Corporate expenses TEMRAX (6,761) (20,329)
Consolidated profit for the year F NERE i A 113,402 36,131
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B R R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T—\F+-_A=+—HILFE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 10. D EBER ()
Reconciliation of reportable segment ERSEBUN  BRFIHEEZHER :
revenue, profit or loss: (Continued) (#8)
2018 2017
—E-N\FE —E—+F
HK$°000 HK$000
F&T FET
Other material items HiMEXIEH
— depreciation and amortisation = — ITE R
Total depreciation and amortisation 2R/ P48 & I
of reportable segments 80,135 85,439
Unallocated amounts: TOEHE :
Depreciation of property, plant and ERMEE - HER
equipment for corporate use REinE 1,906 1,735
Consolidated depreciation and REITE K
amortisation 82,041 87,174
Geographical information: wEEH :
Revenue
KA
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—tF
HK$°000 HK$'000
F&T FET
Hong Kong BB 225,467 264,145
The PRC except Hong Kong R (BABBRIN 686,395 705,186
Japan SN 25,775 34,891
USA = 759,589 587,384
Others Hh, 155,103 147,132
Consolidated total e 1,852,329 1,738,738

In presenting the geographical information, revenue is
based on the locations of the customers.

The Group’s non-current assets by geographical
areas are not presented as the aggregate amount of
the geographical segments other than the PRC is
less than 10% (2017: less than 10%) of the
aggregate amount of all segments.

25 R AR - WA R AR S ) E 5
e

ARBRTBEINE DR IR EELR
SHEIGMBN B ZRELN10% (ZF—+
F:AR10%)  FIRAEBEREIRIRZ
5l
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B B R A R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-_ZT—\F+-_A=+—RALLFE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 10.

Revenue from major customers:

2 EPE R ()

REEEERZHBA :

Zinc alloy die casting segment HE BB
Customer a ®Fa
Customer b =Fb
Customer ¢ ®Fc

Magnesium alloy die casting segment 4 & B 5 26
Customer ¢ ®Fc
Customer e %Fe

Aluminium alloy die casting segment 84 & B85 5 2

Customer a ®Fa
Customer e %Fe

Plastic injection segment BRBIEE &
Customer b =Fb
Customer a XPFa
Customer d =Pd

2018 2017
—F—-N\EF —E—+F
HK$°000 HK$'000
F#EiT FE T
87,378 103,742
40,508 39,066
- 2,367
43,945 87,378
339,388 253,514
81,317 114,663
161 2,265
80,798 106,196
- 1,177
700,003 518,229
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A B R I ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T—\F+-_A=+—HILFE

11. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES AND 1. HKERIRKRA
INCOME
2018 2017
—E-)N\F —E—+tF
HK$°000 HK$000
FEiT FETT
Allowance for inventories FERE 18,890 415
Bad debts written off 2 AR i8R 655 61
Impairment losses on amounts due  JEUCEE & A RIZIBREEE
from associates — 2,934
Impairment losses on deposit paid B & e BEEE 1,364 =
Impairment losses on property, Y% eSS REREZ
plant and equipment BEEE 3,861 8,752
Impairment losses on investments REEE R AR EREEE
in associates 1,652 —
Loss/(Gain) on disposal of property, HE¥ZE  #E K
plant and equipment w2 EE (Kas) 486 (84)
Property, plant and equipment YIZ - 25 R e
written off 238 8,632
(Gain on)/Deficit in revaluation of land =+ E % (Ykzs), BB (265) 578
26,881 21,288
12. FINANCE COSTS 12. BEKA
2018 2017
—E-0\F —E—+tF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FETT
Interest expenses on bank borrowings #&f& & F| 8.5 2 13,167 16,115
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B B R B A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-_ZT—\F+-_A=+—RALLFE

12. FINANCE COSTS (Continued) 12. REKZ (&)
The analysis shows the finance costs of bank BADMIRBRITEROBMEKRE - B
borrowings including bank borrowings which contain 1B 1% B 515 5 Bk B0 3% E TR A8 RKER 2 B
a repayment on demand clause, in accordance with BREXKEERFEFINBRITER #HEZET
the agreed scheduled repayments dates set out in —NERZFE—tFFT_A=+T—HI%F
the loan agreements. For the years ended 31 & B R EREE G RITE RN
December 2018 and 2017, the interest on bank #3#96,576,0007% 7T }29,347,000/& T °

borrowings which contain a repayment on demand
clause amounted to approximately HK$6,576,000
and HK$9,347,000 respectively.

13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 13. FTEHIRAX
2018 2017
—T-N\F —E
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Current tax B EA % 18
— Hong Kong Profits Tax — BBNEH
Provision for the year REEZ R 17,467 16,936
(Over)/Under-provision in prior years B FE (BBEEEE),/
BETRE (2,303) 294
Current tax BN EA % 18
— Income tax outside Hong Kong — BBLINRIETE
Provision for the year REFZEME 10,099 11,435
Capital gain tax arising from HHEHBARESE
disposal of a subsidiary 2 BEIRET - 13,727
Withholding tax arising from HEERBARZM
dividend payment of a disposed IR B EE 7 TERH
subsidiary — 3,118
(Over)/Under-provision in prior years  BEFE (BBEEME),
BETR (167) 265
Deferred tax (note 32) RETIA (K15132) (12,591) 87
Income tax expense Fr 5 5 2 12,505 45,862
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

13.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at a rate
of 16.5% (2017: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable
profits of Hong Kong incorporated subsidiaries for the
year ended 31 December 2018.

On 21 March 2018, the Inland Revenue
(Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017, which introduces a
two-tiered profits tax regime, was substantively
enacted. Under the two-tiered profits tax regime, the
first HK$2 million of assessable profits of qualifying
corporations will be taxed at 8.25% with effect from
the year assessment 2018/2019. Profits above HK$2
million will continue to be subject to the tax rate of
16.5%.

Under the PRC Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT”)
Law, the statutory tax rate for the Group’s
subsidiaries established and operating in Mainland
China is 25% (2017: 25%).

Income tax on overseas profit has been calculated
on the estimated assessable profit for the year at the
rates of taxation prevailing on the overseas countries
in which the Group operates.

According to the PRC EIT Law, withholding tax at a
rate of 10% would be imposed on dividend payment
relating to profits earned from year 2008 onwards to
foreign investors for the companies established in the
PRC. Such tax rate may be further reduced by
applicable tax treaties or arrangements.

Capital gain tax of the PRC was charged at a
withholding tax rate of 10% based on the surplus of
the sales proceed from the disposal of a subsidiary
over the investment cost of that subsidiary.

e B R R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-_T—/\F+ A=+ —ALFE

FreBim= (&)
BHE-_Z-N\FE+-_BA=1+—HILEEZ
BEBNEHREBEESEMMBEAR 2 Mt
JE AR B i A LA B R 16.6% (—Z F — + 4F ¢
16.5%) {E L B -

13.

—E-N\F=ZAZF+—H [ZZ2—tFH
BUEE)(BLHR) KAIERIEEE LHITE
NETMRFETHEE - BRIBEMRAFEH
HE 2T ZE-NFHEFER
HEBRNCEZE _BEBTZERM
A I28.25% B F o — A BB LA L 2R
) 15 4 4B 12 16.5% =FR »

BRIEPBECEMERHE  ZEBRFBREKX
BERK S N 38 2 B A B Z A E TR R 525%
—E—+F 1 25%)

S HNI R 2 B 1S BR 18 4 O 1 3 AR SR B i
FIBA A o B 08 2 8 SN R 2 AT B
o

BREBPEIEMERE  IMEREEH—
ZTN\FRERPBEKL AR RIHE
MR 2 BB ST A G I 10% BB © 3%
MEBARIZERARBG RO L HE—F
BEAK ©

R H &I E QR Y3 B WA B R ARZ
BRARMKREKRAFTE  hEMNEXREE
BIZ10% O FRIR R KT E -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B B R B A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # ZE—2%

13.

W \eETreE = el s ARE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 13. Fr8BiMA ()

The reconciliation between the income tax expense
and the product of profit before tax multiplied by the MEFTEMSERNERNOT ¢

Hong Kong Profits Tax rate is as follows:

115 B¢ 7 S BB B¢ A& A SR LA B B A 15

i

2018 2017
—E-N\EF —+%F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Profit before tax BR 54 A1 A 125,907 81,993
Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate at 1Z& 8 B £ 16.5%
16.5% (2017: 16.5%) (ZZF—+F :16.5%)
FTEOBIEA 20,775 13,529
Tax effect of expenses that are not  TRIFNFF X T = £
deductible 11,006 12,847
Tax effect of income that is not BARBMWMA BTG E
taxable (5,923) (6,102)
Tax effect of temporary differences not KR E I = £ W75
recognised 4 (5,313) (354)
Tax effect of share of losses of BowE AR BE 2T
associates 2 24 54
Tax effect of recognition of tax losses AT Al A AER 2 Fi 15 B 18
not previously recognised 2GR E (7,239) -
Tax effect of tax losses not RERBEEE 2 MG 2
recognised 3,154 35,446
Utilisation of tax losses not previously & Fl 5 Al & 3R 2 F4 18
recognised Bz e (2,016) (4,678)
Withholding tax arising from dividend & & /R Bl Fff B8 A & 37 1+
payment/undistributed profits of a IR B 5 B )
PRC subsidiary FrEA 2 B - 3,118
(Over)/Under-provision in prior years @ EE (FBEEEE),/
BETR (2,470) 559
(Under)/Over-provision for current year AFEE (BETE),/
AR (2,037) 1,027
Tax effect of two-tiered tax rate FRAR TR 2R 2 T o (165) -
Tax effect of different tax rates of B AR TR R 2R
subsidiaries A 2,709 (9,584)
Income tax expense Fr 5% 5 2 12,505 45,862
In addition to the amount charged to profit or loss, BREBRRIEIN RFAREE2HE

deferred tax relating to the revaluation of the Group’s

leasehold land during the year has been charged to = HIER o

other comprehensive income.

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited = & B B2 = i G R A &

THEGZEREENACEEMEERK



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A B R I ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T—/\F+_A=+—ALLFE

14. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 14, FR=EF
The Group’s profit for the year is stated after AEBFERZBFBMERGEA) THF
charging/(crediting) the following: 8 :
2018 2017
—E-N\%F —T—+F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FE FA&ET
Allowance for inventories (note (a)) FERE (Kit@E) 18,890 415
Auditor’s remuneration 1% SR B 1,770 1,750
Bad debts written off (note (a)) EERRMEE (At @) 655 61
Cost of inventories sold (note (b)) EEFEKA (Kt b)) 1,347,447 1,360,457
(Gain on)/Deficit in revaluation of land 1 E il (Yez5), &8
(note (a)) (K17t (a) (265) 578
Depreciation of property, VI SRR EITE
plant and equipment 82,041 87,174
Impairment losses on amounts due & U B & A B R IER B 518
from associates (note (a)) (H1:# (@) - 2,934
Impairment losses on deposit paid Bt e R EEE
(note (a)) (K17t (a) 1,364 —
Impairment losses on property, YIZ - HES R ERE
plant and equipment (note (a)) &8 (K7at(a) 3,861 8,752
Impairment losses on trade B S EBGIERERSE
receivables (note (a)) (H1:# (@) 132 764
Impairment losses on investments in  F B & A FR B REE B
associates (note (a)) (Hit(a) 1,652 —
Net exchange loss b 5% E5 18 9,418 2,038
Net loss/(gain) on disposal of property, HE¥ZE - #e3 MR E
plant and equipment FEE (W)
(note (a)) (H1:# (@) 486 (84)
Property, plant and equipment YIZ - 25 KRR i EE
written off (note (a)) (K17t (a) 238 8,632
Operating lease charges in respect of +Tih MEZEY P AE
land and buildings and B EREST
office equipment 7,900 7,487
Other fees paid to the auditor of AR A% SRR 2
the Company HiBMH 353 443
Reversal of impairment losses on B2 EBGIRREBE
trade receivables (note (a)) B £ (£ (@) (764) —
Research and development o RFEEZ W ()
expenditure (note (c)) 768 8,479
Restructuring expenses (note (d)) BHREA (Ki() - 25,696

Annual Report 2018 =& — /\F F i




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B B R B A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-_ZT—\F+-_A=+—RALLFE

14. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR (Continued) 14. FREF (E)
Note: Kt
(@) These amounts were included in other operating expenses (@) ZEFHEBFAEMEERI RKAR -
and income.
(o) Cost of inventories sold includes staff costs and depreciation (b) CEGERABIEE TRARTELD
of approximately HK$394,038,000 (2017: HK$408,098,000), 394,038,000%%(:§_t¢ : 408,098,0005%
which are included in the amounts disclosed separately ) HEELREHBR EX B E15HE o

above and in note 15.

(© Research and development expenditure includes staff costs (©) HE-T—tF+-A=+—BLLFE HxE
of approximately HK$2,267,000, which are included in the EAZZEFRBERMF15B I KBNS TK
amounts disclosed separately in note 15 for the year ended AR#92,267,0008 7T ° AEFFERBEEIXABIE
31 December 2017. No staff costs were included in the EZZEA °

expenditures for current year.

(d) The amount was included in general and administrative (d T IREFRE A~ RRATHAR
expenses which is one-off in nature.
15. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE 15. EERAIBEX
2018 2017
—FT-N\E —E—tF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FEiT FET
Employee benefits expense EERAFSZ (TEREES
(excluding directors’ emoluments): ) :
Salaries, bonuses and allowances i - TEAL RO RE 416,429 437,643
Retirement benefit scheme RRAE FIE S (51
contributions 24,732 30,973
Other benefits H b 48 A 41,172 33,783

482,333 502,399
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A B R I ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T—/\F+_A=+—ALLFE

15. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE 15. BEERAFAX (&)
(Continued)
Five highest paid individuals LEaeeHMAL
The five highest paid individuals in the Group during FALEBNAEZESTMATBERA
the year included two (2017: three) directors whose —E—tF ZR)EEF FEMNEFERE
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented in HRMEF1I6H DM REZ = —N\F
note 16. The emoluments of the remaining three TZA=T—HLEFERT=E(ZZE—+
(2017: two) individuals for the year ended 31 F WA R TMATHEISHT :

December 2018 are set out below:

2018 2017
—E—-)\FE —T—+tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Basic salaries and allowances FAR B K2 B 4,396 2,935
Discretionary bonus B 15 TEAL 1,184 —
Retirement benefits scheme RRAE A FT B R

contributions 54 36
5,634 2,971

The emoluments fell within the following bands: BN T A TEE :

Number of individuals

A8
2018 2017
—E-N\%F —ZE—+tF
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 L=
1,500,0007% 7T - 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 L=
2,000,000/ 7T 2 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 8T E
2,500,0007% 7T 1 —
During the year, no emoluments were paid by the FAAEEVERZEZRT AL
Group to any of these highest paid individuals as an SEEE{A] 7 5 0N B 7N 52 (B 5 ok 2 14 ) 22 B sk
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as BEBOEE 2z -

compensation for loss of office.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
5 B R B ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T— \F+-_A=+—ALFE

16. ESREFN KA =

16. BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF

DIRECTORS
(a) Emoluments of directors (a) EEME
The emoluments of each director were as FEEHOMN2OT
follows:
Estimated
money  Retirement
Salaries value henefits
and Discretionary of other scheme
Fees allowances bonus benefits  contributions
RN
&% BHER
Narme of director L & FeREM  BERL BE AR &t
HK$000 HK$'000 HKS$000  HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
(note i)
(Htii)
Year ended 31 December 2018~ BE=F-\%
tzRz1-8
Executive directors HiTEe
Mr. Lee £y 0 - 3,101 835 - 18 3,054
Dr. WONG Cheong Yiu frofe / mERET W) - 1,583 - - 9 1,502
Mr. WONG Wing Chuen EKREE - 1,666 448 - 18 2132
Independent non-executive BIEHTES
directors
Professor SUN Kai Lit, Cliff 385, o B&(7I2Rees o 180 - - - - 180
Ir Dr. LO Wai Kwok $BS, MH, Jp EREELss w-p 180 - - - - 180
Mr. KONG Kai Chuen, Frankie (formerly AN %4 (RITRIL 1)
known as Kong To Yeung, Frankie 180 - - - - 180
Mr. Andrew LOOK BRLE 180 - - - - 180
Total for 2018 ZE-\Efr 720 6,350 1,283 - 45 8,398
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A B R I ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T—/\F+_A=+—ALLFE

Y

16. BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF 16. EBEA KA = (8)

DIRECTORS (Continued)

(a) Emoluments of directors (Continued) (a) EEMNE(E)
Estimated
money  Retirement
Salaries value benefits
and  Discretionary of other scheme
Fees  allowances bonus benefits  contrbutions Total
H g FIEY
fErE®  RIEEN
Name of director R we HeREE BERL EBE  Hyiz &t
HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000
FAT AT FAT FAT AT AT
(note I}
(W)
Year ended 31 December 2017 HE_2-tF
t-A=t-F
Executive directors HEs
Mr. Lee £ = 3,003 = 199 18 3220
Dr. WONG Cheong Yiu (1ot / ZEREL W) = 2175 - - 37 2212
Mr. WONG Wing Chuen ExEE = 1614 = 139 18 1,771
Independent non-executive drectors U FHTES
Professor SUN Kai Lit, Cliff 88s, o FE(ZIZKees o 180 = = = = 180
Ir Dr. LO Wai Kwok S5, bH, J° EEEELos M 180 = = = = 180
Mr. KONG Kai Chuen, Frankie IR& %% (FIRLER)
(formerly known as Kong To
Yeung, Frankie) 180 - - - - 180
Mr. Ancrew LOOK BERLE 180 = = = = 180
Total for 2017 “E-tEE 720 6,792 = 338 73 7923
Note: it
0] Dr. Wong Cheong Yiu was also the chief executive 0 RERBLIRNAZE_T—+F+=A
officer of the Company during the year ended 31 =+ —BNAARFITREE LA
December 2017 and his emoluments disclosed BE 2 H MBI RITR AR R
above include those services rendered by him as BHe - R=F—\FXA—8 &
chief executive officer. On 1 June 2018, he stepped RERTRANRZ BT BDEETAA
down from his position as chief executive officer, but RAZHTES - ARAZEFE R
remains as an executive director of the Company. EFFRAERBEETRARORE -
Mr. Lee, the chairman and an executive director of BEERAZTEAANERI
the Company, have taken up the duties of chief
executive officer temporarily until a suitable candidate
is appointed.
(i) Estimated money values of other benefits include cars (i Hip@Am bt B EERRESER

of the Group used by the directors. MR E TS o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B B A% R R MY ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-_ZT—\F+-_A=+—RALLFE

16. BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF 16. EFTBM R A= (&)
DIRECTORS (Continued)
(a) Emoluments of directors (Continued) (a) EFEME(E)
There were no arrangements under which a EENARFEABEELREK
director waived or agreed to waive any RENEEAMSHOZH (2%
emoluments during the year (2017: Nil). — L FE) o
During the year, no emoluments were paid by FRAEBEVERERNES
the Group to any of the directors as an S AHE A VE A& 0N BR 7K & B B sk
inducement to join or upon joining the Group 2B SRR S B R B B o
or as compensation for loss of office.
(b) Directors’ material interests in (b) FEERXS  ZHFEHSP
transactions, arrangement or By E K
contracts
Save as the continuing connected transactions Br &3 4R & B 75 R = M9 51 40
as disclosed in note 40 to the consolidated ZRBREI ST ESEIN
financial statements, no significant transactions, RERKFEANETAER QD
arrangements and contracts in relation to the AL 5T 37 (R e B AN A [ S 7S
Group’s business to which the Company was a BEMARAIEEREBEA
party and in which a director of the Company TREPEEXEZEREEEKXR
and the director’s connected party had a BHNEARS « WHEREH o
material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.
17. DIVIDENDS 17. RE
2018 2017
—B-0\E —EF
HK$°000 HK$’000
F#EiT FET
2017 Final of HK1.0 cent T FREKRE
(2017: 2016 Final HK1.0 cent) R0
per ordinary share (ZE—tF:
T AFERERE
BR%1.0781L) 8,938 8,938
Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, final R EHETER  ARREEEERE
dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December REEZE_ZT—N\F+_HA=1T—"HBIEFE
2018 of HKB3.5 cents per share totalling 2 REAIR B FR%38.57 L £ & 4931,282,000
approximately HK$31,282,000 has been proposed by BT IREBFARR AR FEE R R
the Board of Directors of the Company and is RERE EHE -

subject to approval by the shareholders of the
Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A B R I ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T—/\F+_A=+—ALLFE

18. EARNINGS PER SHARE 18. BREF
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per BRERARESANIZETHIE

share is based on the following:

2018 2017
—FT-0\E —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Earnings &z
Profit attributable to owners of the ARFTESREAREER
Company, used in the basic and Mz ARRRERFE AJE
diluted earnings per share 167 A1
calculation 113,556 33,998
Number of shares e E

Weighted average number of ordinary FRFTESREREF 2
shares used in basic earnings per D0 - 15 58 IR I 8

share calculation 893,761,400 893,761,400
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary BRESSERE S L BR
shares arising from share options TE - 27,931

Weighted average number of ordinary FARFIESRESSEF 2
shares used in diluted earnings per  fN#E 5 2 5 A% IR 8
share calculation 893,761,400 893,789,331
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B B R B A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-_ZT—\F+-_A=+—RALLFE

19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 10. )% - BRKRRE

Furniture,
fixtures and
Leasehold Leasehold Plant and Computer office Motor  Construction
land Buildings  improvements machinery equipment equipment vehicles in progress Total
il BERE
HELH #F HEYERE  BERDE ERikE RBLAERE RE EBIR @3t
HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
AT AT AT AT FET AT AT AT AT
Cost or valuation BAGEE
At 1 January 2017 R=F-+£-F-A 244,632 321,550 181,002 593,428 9485 12,050 14,348 5,568 1,382,053
Transfer Eid = = 34 = = = - (324) -
Additions RE 15,380 5,274 9,4% 29,867 820 3,030 1,634 863 66,264
Surplus on revaluation BfR8 15,017 = = = = = = = 16,017
Defict in revaluation L 7 (578) = = = = = = = (578)
Depreciation eiminated against ~~ RAAHENE
cost (6,169) - - - - - - - (6.169)
Disposalluite off e /i - - 01,129 (15,020) 104) (1,726) (6,969) (16) (45,560)
Disposal of a subsidary HERBART (76.116) (34672) = = - = = - (110,788)
Exchange differences EiZE 9,864 20,138 10,705 37,198 206 754 391 435 80,286
At 31 December 2017 and RZF-tF
1 January 2018 TZA=1-BR
“2-\f-f-H 202,030 312,290 180,399 646,068 9,807 14,108 9,307 6,516 1,380,625
Transfer E4d = = 1206 = = = - (1,206) -
Additions RE - - 20,383 80,645 1,921 3,631 4 1,076 107,566
Surplus on revaluation BfRe 20,858 = = = = = = - 20,858
Gain on revaluation L 7 25 = = = = = = = 265
Depreciation eiminated against ~ RAAHENE
cost (5,627) - - - - - - - (5,627)
Disposal/ute off e /i - - ) (31622 (1,240) (311) (556) - (#1,50)
Exchange diferences 3= (1,756) (16,787) (10,794 (35,849) 057 (69 72 (376) (72.939)
At 31 December 2018 RIZ-N\%
+-A=t-A 209,770 295,503 183,418 659,242 10,231 16,486 8,483 6,010 1,389,143
Accumulated depreciation and ~ BtERHE
impairment
At 1 January 2017 R-E-+£-f-A 158 73,408 103,029 343,182 8,615 6,543 11,656 1,073 547,664
Charge for the year ERmk 5,882 13,898 24375 40,304 456 1287 972 = 87,174
Disposel/wite off e /i - - (17748) (10,390) (835 (1579 (5,966) - (3519
Disposal of a subsidiary HENBAR = (22,250) = = = = = = (22,250)
Adjustment on revaluation ELLE ] (6,169) = = = = = = = (6,169)
Impaiment RiE = = = 4557 = = = 4195 8,752
Exchange differences EiZE 129 4273 5,800 20,102 135 300 290 261 31,280
At 31 December 2017 and RZF-tF
1 January 2018 TZA=1-BR
~%-\§-f-A - 69,329 115,456 397,755 8,371 6,551 6,952 5,519 609,933
Charge for the year ERME 5,786 13,401 20,209 39,185 781 1,852 827 - 82,041
Disposalfwrite off HE/HE = - (8.249) (24729) (1,302) (27) (517) - (35,062)
Adjustment on revaluation BfiRR (5,627) = = = = = = - (5,627)
Impairment HiE = = 1,559 2,302 = = = = 3,861
Exchange diferences E}zE (159) 37 (7,339 (19,224) (101) (14 02) (324) (32,159
At 31 December 2018 RZZ-\F
+-f=t-H - 78,355 121,636 395,296 7,749 17 7,040 5,195 622,988
Carrying amount fREE
At 31 December 2018 RIZ-N\%
+-f=1-R 29,770 217,148 61,782 263,046 2482 8,769 1,443 815 766,155
At 31 December 2017 RZE-tE
+ZF=1-A 202,030 242,961 64,943 248313 1,436 7,557 2,35 97 770,592
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19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

The Group’s leasehold land was revalued on 31
December 2018, 31 December 2017 and 12 July
2017 respectively using the direct comparison
approach by reference to market evidence of recent
transactions for similar properties by independent
Surveyors.

The carrying amount of the Group’s leasehold land
would have been approximately HK$50,978,000
(2017: HK$54,091,000) had it been stated at cost

less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses.
The carrying amount of property, plant and

equipment pledged as security for the Group’s
banking facilities amounted to approximately
HK$44,977,000 (2017: HK$44,326,000).

Impairment of property, plant and equipment
represents impairment on idle machines and
leasehold improvements to be disposed without
future economic benefits.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B R R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-_T—/\F+ A=+ —ALFE

19. W% - MR R FE (B)
AEBZHAELT WS IR = —\F+=
A=+—08 22— +F¥+=-_A=+—8H
MN_E—tFt+t A+ - HHABGEMZR
HEMBRAEEL2EMSAUME 2 &R
REOBHEER -

ERRABEFITE LREEEYIE &
SEMEE LR E 4 A50,978,0007%
TT(ZZE—+ % : 54,091,000/ 7T) °

AEEREEAEX44,977,0008 T (==
— 4 : 44,326,000/8 ) KU - HER
RBEEHREAANEEBITEERNIKT -

M - Has MRBRERLE B REBER
sZHEXRESELEREMERED
AR ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B B R B A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T— \F+-_A=+—ALFE

20.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December

2018 are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/
establishment

Issued and fully
paid up share
capital/registered

R EBQRNERE
R-EB—N\F+-A=+—8 HBAAF

ZFBIT

Percentage of
ownership interest/
voting power/

Name and operation capital profit sharing Principal activities
ERTRAE s/
&% RIRGEERY RE/EREX RER/BHEHE TEER
Direct  Indirect
H# fel 4%
Ka Shui (Holdings) Company BVI US$36,909 100% —  Investment holding
Limited EERUES 36,909% T REER
EhEEERAT
Ample Wealth Developments BVI US$1 - 100%  Investment holding
Limited RERUES 1% REZR
EEERARAR
Ka Fung Metal Manufactory Hong Kong HK$74,487,660 - 100%  Sale of plastic injection products
Company Limited B 74,487,66075 1 and components
RECBHRBERAT HEBRTEERRTHH
Ka Shui Manufactory Co., Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100%  Sale of zinc, magnesium and
Limited B 10,0007 7T aluminium alloy die casting
EhEmARAR and plastic injection products
and components
HEH ERAaeBEENE
Br2ERREHH
Ka Shui Technology (Huizhou) The PRC Registered capital - 100%  Sale and manufacture of
Company Limited* i HK$430,000,000 magnesium alloy die casting
it (EM) ERAE 14 430,000,000 products and components
BT HEREEZAEBBEMR
itk
Elegant Shine Investments BV USS1 - 100%  Investment holding
Limited RERLES 1% REER
HERBERAT
Ample Wealth Property The PRC Registered capital - 100%  Inactive
Developments (Huizhou) & HK$6,800,000 B m i
Limited* # 1t & 76,800,000
EEMERE(EMERAR BT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A B R I ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-_T—/\F+ A=+ —ALFE

20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 20. RTBARMIRE (&)
(Continued)
Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December RZZE-—N\F+=ZA=+—H HKBAF
2018 are as follows: (Continued) BT - (88)
Place of Issued and fully Percentage of
incorporation/ paid up share ownership interest/
establishment capital/registered voting power/
Name and operation capital profit sharing Principal activities
EBRTRYE FEfEHEE
Z% RIRGEERE RE/BREX BE®/GHEHE EEEH
Direct Indirect
HE &
Ka Shui Technology Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100%  Investment holding
EREHRERA &R 10,000/ 1 REZR
Wing Yu (Far East) Industries Hong Kong HK$6,900,000 - 100%  Investment holding
Company Limited B 6,900,000/ REZK

K (ER)EXERAR

Huizhou Wing Yu Metal and The PRC Registered capital - 100%  Provision of surface finishing
Plastic Manufactory Company HK$4,500,000 treatment services and sale
Limited* it & 454,500,000 and manufacture of zinc alloy

ENmAB RS EHERER BT die casting products and
NG components

RERARERY LHERE
EFREEEERLTHN

Ka Yi Technology (Huizhou) The PRC Registered capital - 100%  Sale and manufacture of zinc
Company Limited* H HK$20,000,000 and aluminium alloy die
REME @M ERLE 1 & 720,000,000 casting products and
BT components
HEREEHREGEER
Em RIS
Ka Fung Industrial Technology ~ The PRC Registered capital - 100%  Sale and manufacture of
(Huizhou) Company Limited* & HK$132,000,000 products and components
FETERE (EMBRARA 4 48132,000,000 with plastic contents
BT HEREESERHM  EmR
THM
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B B R B A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T— \F+-_A=+—ALFE

20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 20. RTBARMKRE (&)
(Continued)
Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December RZZE—N\F+ZA=+—H HKBAA
2018 are as follows: (Continued) ZEBIT - (8)
Place of Issued and fully Percentage of
incorporation/ paid up share ownership interest/
establishment capital/registered voting power/
Name and operation capital profit sharing Principal activities
ERTRYE FEfE#EE
2z RIRGEERE BE/EREX BE#/RHEHE EEEH
Direct Indirect
HE &
Alphalite Company Limited Hong Kong HKS$1 - 100%  Trading and marketing of LED
RERAERAA B 18T and plasma lighting products
RELEDR BT RAERCE
5 RinHE
Ka Shui Metal Manufactory The PRC Registered capital - 100%  Sale and manufacture of zinc,
(Shenzhen) Company Limited* & HK$40,000,000 magnesium and aluminium
EheBEn (R BRAR & 40,000,000 alloy die casting products and
BT component
HEREEH BERBASER
EmREHHt
Alphalite Incorporation USA US$100 - 100%  Trading and marketing of LED
E35 1003 T and plasma lighting products
RELEDRSBFRAERZE
5 RinHE
Ka Shui (USA) Incorporation USA US$5,000 - 100%  Marketing of zinc, magnesium
*H 5,000% 7T and aluminium alloy die

casting and plastic injection
products and components,
trading of LED and home
appliance products

ftE® FREFEBERER
ARERRER TSEE
UARLEDRRERALZES

Kalok Technology Investment BVI US$50,000 - 100%  Investment holding
Limited RERUES 50,000% 7T REAR

RANBRARRAH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A B R I ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-_T—/\F+ A=+ —ALFE

20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 20. RTBARMIRE (&)
(Continued)
Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December RZZE-—N\F+=ZA=+—H HKBAF
2018 are as follows: (Continued) BT - (88)
Place of Issued and fully Percentage of
incorporation/ paid up share ownership interest/
establishment capital/registered voting power/
Name and operation capital profit sharing Principal activities
EBTRYRE FElE#EE
&% RIREERE RE/EREX BRER/BHEHLE TEER
Direct Indirect
H# el
Wuhu Lenka Technologies The PRC Registered capital - 100%  Sale and manufacture of
Company Limited (“Wuhu # RMB50,000,000 magnesium alloy die casting
Lenka’)* FMERARE products and components
ERBMEIENMRAERAR (% 50,000,0007C HEREEGZSCEFEMRT
i) ) e
Ka Shui Metal Company Limited Hong Kong HK$100,000 - 100%  Sale of magnesium alloy die
EheBBRA B 100,000/ 70 casting products and
components

HERRSESEMRTHM

Katchon Precision Holdings BVI US$1,000 - 70%  Investment holding
Company Limited RBRAES 1,000% 7T REZK

REREERARAR

Ka Shui Plastic Technology Hong Kong HK$1 - 100%  Research and development,
Company Limited (formerly &% 18T trading of germ repellent
known as “Katchon Industrial plastic related product
Company Limited”) REZBHAER HEREE

BRZBHMBEARARF
(MBI REIEBERRA])

Goodly Precision Industrial Hong Kong HK$50,000 - 70%  Investment holding
Limited &R 50,0007 7T REZR
BREEIEERAR
Goodly Precision (Suzhou) The PRC Registered capital - 70%  Research, manufacture and sale
Industrial Limited (“Goodly H US$5,000,000 of plastic injection moulding
Suzhou’)* & 755,000,000 and components of car-
ERERTE BN ERAR e related products
(TZ &M ) RERREnC 2RI ERTE

e EERKEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B B R B A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T— \F+-_A=+—ALFE

20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 20. RTBARMKRE (&)
(Continued)
Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December RZZE—N\F+ZA=+—H HKBAA
2018 are as follows: (Continued) ZEBIT - (8)
Place of Issued and fully Percentage of
incorporation/ paid up share ownership interest/
establishment capital/registered voting power/
Name and operation capital profit sharing Principal activities
EBRTRYE s/
& RIRGEREY BE/EREE BRE®R /GHEHE TEEH
Direct Indirect
B el
Qigihaer Northern Ka Shui Light ~ The PRC Registered capital - 51%  Research and development,
Alloy Technology Company i RMB12,000,000 trading of aluminium related
Limited* FMERAREK products
BERALAZhERG SRR 12,000,0007C PEEER HERES
BRAR
Huizhou Ka May New Material ~ The PRC Registered capital - 70%  Inactive
Technology Company Limited* & RMB1,000,000 7
BNEEIMHRBRBR AT AMERARY
1,000,0007T
Ka Shui Aluminium Technology ~ The PRC Registered capital - 70%  Inactive
(Shenzhen) Company Limited* & RMB10,000,000 BEEK
Finiart Ry AR A AMERARY
10,000,0007C
o English translation of the name is for identification purpose * BB EEER R .
only.

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited %= % BB IE R B R AT




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

20.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

Ka Shui Technology (Huizhou) Company Limited,
Ample Wealth Property Developments (Huizhou)
Limited, Ka Yi Technology (Huizhou) Company
Limited, Ka Fung Industrial Technology (Huizhou)
Company Limited, Ka Shui Metal Manufactory
(Shenzhen) Company Limited, Huizhou Wing Yu
Metal and Plastic Manufactory Company Limited and
Goodly Suzhou are wholly-foreign owned enterprises
established in the PRC. Wuhu Lenka, Qigihaer
Northern Ka Shui Light Alloy Technology Company
Limited, Huizhou Ka May New Material Technology
Company Limited and Ka Shui Aluminium
Technology (Shenzhen) Company Limited are
registered as a company with limited liability under
the law of the PRC.

As at 31 December 2018, the bank and cash
balances and restricted bank deposits of the Group’s
subsidiaries in the PRC denominated in RMB
amounted to approximately HK$111,930,000 (2017:
HK$130,612,000). Conversion of RMB into foreign
currencies is subject to the PRC’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement,
Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations.

e B R R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-_T—/\F+ A=+ —ALFE

20. RBRRNRE ()

B (ENERAR EEMERE
(BHDERAR  BEMZENERA
Al BEIXMEEMBRAR - Fin
TBRMORIDERQA - BMHKHEE
SEHEBERD B R LEHEHMN SR T E
RN EBEDK - S - BEGH
AT RREBRSREARAR - BME
BB R AR AR IR ER R OR
YN BRARIRFBEAEKR I ZBEREEA
e

R=ZZE—N\F+=ZA=+—H8 £E£ER
FEAARESTERMH B AR MRTRIR
S EHR R BRBIRITERK AL 111,930,000
BT (ZZF—+%F : 130,612,000/87T) ° #
AR EE H 5 9N B T AR 5 B A (O EE B
BEODYRCEE EERMNETERE)E
17 °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B B R B A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-_ZT—\F+-_A=+—RALLFE

20.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)
The following table shows

20.

information on the

subsidiary that has non-controlling interests (“NCI”)
material to the Group. The summarised financial
information represents amounts before inter-company

RKTE D AEIRE ()

TRETBEAIFZERER ([FEERE
s ) HAEEMEBEAZWBERARZE
£t o M BRI E RIR A BRI HAT S5 o

eliminations.
Name Goodly Suzhou
=18 ELTFRER ]
2018 2017
—ET—)N\EF —E—+tfF
Principal place of business/country of = Z & 2125 PRC/PRC PRC/PRC
incorporation A BER thE hE FEH
% of ownership interest/voting right — JFFERRFEZS AT IS A 1~
held by NCI KEERDLE 30%/30% 30%/30%
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#EiT FE T
At 31 December: W+=H=+—8":
Non-current assets ERBEE 16,348 16,358
Current assets mENEE 45,356 45,094
Current liabilities mENaE (14,345) (14,491)
Net assets FEE 47,359 46,961
Accumulated NCI Rt IR 14,207 14,088
Year ended 31 December: #EZE+=-A=+—H
IEEE :
Revenue WA 88,573 71,748
Profit bl 3,315 7,675
Total comprehensive income EHN =BT 398 10,688
Profit allocated to NCI S HLFIEIE IR M R 2 v 995 2,303
Dividends paid to NCI IRAS T I IR M A 2 AR B — =
Net cash generated from operating BEEBMERE /T
activities 3,106 2,743
Net cash used in investing activies 8 & X FAAIR S F5E (4,532) (5,883)
Net cash used in financing activites ~ BIE EBFTAIR & /F58 - (276)
Net decrease in cash and cash He kERBEL£EE
equivalents A E R (1,426) (3,4106)

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited = & BB 2 RAE R A 7



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

21.

22.

CLUB MEMBERSHIP

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & & —

%v?éﬁﬂ%#ﬁﬁﬁﬁi(é)

=INSEaE= A=A e e 47 i

HK$’000
FET
Cost BAE
At 31 December 2017 and 2018 RZE—tEFR_ZT—N\F
+=—A=1+—H 718

The Group’s club membership of HK$718,000 (2017:
HK$718,000) at 31 December 2018 is assessed as
having indefinite useful life because there is no time
limit that the Group can enjoy the services provided
by that club.

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

REBRZTE—N\EF+_A=+—Hz%g
Fr& & {EE718,0008 L (Z & — & :
718,000 L) EN E A EERAFEAF
B RRRAEEZHZSAARERS
2 B ] I £ BR ) o

22. RBtENTRIZRE

2018 2017
—T-\f —ELF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#EIT FEIT

Unlisted investments: JEEMEE :
Share of net assets BOFEE 10,951 704
Goodwill (EES 632 632
11,583 1,336
Impairment losses REEE (1,652) -
9,931 1,336

The amounts due from/to associates are unsecured,
interest free and repayable on demand.

Impairment losses on investments in associates are
recognised as the Group expects that there will be
no future profit for certain associates.

B, FEfHsE & A 5] f)’( AREER - 2B R
A BRI ARER

ARAKEEHE THERRERILE
N

EH - F U RN S QR E 2R EE
B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B B R B A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BHEZE T —\F+_A=+—HILFE

22.

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited %= % BB IE R B R AT

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

(Continued)

22.

Details of the Group’s associates at 31 December

2018 are as follows:

REEQNF2RE ()

JrApS
ENRERIT

Percentage of

E-NFE+_A=+—BEREE 2

Issued and fully ownership
Place of paid up share interest/
incorporation/ capital/registered voting power/
Name registration capital profit sharing Principal activities
317398
ERTRAR REE/
& i B BE/EREF BHESE  EEEH
Topanga Asia Limited Hong Kong HK$127,373,638 38.9% Inactive
(“Topanga Asia”) BB 127,373,638 1 £
YPrERRERAA
(M=%
Topanga Technology (Huizhou) The PRC Registered capital 38.9% Inactive
Limited* f HK$6,500,000 EE:E
YRR (BN BERAF #H{fit & 776,500,000
BT
Huizhou Intelligent Foundry The PRC Registered capital 46% Research and development,
Industry Light Alloy s RMB20,000,000 manufacture and trading of
Innovation Center Company AMERARYK light alloy moulds
Limited"* 20,000,0007T HASHAZHE AER

BNAZHRBEEREAS

ElF L AER AT

English translation of the name is for identification purpose

only.

g5
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

22.

e B R R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T—/\F+_A=+—ALLFE

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 22.

(Continued)

The following table shows, in aggregate, the Group’s
share of the amounts of all individually immaterial
associates that are accounted for using the equity
method.

REEQNR2RE ()

TRENAEBUAERGHEARZAE
ERFEERH L AR HED SEAR

2018 2017
B\ —2—t%
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHT &z

At 31 December: W+=A=+—8:

Carrying amounts of interests HEmREE

Year ended 31 December: BEZ+=-A=+—H
IEEE:

Loss from operations K EE

Other comprehensive income H b2k 2§

Total comprehensive income 2= B

9,931 1,336
(146) (325)
(25) (16)
(171) (341)

As at 31 December 2018, the bank and cash
balances of the Group’ associates in the PRC
denominated in RMB amounted to approximately
HK$11,543,000 (2017: HK$65,000). Conversion of
RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the PRC’s
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of
Foreign Exchange Regulations.

R-ZE—NFE+-_A=+—H AEER
B A A RE ST ERE S DR ARITRIR
SR A%I11,543,0008 T (ZE— L5 -
65,0008 70) ° i AR H iR INE BRI
R B Y (OB B ik 1) R KA B - B [ o A5
FEE AR E)#TT ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
%v*ﬁéﬁ!ﬂ%iﬁ%ﬁﬁi(ﬁ)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE=-T—/\F+=-_A=+—HILFE
23. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTOCI (2017: 23. BMAFEFAREMEZERE 2SR
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL EE(CE—tF  AHEESRE
ASSETS) E)
2018 2017
—E-N\%F —T—+%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Unlisted equity, at fair value FEETHRA(ZZT—LF -
(2017: at cost) B AGTE) - 8,303
Impairment loss VEREYEi=! - (8,303)
The investee company has ceased business in WIRERAIERNEBFAIRIEESRERE
previous years and the management has made full BH L IEREEL 2BRERSE -

impairment loss for the investment.

24. INVENTORIES 24. 78

2018 2017
—EF—)N\EFE —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FET
Raw materials R E 63,465 48,908

Consumables supplies and VB R On (e K A5 R B0
spare parts 7,485 10,984
Work in progress M 93,769 101,673
Finished goods 27K o 115,159 109,405
279,878 270,970
Less: Allowance for inventories B FERE (35,123) (18,564)
244,755 252,406

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited = & BB 2 RAE R A 7




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A B R I ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T—/\F+_A=+—ALLFE

25. TRADE RECEIVABLES 25. B EINFIE

The Group’s trading terms with customers are mainly REBHEEP 2R EBMEEFRELT ©
on credit. The credit terms generally ranged from 30 EEH—BNTHRES A&REBI0E120K
to 120 days (2017: 30 to 120 days) after the end of ZE—+F:30F120K) - BRRFA®X
the month in which the invoices issued. Each SEERTE AEEH I EEEGRESR
customer has a maximum credit limit. The Group FEUGRIE - RESE RGN BN ER -
seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding FEUR R (R BB B ZE R B 2Rk D
receivables. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly MEZIAT

by the directors. The ageing analysis of trade
receivables, based on the invoice date, and net of
allowance, is stated as follows:

2018 2017
—E—-\EF —T—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
0 to 30 days 0£30H 140,160 173,319
31 to 60 days 31%60H 110,524 108,282
61 to 90 days 61Z290H 46,486 46,714
91 to 180 days 91£180H 79,644 86,705
Over 180 days 1808 LA 200 1,136
377,014 416,156
Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful & : 28R & RBR 2 B/
debts (229) (764)
376,785 415,392
At 31 December 2018, an allowance was made for RZZE—NF+_A=+—8 " B®ETT
estimated irrecoverable trade receivables of AT U [B] E 5 e U BR 71 1 HH B 455 49 229,0007%
approximately HK$229,000 (2017: HK$764,000) T (ZZ—+4 : 764,000 7T ) (Bi7E6(0)) °
(note 6(b)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B B R A R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-_ZT—\F+-_A=+—RALLFE

25. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)
The carrying amount of the Group’s trade receivables
are denominated in the following currencies:

B 5 EWRE (&)
7 B 5 MRKOE 10 AR L A T 51
SIIfE :

25.

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#EiT FET
HK$ BT 21,469 31,653
usb X 284,394 332,923
RMB AR 70,678 48,341
Others H 473 3,239
377,014 416,156
Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful ¥ : ZEBR & RBR 2 B8
debts (229) (764)
376,785 415,392
26. CONTRACT ASSETS/CONTRACT 26. EHEE EHNAR
LIABILITIES
31 December 1 January 31 December
2018 2018 2017
—EB—N\EF —E-N\&F —ZT—+4F
Contract assets BHEE +=A=+—H —A—8B +=ZA=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
F#EiT FE T FET
Arising from sales of moulds M1 E$EEFTEE 4,978 8,862 =
Arising from sales of OEM  HRREEEE SR
Products SHEMMESE 9,692 12,816 —
14,670 21,678 —
Receivables from contracts & /& 1 75 R & 2 8|
with customers within the F155F &3 [E N &
scope of HKFRS 15, BREZEHZER
which are included in FIE(BEBREE
“Trade receivables” B S EWGIER) 376,785 415,392

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited = & BB 2 RAE R A 7



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

26.

CONTRACT ASSETS/CONTRACT
LIABILITIES (Continued)

Amounts relating to contract assets are balances due
from customers under sales contracts that arise
when the Group’s unconditional right to receive
payments from customers is not in line with (i) the
progress of the OEM Products manufactured under
contracts in which the Group has enforceable right to
payment and (i) when the control of moulds which
are billed together with products is passed to
customers. Payment for OEM Products and moulds
is not due from the customer until the products are
delivered to the customer, and therefore a contract
asset is recognised (i) over the period in which the
OEM Products are manufactured; and (i) when the
control of moulds are transferred to the customers to
represent the Group’s right to consideration for the
services transferred to date.

There were no significant changes in the contract
assets balances during the reporting period.

The amount of contract assets that is expected to be
recovered after more than one year is approximately
HK$4,283,000 (2017: HKSNIil).

Contract liabilities BHAR

Billings in advance of HERZBRIEER
performance obligation REEEEERBNR
arising from sales of ER B RIE

OEM Products and moulds

e B R R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-_T—/\F+ A=+ —ALFE

26.

BHEE /ANEE(A)

HAENEERBNCEAEAEE Z EF
{4 [A) = P YCER R IE 2 FE A B LA TR S — B : (i)
BEAEEHFEEREATINTEZEOME
ENRZBREEMMNEE  Ri)HEER—
HENREZEARHEERER PR
EXEBREFHEANNGEH RERR
NEF#% BREREFNEIEREEMR
REEMFIE - At - BHEERATER
WHER : () REBEREEMEER K
EREAEHEEEERERE (AASBEEHEHR
S BIERBOHNERE)E -

RmEHE - GHNEELRLBEAE L -

FEH—FU LRI EMNEHNEESR AL
4,283,000 c (= —+tF : ZHFL) °

31 December 1 January 31 December
2018 2018 2017
—F—-N\EF —ZE—)N\F — Tt
+=H=+—H —H—B +=ZH=+—8H
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FET FET

1,500 12,615 —

Contract liabilities relating to sales of OEM Products
and moulds are balances due to customers under
contracts with customers. They arise because
customers pay deposits for the sales contract which
exceed the revenue recognised to date.

There were no significant changes in the contract
liabilities balances during the reporting period.

HRREREERMEAHEERENEGH
BERBNEPAXNAMER - ZNIA
TRAEFPXNNEEANREBRELES
FERHIULA -

RBEHRE - ENEEERLBEREL
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ﬁéﬂﬂ%i&%ﬁ#ﬂ(%)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE=-T—/\F+=-_A=+—HILFE

26. CONTRACT ASSETS/CONTRACT 26. EHNEE/EHEEHE)
LIABILITIES (Continued)
Movements in contract liabilities: EHBEES
2018
—¥—-N\EF
HK$’000
F#T
Balance at 1 January R— A —H& 12,615
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of F N HER Hﬁ)\%ﬁlé?’]ﬁ1 A
recognising revenue during the year was BT ABYINEHNEERN
included in the contract liabilities at the
beginning of the period (110,844)
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of HERSBEREEMREAD
biling in advance of sales of OEM Products TBWHIBE RS L8 FEIL N
and moulds 99,732
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes M R BB ) 2 2 (3)
Balance at 31 December Rt-_A=+—H#&%% 1,500

RESTRICTED BANK BALANCES AND
BANK AND CASH BALANCES

27.

The Group’s restricted bank balances represent:

27. BRFBRTERERTREASER

AEBOARGIRITERE

(a) Balance of RMB1,653,000 (equivalent to @ AK®1,653,0005T (HERY
approximately HK$1,867,000) (2017: 1,867,000/7C) (ZE—+1F : AR
RMB950,000 (equivalent to approximately 950,0007T (48 % M 491,140,0007%
HK$1,140,000)) to guarantee for the use of TTIEBERFPRFERRAR ZER
natural gas in the PRC (2017: guarantee for the —E—+F RPBEEARARZ
use of natural gas in the PRC); ER)

(o) Balance of HK$1,910,000 and RMB1,540,000 (o) 1,910,0007% 7t & A R #1,540,0007C

(equivalent to approximately HK$1,740,000)
(equivalent
approximately HK$2,094,000)) to guarantee to

(2017: RMB1,744,000

the customs office in the PRC.

The cash at banks earned interest at floating interest
rates ranging from 0.01% to 0.35% per annum

(2017: 0.01% to 0.25% per annum).

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited = & BB 2 RAE R A 7

(FBERA1,740,0008 L) (ZE—+
F: ANR¥A1,744,000 (HHER 4D
2,094,000/8 71)) AER # B/ B &
IR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

27.

28.

RESTRICTED BANK BALANCES AND
BANK AND CASH BALANCES
(Continued)

The carrying amounts of bank and cash balances are
denominated in the following currencies:

e B R R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T—\F+-_A=+—HILFE

27.

BRBIBITEFRERITRRSERR
(&)

mE=

RTRBSEHRZIEEEATNIEERE

L :

2018 2017

ZT-N\F g

HK$°000 HK$°000

F#EIT FET

HK$ BT 48,419 21,035
USD ET 94,489 92,495
RMB AR 106,499 128,877
EURO BL T 1,151 1,529
Others Hith 48 58
250,606 243,994

Under the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sales
and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the
Group is permitted to exchange RMB for foreign
currencies through the banks that are authorised to
conduct foreign exchange business.

TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES
AND ACCRUALS

The ageing analysis of trade payables, based on the
date of receipt of goods, is as follows:

28.

WRIB A B R CHNE B B 1501 R (A& RE - EE
RNEEERRE)  AEEEAFAERBE
RERRIMEEBNRITUARE ]I

BEZRNARE  HitEAFIBEKE
STEA

B RMARERKE B BB RE DT
T

2018 2017

—E-N\E —TELF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FEIT FEIT

0 to 30 days 0£30H 66,541 102,808
31 to 60 days 31260H 73,753 85,317
61 to 90 days 61290H 59,650 69,284
91 to 180 days 912180H 60,409 104,211
Over 180 days 180H LA 3,679 5,774
264,032 367,394
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
5 B R B ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-_ZT—\F+-_A=+—RALLFE

28. TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES 28. ESREMANIE HttEFRIERE
AND ACCRUALS (Continued) STER(E)
The carrying amount of the Group’s trade payables AEBESENFERTENLTIEE R
are denominated in the following currencies: BBy :
2018 2017
—E-N\EF —ET—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEIT FET
HK$ BT 4,954 7,797
usD E7T 63,602 60,929
RMB AR 195,277 298,596
Others Hh 199 72
264,032 367,394
Other payables and accruals comprise the following: HEENRIBEREFTEREENATSIE
2018 2017
—T-0\FE —TEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#E T FEIT
Accrued wages EFTTE 48,118 34,519
Other accrued expenses EMESTER 21,569 18,075
Other payables H b & 5RIB 25,597 30,475
95,284 83,069
The carrying amount of the Group’s other payables REBEEAMENFIBRETEANEREEE
and accruals is denominated in the following BIATE A :
currencies:
2018 2017
—EB—N\F —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#Eir FET
HK$ BIT 13,724 5,351
UsD EPy 13,118 16,042
RMB AR 68,424 61,652
Others E A 18 24
95,284 83,069

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited = & BB 2 RAE R A 7




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
%v'iéﬁﬂ%#ﬁﬁﬁﬁi(nﬁ)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T—/\F+_A=+—ALLFE

FE A BEESE A B FRIE
R M A RRERENT

29. DUE TO A RELATED COMPANY 29.
Particulars of the amount due to a related company
are as follows:

2018 2017

—E-N\%F —T—+F

HK$°000 HK$'000

FE FA&ET

Chit Shun Machinery Limited PR REER A A - 4,465
The amount due to a related company is of trade JE < B B R R B0 SR8 /2 SE TS 1 R I A R

A 2R NAEEREBEHER - FEER
BN R R LR ES c R T N\F=
AZ+ThAB  ZREHERERAEMER
BERAR 2R - R EREAEWMRE
BRABZEHREF DB REMENFIA

nature and is unsecured, interest free and repayable
on demand. Mr. Lee has joint control in the related
company. On 29 March 2018, Mr. Lee disposed his
interest in Chit Shun Machinery Limited and the
balance with Chit Shun Machinery Limited since then

was reclassified to other payables and accruals. KIEFTERA -
30. BANK BORROWINGS 30. MITHER
The analysis of the carrying amount of bank RITEFROEREESTAT :

borrowings is as follows:

2018 2017
—E-0\%E T —+tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#Eir FET
Current liabilities RBEE
Portion of bank borrowings due for AR —F NEIHEZAEIT
repayment within one year BRE D 221,491 245,364
Portion of bank borrowings due for AR —EZFHEZNES
repayment after one year which REREBEERNRITE
contains a repayment on demand KEL S
clause 21,363 81,247
242,854 326,611
Non-current liabilities FREERE
Portion of bank borrowings due for AR —F&REEEENTE
repayment after one year which do SR ESK(E & (§FKHVET
not contain repayment on demand BRE D
clause 81,848 41,667
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B B R B A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE=-T—/\F+=-_A=+—HILFE

30. BANK BORROWINGS (Continued) 30. RITER ()
The interest-bearing bank borrowings, including the FERITER(BREEREREENRITE
bank borrowings repayable on demand, are carried at ) TR A ARBBR - B —F 1R EIHR(E
amortised cost. None of the portion of bank ERNBEEREREERREsBARBE
borrowings due for repayment after one year which BMRITERPL BB AR —FRBE -
contain a repayment on demand clause that is
classified as current liabilities is expected to be
settled within one year.
At 31 December 2018, interest-bearing bank loans RZZE—N\F+-_HA=+—8 " ZHEZR
were due for repayment as follows: RETBIRITERAT ¢

2018 2017
—E-N\EF TE—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT

Portion of bank borrowings due for R —FRNEIEEZENIEIT
repayment within one year ExE D 221,491 245,364

Portion of bank borrowings due for AR —FREHEE (25
repayment after one year which R EREZE ) BIRTT
contains a repayment on demand BREH (Bit@)
clause (note (a)):
After 1 year but within 2 years —FZBREMRFEZRN 21,363 59,905
After 2 years but within 5 years WEZRBERFZRN - 21,342
21,363 81,247
Portion of bank borrowings due for B —FEEHEER (T
repayment after one year which do 2R EKEEIE) iR
not contain a repayment on TERE D
demand clause:
After 1 year but within 2 years —FZBREMEZA 54,319 26,667
After 2 years but within 5 years MEZREREFZA 27,529 15,000
81,848 41,667
324,702 368,278
Note: HeE -
(@) The amounts due are based on the scheduled repayment (@) BERFEIEEF Tﬁuiﬁﬁ%@mfﬁiﬁ?}&ﬁ@ A
dates set out in the loan agreements and ignore the effect £ WEG REMRERERGERNTE

of any repayment on demand clause.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

30.

BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

Seven (2017: Seven) of the bank facilities are subject
to the fulfillment of covenants relating to certain of
the Group’s financial ratios, as are commonly found
in lending arrangements with financial institutions.
Should the Group breach the covenants, the drawn
down facilities would become repayable on demand.
In addition, some of the Group’s bank loan
agreements contain clauses which give the lenders
the right at their sole discretion to demand
immediate repayment at any time irrespective of
whether the Group has complied with the covenants
and met the scheduled repayment obligations.

The Group regularly monitors its compliance with
these covenants, and is up to date with the
scheduled repayments of the bank borrowings.
Further details of the Group’s management of
liquidity risk are set out in note 6(c). There have been
no breaches in the financial covenants of any
interest-bearing borrowings for the years ended 31
December 2017 and 2018.

All bank borrowings were arranged at floating interest
rate. The range of the interest rates per annum at 31
December 2018 was as follows:

e B R R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T—/\F+_A=+—ALLFE

RITER ()

TtECCTE—EF: £ERTREFEES
NEBEBAREE THMBL R 225 %
EREBTNESBEBII L2 ERL
PHER - WARBEERBREZSE - AEFA
ZBMERERRERER - IH 0 AEEE
TRITEFBRZZGERT R TERAZE
BB R EBE I ERENS EE E RV HER
MERAREREETETRERTAEEE

30.

AEBTEHEENERHEZ BT TiRE
RITERNBEECERPELEERE - ~&H
ZEHnBEcRBROE —THEBHNE
B  RBEZE-_ZE—t&R=-_ZT—\Ft+=
A=+—RLtFE HMEERTHEE
2B TEE T o

PRERITERDIFHNEFE -RF
—N\F+-A=1T—HNHFHNXEEMAT :

2018 2017
—E-N\F T+
% %

per annum per annum
B 55

F BT

Floating rate

2.8%-5.2%

2.9%-4.5%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ﬁéﬂ?fﬁ%i&%ﬁﬁi(%)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE=-T—/\F+=-_A=+—HILFE

30. BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

31.

The carrying amount of the bank borrowings is
denominated in the following currencies:

30. RITHER(E)

RITEFEEEATHNEE R EEN

2018 2017

—E—)\EF —E—tF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET

HK$ BT 324,702 332,264
RMB AR - 36,014
UsD ETT - —
Total 4T 324,702 368,278

BANKING FACILITIES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had available
banking facilities of approximately HK$696,000,000
(2017: HK$799,000,000), which were utilised to the
extent of approximately HK$325,000,000 (2017:
HK$368,000,000). These banking facilities were
secured by the following:

(@)  corporate guarantees provided by the Company
and certain subsidiaries of the Group;

(b) a property situated in Hong Kong owned by the
Group; and

(c)  all monies assignment of rental over the property
situated in Hong Kong owned by the Group.

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited = & BB 2 RAE R A 7

31.

RITEE
R=ZFBE—N\F+=—A=+—8 ' A&£ET
&) M iR 1715 B /& #7696,000,00078 7t (=
T — 4 : 799,000,000 7T) M & A
B 58 & 49325,000,000/8 7 (ZE—+4F -
368,000,000/ 7T) ° I F R 1T & LA T 5
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A B R I ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-_T—/\F+ A=+ —ALFE

32. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES 32. EEFRIBEE AFE
The following is the deferred tax liabilities and assets NTARAAEERFEFAE BRAELETIES
recognised by the Group, and the movements BEREEEARAED :

thereon, during the year:

Deferred tax liabilities: EEHIABE :
Temporary
differences
Undistributed Revaluation arising from
earnings of of leasehold the adoption
a subsidiary land of HKFRS 15 Total
REEME
MBAT HELH HERAB5H
KRBT EEER ELZENER it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
At 1 January 2017 R=ZE—t+%—-H—8 15,862 41,304 - 57,156
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—HHB AR = (10,006) = (10,006)
Withholding tax paid EfERER (15,852) = = (15,852)
Charge to other comprehensive  RERTRZEMEE
income for the year Wiz = 1,576 - 1,576
Exchange differences EREE = 1,997 = 1,997
At 31 December 2017 RIZ—+F
+ZA=1+—H = 34,871 = 34,871
Impact on initial application of ¥R & A& BB RS %8
HKFRS 15 (note 3) F15% 2T E (H3t3) - = 2,139 2,139
At 1 January 2018 R=Z-\5—H—8 - 34,871 2,139 37,010
Charge to other comprehensive ~ RERTEZEMEE
income for the year Wi = 6,647 - 6,647
Credit to profit or loss REANRZEBR
for the year (note 13) (Hi13) = (4,195) (1,096) (5,291)
Exchange differences EREE = (1512 (74) (1,586)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\F
+ZA=1+—H - 35,811 969 36,780
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B B R B A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-_ZT—\F+-_A=+—RALLFE

32. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES 32. EXEFIBEE BE (&)
(Continued)
Deferred tax assets: IR IB & =
Fair value
Decelerated  adjustment on
Tax tax business
losses depreciation combination Total
ES )
REBR RERERE ATERAE it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
At 1 January 2017 RZE—t$-A—H 1,082 = 373 1,405
Charge to profit or loss for the ~ FRXRE B (##£13)
year (note 15) = = (87) (87)
Exchange differences BERER 77 = 24 101
At 31 December 2017 and RZZ—+%F+=7
1 January 2018 =+t—HERZE-N\F
—H—H 1,109 - 310 1,419
Credit/(charge) to profit or loss ~ RERAE/ () 285
for the year (note 13) (f1zE13) 7,239 141 (80) 7,300
Exchange differences ERER (410) - (15) (425)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-\$+ZA
=+—H 7,938 141 215 8,294
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax MEREMFARAKM S  BEFIALL
balances (after offset) for consolidated statement of (K8 2D TT :
financial position purposes:
2018 2017
—E-N\%F —T—tF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FEIT FET
Deferred tax liabilities RLEHHEAE 28,701 33,762
Deferred tax assets BT IBEE (215) (310)
Total HEt 28,486 33,452
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

32.

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES
(Continued)

At 31 December 2018, the Group had unused tax
losses of approximately HK$290,513,000 (2017:
HK$295,415,000) which are available for offset
against future profits. A deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of approximately
HK$31,752,000 (2017: HK$4,437,000) of such losses.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect
of the remaining tax losses due to the unpredictability
of future profit streams. Included in the unrecognised
tax losses are losses of approximately
HK$13,641,000 (2017: HK$11,361,000) which may be
carried forward indefinitely. The remaining
unrecognised tax losses of approximately
HK$245,120,000 (2017: HK$279,617,000) will expire
as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # ZE =%

32.

e B R R R ()

—INEEa R IS T gl il 57

E*i

BB EEE B81& (&)
R-E—N\FE+-_A=+—H ' A£8H
2R E) A A T8 B5 48 49290,513,000/8 7T (=&
—+ £ : 295,415,000 7T) Al # K 85 oK 2
A o BLEx E BB 431,752,000/ T (=&
—-t4F 1 4,437,000/870) R AELERIEE
E -BMENZZFNHRTBBERRAEL
RBEE AAKREEERIGFRA -
AR IBE B BIEEE 413,641 ooo
BT (ZZF—+%F : 11,361,000 T)
EREAE - BT ZRER %FLIEE%T%Z@
245,120,000 L (= & — £ &F :
279,617,000 L) i 7 N 5! A 2 HR -

2018 2017

—ET-)\E —E—tF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FEIT FET

Year 2018 —N\F - 145
Year 2019 —NF 2,343 22,876
Year 2020 —E-FEF 30,129 51,473
Year 2021 T 51,729 54,958
Year 2022 —E- 143,507 142,698
Year 2023 - Z\:E 10,580 —
Year 2024 —ZE_HF 926 1,561
Year 2025 —ERHF 2,955 2,955
Year 2026 —ERF 2,951 2,951
245,120 279,617

At 31 December 2018, the aggregate amount of
temporary differences associated with undistributed
earnings of subsidiaries operated in the PRC and the
United States are approximately HK$217,455,000
(2017: HK$214,404,000) and HK$1,551,000 (2017:
HK$NIl) respectively. No liability has been recognised
in respect of these temporary differences because
the Group is in a position to control the timing of
reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that such differences will not be reversed in
the foreseeable future.

R-E—N\FE+_A=+—8 SBdhEK
EHEEBECHNBARIZADERANE@BZ
iy = R A B 5 Bl A #1217,455,0007% JT
(ZZT — 4 :214,404,0008 ) &
1,551,000 T (Z T —+F : TFIL) o A
SEVEREREZEEREAE  RAAR
S E AR R AN OB M&E
REAS S A] RE RN A B R SR B 5§ o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B B R B A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T— \F+-_A=+—ALFE

33. SHARE CAPITAL 33. A
Number of
shares Amount
e E o]
HK$'000
FET
Authorised: JATE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each FXEEO0. 175 A T AR
At 1 January 2017, 31 December RZE—tF—H—H"
2017, 1 January 2018 and —E—+F+ZA=+—
31 December 2018 H - —Z2—/\F—H—H
;E=F—N\E+=H
=+—H 5,000,000,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: ERERTRAR :
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each FRXEEO. 175 A T A%
At 1 January 2017, 31 December RZE—tF—H—H =
2017, 1 January 2018 and Z—+F+A=+—
31 December 2018 H - /\F—H—H
E=ZF—-—N&F+=A
=+—H 893,761,400 89,376

AEBERHEERNUABREAEEANZ TR

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities

in the Group will be able to continue as a going
concern while maximising the return to stakeholders
through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains
unchanged from the previous year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of cash
and cash equivalents and total equity, comprising
issued share capital, reserves, retained earnings and
non-controlling interests. The directors of the
Company review the capital structure on a semi-
annual basis. As part of this review, the directors
consider the cost of capital and the risks associated
with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of the directors, the Group will
balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends, new share issues and share
buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt or the
redemption of existing debt.

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited %= % BB IE R B R AT

BRI EEE  MBHERAIEBELE
BRIESERDMERALR - ARENE
ERBEEEFRER -

AEBENEARBEERENERREA
B REmEE  BREERTERA #FE R
BANRIFERERS - ARBEFEFF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

33. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

e

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # ZE =%

33. BRA (%)

1 3% 4R R MY RE (4R

=INSEaE= A=A e e 47 i

The net gearing ratio at the year end is as follows:

RELHFEBELRNT ¢

2018 2017
S TLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Debt (note (a)) B & (Hit(a) 324,702 368,278
Less: Restricted bank deposits B BRBIIRITER (5,517) (3,234)
Bank and cash balances RITRIE 4 (250,606) (243,994)
Net debt BfEFE 68,579 121,050
Equity (note (b)) W (K12 b)) 957,860 866,643
Net debt to equity ratio BEFHEEERL X 7.2% 14.0%
Note: HtaE -
(@) Debt is defined as bank borrowings as detailed in note 30 to (@) BREDAETERETED  BEEEERNES
the consolidated financial statements. FEIRFMITER0 ©
(b) Equity includes all capital and reserves of the Group. EEOEAEBFEEANREERE o

The only externally imposed capital requirements for
the Group are (i) in order to maintain its listing on the
Stock Exchange it has to have a public float of at
least 25% of its shares; and (i) to meet financial
covenants attached to the interest-bearing
borrowings. The Group receives reports from major
shareholders and other connected persons on any
changes in shares held by them to ensure the
continuing compliance with the 25% limit throughout
the year. As at 31 December 2018, 29.64% (2017:
29.64%) of the shares were in public hands. There
have been no breaches in the financial covenants of
any interest-bearing borrowings as at 31 December
2017 and 2018.

(b)

ANE B — W INEIE 2 B AR E AR BER
Frz EHi R EETLR25% 2 AR
B& = R (i)BFH MR ET BB B TERA -
AEEXRFEHREREMEEA LKA
AEEMEENRD ZEREBHNRS
LARE (R F A #5838 7 25% H) PR ) © ﬂ:;
—N\F+—A=+—H 29.64% (=F—
E:mﬁ@@Z%ﬁmﬁﬁ%ﬁomﬁé:
E—tFR_FE-N\F+_A=+—HIL
FE - BEEREEER IR -

Annual Report 2018 =& — /\F F i




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B B R B A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-_ZT—\F+-_A=+—RALLFE

34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 34. RABHBMRRT R FEEE
AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE
COMPANY
(a) Statement of financial position of the (@) AFATHABRAR
Company
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Kt FET FET
Non-current assets EREEE
Investments in subsidiaries RHEARRIEE 465,896 84,282
Current assets REEE
Prepayments, deposits and FENFKIE - Ee &k
other receivables H {th e U 5008 222 50
Due from subsidiaries JE U B B A Al R IE - 373,277
Bank and cash balances RITNIBE € E5% 140 181
362 373,508
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables and accruals — E i f& {5 30 IE &
Bt &R 9 8
Due to subsidiaries FETHI B A R 3RI8 103,502 93,180
Financial guarantee contracts HISERE LA E
liabilities 24,920 29,477
128,431 122,665
Net current (liabilities)/ mE(amE)
assets BEEH (128,069) 250,843
NET ASSETS HEFE 337,827 335,125
Capital and reserves BARR S
Share capital &N 89,376 89,376
Reserves i) 34(b) 248,451 245,749
TOTAL EQUITY Wi 337,827 335,125
Approved by the Board of Directors on 26 LEFEEN_T—NF=A= 1+ B
March 2019 and are signed on its behalf by: WHNATEERKEE :
Lee Yuen Fat Wong Wing Chuen
FiEE =KE
Director Director
EE 3
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b)

e B R R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T—/\F+_A=+—ALLFE

35. RESERVES

34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 34. RRBEMBMRRERE FEiEEE (B)
AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)
Reserve movement of the Company (b) EAATIZHEEEE
Share
Share option  Retained
premium reserve profits Total
R R E
B 1n i (8 #E RIEEAN ag
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
At 1 January 2017 R=ZZE—t&—H—H 204,650 10 43,059 247,719
Dividend paid BT S — - (8,938) (8,938)
Profit for the year F N A = = 6,968 6,968
At 31 December 2017 RZZE—tF+=A8
=+—H 204,650 10 41,089 245,749
At 1 January 2018 R-ZZE-N\F—-H—H 204,650 10 41,089 245,749
Lapse of share options R BB = (10) 10 -
Dividend paid ERKRE = = (8,938) (8,938)
Profit for the year F A5 A = = 11,640 11,640
At 31 December 2018 RZE—N\F
+=-—A=+—H 204,650 - 43,801 248,451
35. f#&f#
The Group (@) F%HE

(a)

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein are presented in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income and consolidated
statements of changes in equity.

7 0 B OB RARRIE B 0
A1BHRE R E MR RS A M2
DR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B B R B A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE=-T—/\F+=-_A=+—HILFE

35. RESERVES (Continued)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Share premium

Share premium represents premium
arising from the issue of shares at a price
in excess of their par value per share.
Under the Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands, the funds in the share
premium account of the Company are
distributable to the shareholders of the
Company provided that immediately
following the date on which the dividend
is proposed to be distributed, the
Company will be in a position to pay off
its debts as they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve represents the
aggregate of (i) the nominal value of the
shares issued by Ka Fung Metal
Manufactory Company Limited on 18
January 2005 in exchange for the
business of Ka Fung Metal Manufactory,
an unincorporated partnership established
in Hong Kong and controlled by Mr. Lee;
and (i) the nominal value of the shares
issued by the Company in exchange for
the entire shareholdings of Ka Shui
(Holdings) Company Limited.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents () the
amount of minority interests in Ka Fung
Metal Manufactory Company Limited and
Ka Fung Metal Manufactory acquired by
the Group; (i) the adjustment of non-
controlling interest arising from further
acquisition of the equity interest up to
79.7% in Topanga Asia and up to 100%
in Wuhu Lenka during the year ended 31
December 2015; and (i) the adjustment
of non-controlling interest arising from the
deemed disposal of Topanga Asia.

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited %= % BB IE R B R AT

e (&)

HEZHEERED

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

ﬂlﬁ}lﬁ 1E

i aEhiEERERERE
B B8 ITRD M E £ /s
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BRERNEERBEERBBE
PRI ET o

S S

A OHREEIE A T RIB A AR R : ()
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TERF— A+ /\HARE:
EEBER MK (—HEEEATE
A ER AR BB
FAL - SERZR ST AR 2 E TS
MEETTHIRMDEE : K ()4 A F]
AR EhEEERARNE
H R M B TR AR (D E(E ©

BAHE
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BU TR R > SRR SR 2 A FRRE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A B R I ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-_T—/\F+ A=+ —ALFE

35. RESERVES (Continued)

(b)

Nature and purpose of reserves

(Continued)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Foreign currency translation reserve
The foreign currency translation reserve
comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of
the financial statements of foreign
operations. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies
set out in note 4(d)(iii) to the
consolidated financial statements.

Share option reserve

The share option reserve represents the
fair value of the actual or estimated
number of unexercised share options
granted to employees of the Group
recognised in accordance with the
accounting policy adopted for equity-
settled share-based payments in note
4(s) to the consolidated financial
statements.

Statutory reserve

The statutory reserve comprises the PRC
statutory reserve fund which
distributable.

is non-

As stipulated by the relevant laws and
regulations for foreign investment
enterprises in the PRC, the Company’s
PRC subsidiaries are required to transfer
10% of their profit after taxation
calculated under PRC accounting rules
and regulations to the statutory reserve
fund, until the accumulated total of the
statutory reserve fund reaches 50% of
their registered capital. The statutory
surplus reserve fund can be used to
make up prior year losses or applied in
conversion into capital.

35. f#fE (/&)

(b)

(iv)

(vi)

HEzHEERB (&)

BE 5 et 4
EHFEREREBRETINE
SRR ELENMEER
=R - EREREBEREVIE
RERMTTEAQ) (iR E TR
3 o

BB ERE

BREREERESE MR
R L A(s) P H B pe 5 B DA B
17 32 B TR IR T £R 4 B 2 5 BX
RERNETAKERENR
TTEBRENER G BE
B RFE -

EEEE
FEEREBEBETAIDIKAF E
AERBES -

TREREIEHIREDEKMIAR
ERMEPIRE - ARAMH
B E AR ARBERBEEE
{5 K Ak 5] 51 B B0 B B 1R i A
10%BREELERHEBES B
ERFAEHBECREES
& A H50% R 1 2 JETE &R
REFERES A BIEMBESF
EEBRIBAER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B B R B A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-_ZT—\F+-_A=+—RALLFE

35. RESERVES (Continued)

(b)

Nature and purpose of reserves
(Continued)

(vii)

(viii)

Land revaluation reserve

The land revaluation reserve has been set
up and is dealt with in accordance with
the accounting policies adopted for
leasehold land in note 4(e) to the
consolidated financial statements.

Financial assets at FVTOCI reserve

The financial assets at FVTOCI reserve
comprises the cumulative net change in
the fair value of financial assets at
FVTOCI held at the end of the reporting
period and is dealt with in accordance
with the accounting policy in note 4(m) to
the consolidated financial statements.

36. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

(a)

Share Option Scheme

U]

Share option scheme adopted in 2007

Pursuant to written resolutions of all the
shareholders passed on 2 June 2007, a
share option scheme (2007 Scheme”)
was approved. The purpose of the 2007
Scheme is to recognise and
acknowledge the contributions that
eligible participants had made or may
make to the Group. Eligible participants
include (i) employees, directors,
consultants, professionals, customers,
suppliers, agents, partners or advisors of
or contractors to the Group or a
company in which the Group holds an
interest or a subsidiary of such company
(“Affiliate”), or (i) companies beneficially
owned by any director, employee,
consultant, professional, customer,
supplier, agent, partner, adviser of or
contractor to the Group or an Affiliate.
The 2007 Scheme became effective on 2
June 2007 and, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, will remain in force
for 10 years from that date.

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited = & B B2 = i G R A &

e ()
(b) fEEZHEERBER (&)

(vii) T E &
R THEMFEEIRERS
I mEM T4 B AES
TH MR @ FTHUR ©

(viii) =2 FEFTANHE 2 H I S
BzEmEE
BRAFEF AR M2 E KSR
BZeREERRNERS KY
FENRAFEFAEMEE
Witz EMEE 2R FERG
FEE - DIRBEAVBERE
M FE4(m) 2 EFTBUREIE -

AR E 2 7R

(a) FElRMESTEl
) R-FTLtERMZEBRE

atEl
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A B R I ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-_T—/\F+ A=+ —ALFE

36. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 36. ARRRELEE 2 FIE (8)

(@) Share Option Scheme (Continued)

(i)

Share option scheme adopted in 2007
(Continued)

The maximum number of shares which
may be issued upon the exercise of all
outstanding share options granted and
yet to be exercised under the 2007
Scheme or any other schemes involving
the grant of options over shares of the
Company must not, in aggregate, exceed
30% of the shares of the Company in
issue at anytime. The maximum number
of shares issuable under share options to
each eligible participant in the 2007
Scheme within any 12 month period, is
limited to 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at anytime. Any further
grant of shares options in excess of this
limit is subject to shareholders’ approval
in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief
executive or substantial shareholder of the
Company, or to any of their associates,
are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors. In
addition, any share options granted to a
substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director of the Company,
or to any of their associates, in excess
of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time or with an aggregate
value (based on the closing price of the
Company’s shares at the date of the
grant) in excess of HK$5,000,000, within
any 12-month period, are subject to
shareholders’ approval in advance in a
general meeting.

(a) FBRR#ESTEI(4])
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B B R B A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE=-T—/\F+=-_A=+—HILFE

36. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

(@) Share Option Scheme (Continued)

(i)

Share option scheme adopted in 2007
(Continued)

The offer of a grant of share options shall
remain open for acceptance by the
eligible participant concerned for a period
of not less than three business days from
the date of offer, except for any offer
which is made within the last three
business days of the life of this scheme,
the offer shall remain open for
acceptance on a business day by the
eligible participant concerned for a period
of not longer than the remaining life of
this scheme. An offer cannot be
accepted by an eligible participant who
ceases to qualify as an eligible participant
after the offer has been made. No offer
shall be capable of or open for
acceptance after the expiry of 10 years
for the effective date of this scheme.

The offer of a grant of share options may
be accepted upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$10 in total by the
grantee. The exercise period of the share
options granted is determinable by the
directors, and commences after a certain
vesting period as determined by directors
at each grant and ends on a date which
is not later than ten years from the date
of the offer of the share options.

The exercise price of the share options is
determinable by the directors, but may
not be less than the highest of () the
Stock Exchange closing price of the
Company’s shares on the date of the
offer of the share options; (i) the average
Stock Exchange closing price of the
Company’s shares for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of
the offer; and (jiij the nominal value of the
Company’s shares on the date of the
offer.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A B R I ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T—/\F+_A=+—ALLFE

36. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 36. ARRRELEE 2 FIE (8)
(a) Share Option Scheme (Continued) (a) HBRtERTEI(E)
(i) Share option scheme adopted in 2007 i) R-FBTLtERMZERE
(Continued) =t &l (4&
Share options do not confer rights on the BhRERA AEREERR S
holder to dividends or to vote at RERREARE LR E -

shareholders’ meetings.

Details of the specific categories of share HBRERNEBEAFEEOT :
options are as follows:

Fair value
Category of at grant  Exercise Number of share options
grantee Date of grant  Vesting date  Exercise period date price outstanding
I?
RHBaH
ARAER  RUBH HERY T ZAFE  TERE AR e E
HK$ HKS 2018 2017

BT ol —%-)\& EetErg

Junior staff 13 March 2008 13 March 2009 13 March 2009 to 0.1 0.415 - 40,800
12 March 2018
NRBE —ZENfE “EENE “E2ENEZR
=ZA+=H EHTEE TERZE
ZZ-\F=R
+=H
Junior staff 13 March 2008 13 March 2010 13 March 2010 to 0.12 0.415 - 20,600
12 March 2018
MNREE ZZENE —E-TF ZE-T5=F
=ZA+=H EHTEE TERZE
“E-\§=f
+=H
Junior staff 13 March 2008 13 March 2011 13 March 2011 to 0.12 0.415 - 40,600
12 March 2018
NRBE S LS 3% —2——%=H
=ZA+=H EHTEE TERZE
“E-\F=f
+=H
The fair values of the options were BRENATEREL AHE
determined at the dates of grant using Rtans — SFRETEEEEE
the Black-Scholes option pricing model. HEEE ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B B R B A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T— \F+-_A=+—ALFE

36. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 36. ARELEE 2 IE (88)
(a) Share Option Scheme (Continued) (a) HBRtERTEI(E)

() Share option scheme adopted in 2007 (i) R-FTBLEFEHRMNZERE
(Continued) =T &I (&
The following assumptions were used to TNIMRFERRTEERERN
calculate the fair values of shares NEE -
options:
Share price HK$0.400 B (& 0.4007 7t
Exercise price HK$0.415 1TEE 0.4157% 7T
Expected life 3.5-6.5 years R 3.5-6.5%
Expected volatility 55.42% R I8 55.42%
Dividend vyield 5.25% SN EETES 5.25%
Risk-free interest rate  2.005%-2.176% EREBAE  2.005%-2.176%
Expected volatility was determined by TEET R 18 T5 35 1B 5T & B (D O B
calculating the historical volatility of share RET LB SR EARE
prices of comparable companies with BEBEUMT LR RRBRER
shares listed on the Stock Exchange and BT RIEETE - BEIFEEM -
engaged in the similar business of the TEERHRITAZERME @ £
Group. The expected life used in the RAZEXANBFEHRERIBEAR
model has been adjusted, based on the SEMREMFEL AR -

Group’s best estimate, for the effects of
non transferability, exercise restrictions
and behavioural considerations.

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited = & B B2 = i G R A &




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B R R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T—\F+-_A=+—HILFE

36. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 36. UREEE 2FIE (&)
(a) Share Option Scheme (Continued) (a) HBRtERTEI(E)
() Share option scheme adopted in 2007 (i) R-FTLEFEHEMNZERE
(Continued) FHEl (48)
Details of the share option movements 2T EERERNEREZ
during the year and share options RN FREARITEBRE
outstanding at the end of the year under BT

the 2007 Scheme are as follows:

2018 2017

—B-0\F —E—+F
Weighted Weighted
Number average Number average
of share exercise of share exercise
options price options price
FEIRE  MEEY BhkE  nEFH
4= TR A 1B
HK$ HK$
ET BT

Outstanding at the FRRITE

beginning of the year 102,000 0.415 102,000 0.415
Lapsed during the year FREK (102,000) 0.415 - 0.415

Outstanding at the end of F&KRTT(E
the year - - 102,000 0.415

Exercisable at the end of FRAI{T{E
the year — - 102,000 0.415
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B B R B A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T— \F+-_A=+—ALFE

36. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

(@) Share Option Scheme (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Share option scheme adopted in 2007
(Continued)

No (2017: No) share options were
exercised during the year. The options
outstanding at the end of the year 2017
have a weighted average remaining
contractual life of 0.3 year and the
exercise price HK$0.415.

Save as disclosed above, no further
options were granted under the 2007
Scheme.

Share option scheme adopted in 2017

Pursuant to a resolution passed in the
annual general meeting of the Company
held on 19 May 2017, a new share
option scheme (2017 Scheme”) was
adopted. The 2007 Scheme has been
terminated upon the adoption of 2017
Scheme, except that the provisions in
relation to the exercise of any options
granted under the 2007 Scheme prior to
its termination shall remain in force and
such options shall continue to be valid
and exercisable.

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited = & B B2 = i G R A &

36. AIREEHE ZFE (&)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A B R I ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-_T—/\F+ A=+ —ALFE

36. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

(@) Share Option Scheme (Continued)

(ii)

Share option scheme adopted in 2017
(Continued)

The purpose of the 2017 Scheme is to (i)
motivate the eligible participants to
optimise their performance and efficiency
for the benefit of the Group; and (i)
attract and retain or otherwise maintain
ongoing business relationship with the
eligible participants whose contributions
are, will or expected to be beneficial to
the Group. Eligible participants of the
2017 Scheme include (i) any director,
employee, consultant, professional,
customer, supplier, agent, partner or
adviser of or contractor to the Group or
a company in which the Group holds an
interest or a subsidiary of such company
(the “Affiliate”); or (i) the trustee of any
trust the beneficiary of which or any
discretionary trust the discretionary
objects of which include any director,
employee, consultant, professional,
customer, supplier, agent, partner or
adviser of or contractor to the Group or
an Affiliate; or (iii) a company beneficially
owned by any director, employee,
consultant, professional, customer,
supplier, agent, partner, adviser of or
contractor to the Group or an Affiliate.
The 2017 Scheme became effective on
19 May 2017 and, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, will remain in force
for 10 years from that date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B B R B A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BHEZE T —\F+_A=+—HILFE

36. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

(@) Share Option Scheme (Continued)

(ii)

Share option scheme adopted in 2017
(Continued)

The maximum number of unexercised
share options currently permitted to be
granted under the 2017 Scheme is an
amount equivalent, upon their exercise,
to 10% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time. The maximum number
of shares issuable under share options to
each eligible participant in the 2017
Scheme within any 12-month period is
limited to 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time. Any
further grant of shares options in excess
of this limit is subject to shareholders’
approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief
executive or substantial shareholder of the
Company, or to any of their associates,
are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors. In
addition, any share options granted to a
substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director of the Company,
or to any of their associates, in excess
of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time or with an aggregate
value (based on the price of the
Company’s shares at the date of the
grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within
any 12-month period, are subject to
shareholders’ approval in advance in a
general meeting.

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited %= % BB IE R B R AT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A B R I ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-_T—/\F+ A=+ —ALFE

36. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

(a)
(ii)

Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Share option scheme adopted in 2017
(Continued)

The offer of a grant of share options may
be accepted within 30 days from the date
of the offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$10 in total by the
grantee. The exercise period of the share
options granted is determinable by the
directors, and commences after meeting
certain performance targets or certain
vesting period that may be set by the
directors, and ends on a date which is
not later than ten years from the date of
the offer of the share options or the
expiry date of the Scheme, if earlier.

The exercise price of the share options is
determinable by the directors, but may
not be less than the highest of (i) the
Stock Exchange closing price of the
Company’s shares on the date of the
offer of the share options; (i) the average
Stock Exchange closing price of the
Company’s shares for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of
the offer; and (i) the nominal value of the
Company’s shares on the date of the
offer, when applicable.

Share options do not confer rights on the
holder to dividends or to vote at
shareholders’ meetings.

No share options have been granted
under the 2017 Scheme since its
adoption.
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(ii)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B B R B A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T— \F+-_A=+—ALFE

36. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Share Award Scheme

The Company adopted a share award scheme
(the “Share Award Scheme”) on 10 January
2013 (“Adoption Date”) for a period of 10
years. The purpose and objective of the Share
Award Scheme are to recognise the
contributions by certain employees and persons
of the Group and to provide them with
incentives in order to retain them for the
continued operation and development of the
Group and to attract suitable personnel for
further development of the Group. The
Company has set up a Share Award Scheme
Trust. Pursuant to the Share Award Scheme,
new awarded shares may be allotted and
issued to the independent trustee under
general mandates granted or to be granted by
the shareholders at general meetings of the
Company from time to time and be held in
trust for relevant participants until such shares
are vested with the relevant participants in
accordance with the provisions of the Share
Award Scheme.

Subject to any early termination as may be
determined by the Board of the Company, the
Share Award Scheme shall be valid and
effective for a period of ten years commencing
on the Adoption Date.

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited %= % BB IE R B R AT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

36. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Share Award Scheme (Continued)

The maximum number of shares awarded
under the Share Award Scheme shall not
exceed 5% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the Adoption Date.

The maximum number of shares which may be
awarded to a selected person under the Share
Award Scheme shall not exceed 1% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at the
Adoption Date.

As at 31 December 2018, the number of
awarded shares which may be granted under
the Share Award Scheme was 44,311,770. For
the year ended 31 December 2018, no
awarded shares was granted pursuant to the
Share Award Scheme (2017: Nil).

e B R R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-_T—/\F+ A=+ —ALFE

36. AIREEHE ZFE (&)

(b)

R 153 58 Bh =t 8l (48)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B B R B A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE=-T—/\F+=-_A=+—HILFE

37. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 37. RERERERMT
OF CASH FLOWS
(a) Cash flows from operating activities (a) WEXBZHERE
2018 2017
—E-)\F —T—+tF
HK$°000 HK$'000
F#Ei FET
Profit from operations £ F 139,220 2,422
Adjustments for: EAYEL N5
Interest income A2 U A (300) (354)
Reversal of impairment losses on B 5 & U 71 I8 Bl (B 5 18
trade receivables o] % (764) —
Impairment losses on trade 2 5 W IB R EEE
receivables 132 764
Bad debt written off Iz AR BE 655 61
Allowance for inventories FEREAE 18,890 415
Net loss/(gain) on disposal of HEM KR REHE
property, plant and equipment ZIEER (M) 486 (84)
Property, plant and equipment WSE - 125 MR 1R 8
written off 238 8,632
Impairment losses on property, VI3 - HES MR ERE
plant and equipment E518 3,861 8,752
Impairment losses on amounts JE Whss & A B R IBRE
due from associates E518 - 2,934
(Gain on)/Deficit in revaluation of i EEEH 2 (U
land =),/ B8 (265) 578
Depreciation of property, plant and 1% - #E R REHITE
equipment 82,041 87,174
Impairment losses on deposit paid B 1% % i EEE 1,364
Impairment losses on investments R EEE R &% & R {E
in associates B8 1,652 —
Operating profit before movements K51 8 & & & ) i H4F
in working capital =ikl 247,210 111,294
Increase in inventories FEEM (19,864) (67,181)
Increase in right of return assets & [B] & 7 Z 4 /3% N (111) -
Increase in restricted bank balance 4 BR il $817 1% 5135 N (2,283) (2,257)
Decrease in trade receivables B 5 e WS IE R 32,796 25,945
Decrease in contract assets BEHEERD 7,505 —
Decrease/(Increase) in prepayments, T8 78 « 324 & H ) fE
deposits and other receivables WSk IE R (38 hn) 24,675 (8,960)
(Decrease)/Increase in trade B EARIEORD),
payables 0 (86,205) 74,467
Increase in deposits received, other 2 U] « E ff fE FUIE
payables and accruals K EETE R 10,780 30,951
Decrease in contract liabilities EHEERD (11,112) -
Increase in refund liabilities RIRE EIE N 241 —
Repayment to a former fellow BEMRRMBEA
subsidiary - (78,583)
Increase in amount due to a related J& {5 BB A B FIE L AN
company - 403
Cash generated from operations SRR S 203,632 96,079
Income tax paid Eﬁﬁﬁ ﬁ‘?ﬁ (13,272) (55,682)
Interest paid BATFIE (13,167) (16,115)
Net cash generated from operating #£& 2SI € %5
activities 177,193 24,282
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

37. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(b)

Disposal of a subsidiary

On 24 October 2016, the Group entered into
an equity transfer agreement with a company
controlled by Mr. Lee to dispose of the
Group’s 100% entire equity interest in MG
Technology (Shenzhen) Company Limited (“MG
Technology”). MG Technology was principally
engaged in sale and manufacture of
magnesium and aluminium alloy die casting
products and components. The disposal was
completed on 12 July 2017.

For the year ended 3

=
i

37.

(b)

e

1 December 2018 # ZE =

Eﬂ%iﬁ%’%ﬁﬁi(ﬁ)

—INEEa R IS T gl il 57

EREMNEBRMEE (E)

HEKRBAT
RZEBE—ARF+AZ+TA  A£E
E‘@?f‘ﬁi% il 9 R ] N AR B AR 1

SRl ERER RV BRA
ET((E|J$%$4T§J)Z100%’£E‘BH§$
Hm o BlEERBEERSHERE
EERkineeBEEmRTEH - &
’§$IEE7§A_f +tFLA+=ZHR
X o

Net assets at the date of disposal were as REERHMNFEENDT :
follows:
HK$'000
FET
Property, plant and equipment L *%E%%&?&ﬁ 88,538
Trade receivables B 5 IE WK 16,079
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables &1 718 Tﬁ%&ﬁﬁﬁﬁgﬂﬂlm 5,484
Due from related companies & UK B8 Bk A B FR IR 138,428
Restricted bank balances BRHIIRITFRK 508
Cash and cash equivalents iﬁ@&%@ﬁ@lﬁ = 29,106
Trade payables =Y AN (20,161)
Other payables and accruals EL A FE 1 50 IE NIEETE R (24,150)
Due to related companies FE < BA B A 7] 5RIE (37,035)
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIBEE (10,006)
Net assets disposed of HEFEE 186,791
Expenses incurred for the disposal HEEFNRX 1,080
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HENB AR K 96,011
Release of foreign currency translation EH=mED
differences 6,118
Total consideration BB 290,000
Consideration satisfied by: REATRIFHA A :
Cash " 250,000
Deposit received in previous year EZFEWET & 40,000
290,000
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEEEHZFRERA :
Cash consideration received BUIR e RE 250,000
Less: Bank balances and cash disposed of J& : HERTAMG LIRS (29,106)
Expenses incurred for the disposal HEEENRX (1,080)
219,814
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
%v*ﬁéﬁ!ﬂ%iﬁ%ﬁﬁi(ﬁ)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE=-T—/\F+=-_A=+—HILFE

37. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 37. HEREREXRMT (8)
OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(c) Major non-cash transaction (c) EEFHREXS
Included in the additions of property, plant and AAREME HERZBEAED
equipment was an amount of approximately 3,458,000 L (=& — & &F :
HK$3,458,000 (2017: HK$6,244,000) which 6,244,000 L) - THEMNBED
was transferred from deposits paid for ¥ BERREORSAEA -
acquisition of property, plant and equipment.

(d) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (d) BMEITHBELEDNERHIR
financing activities
The table below details changes in the Group’s TRAMLANEEREZTHNEENE
liabilities arising from financing activities, BEEY (BiERe kIR - @
including both cash and non-cash changes. BEBMEENBEELHIBFERA
Liabilities arising from financing activities are SERGEReERERNIBRARBER
those for which cash flows were, or future FIRERE o

cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s
consolidated statement of cash flows as cash
flows from financing activities.

1 January Exchange 31 December
2018 Cash Flows difference 2018

(Note)
%A%
+ZH

Iﬂ%ﬁg HRRR EnzE =t-B

W)

HKS000  HKSU0O  HKSU0O HKS000  HKS'000
FET Fér FET FET 71

Bank borrowings (rofe 30) iOIEE N (/1/7&30) 368,278 (56,325) 13,167 (418) 324,702
Due from associates U MIE - (108) - - (108)
Due 10 associates R E DR 617 2112 - (132) 3,057
368,895 (53,661) 13,167 (550) 327,851
1 January Interest Exchange 31 December
2017 Cash Flows expenses Impairment difference 2017
Note)
B LF
Bt A
-A-H Reing HlERx HE EXER =t-H
(Hit)

HKS'000 HK$1000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$1000 HKS'000
FEL TEL FEL FEL TEL FEL

Bank horrowings (note 30) RiTER W220) 565,952 (215,929) 16,115 = 2,134 368,278
Due from associates EYBEAFZE (2,346) (511) - 2,034 77 -
Due 10 associates EfBERAFE 636 (19 = = = 617
564,242 (216,459) 16,115 2,934 2,067 368,895
Note: Included in cash flows was interest paid which was B - BeREVEFTAKETHREREN
included in cash flows from operating activities. BEARFIE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

38.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Group as lessor

The Group leases its property under operating lease
arrangements, with leases negotiated for a term of
one to five years (2017: one year). The terms of the
leases generally provide for periodic rent adjustments
according to the then prevailing market conditions.

At 31 December 2018, the Group had total future

e B R R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T—\F+-_A=+—HILFE

38. REFHYAIE

AEEEBHBAAN
AEBRKEHOTHEELYE - A
B—FERAE(ZS—+F: —F) -BH
REE—RURATTRERETHESBE
ZIEE o

RZZE-N\F+-_A=1—H AKEHR

minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable 15 7T AT JR B A5 FE 49 T A 7T Z1) HA R B HR AY
operating leases with its tenants faling due as JEUR REER ERAREMT ¢
follows:
2018 2017
—E—)\F —T—tfF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Within one year —F A 214 8
In the second to fifth year, inclusive S —FEFERE
(BEEREMF) 393 —
607 8
The Group as lessee EEEEBEREAAN

At 31 December 2018, the total future minimum
lease payments of the Group under non-cancellable
operating leases are payable as follows:

RZZE-NF+A=+—H AKEHR
BT RS EANNEN RRKEEE
AR T

2018 2017

—ET-)\EF —E—tF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FEIT

Within one year —F A 5,818 4,927
In the second to fifth year, inclusive 6 - FEFERE

(BEEEMS) 10,585 11,801

16,403 16,728
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B B R B A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE=-T—/\F+=-_A=+—HILFE
38. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 38. KREFH A EIE (8)
(Continued)
The Group as lessee (Continued) EXEEEBERBEAN (&
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable %&%Tﬂ%’]ﬁwﬁaﬁ%l»ﬁf%:!:‘*f’&?:
by the Group for certain of its office premises, ¥ Il 55 BIESEANAERES
factories, warehouses, staff quarters and office FrfE o #)J#"*ff@ﬁ I B2 BT
equipment. Leases for office premises, factories, BERBRAERENHEN(—HEARET
warehouses, staff quarters and office equipment TRYIZERIN EpmEmel - B AEE
except one warehouse and certain factory premises M FEER—ZEREF -
are negotiated, and rentals are fixed, for an average
term of 1 to 5 years.
Lease arrangements of four warehouses (2017: one) WE(ZE—tF: —B)EENHELH
have been subject to contingent rent by reference to R2ZHEHRANTAFEABRIZNK
monthly usage throughout the lease period. AMEE
The lease payments recognised as expenses are as HEFRIBRERAIH DTN :
follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —ZT—+tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#Er FET
Minimum lease payments =K E R IE 7,544 7,412
Contingent rent BNtk 356 75
7,900 7,487
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

39. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group’s capital commitments at the end of the

reporting period are as follows:

e B R R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T—/\F+_A=+—ALLFE

BAREE
K& HF T
™

39.
B NEEHE AR EELD

2018 2017
=t SN —T—tF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET TET
Commitment in respect of acquisition UEYI S - #2S R

of property, plant and equipment I (K1 it (a)

(note (a)) 26,292 23,914
Other commitment (note (b)) B b #&AE (B2 b)) — 11,044
Note: Mz
(@) The amount represents the unpaid contractual commitment (@) EZ%’\IE)%W%*@% S %%&ﬁfﬁﬂ"]*ﬁiﬁ%’ﬂﬁ

for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment after ?‘ ﬂ%@%ﬂ&ﬁ?ﬁ]\ﬁé},ﬁzﬁ%#ﬁ%ﬂpEjﬁﬂﬁz,&%
netting off with the deposits paid for acquisition of property, MR BERIHENEMNES -
plant and equipment included in the consolidated statement
of financial position.
(b) Pursuant to an agreement dated 29 November 2017 entered (b) AR SR 8 B A R L RT 4075 RT S B AR =

into by the Group and two other parties, a new company in
which the Group has 46% equity interest was set up in
January 2018. The amount of commitment as at 31
December 2017 represented the capital that was required to
be injected by the Group to the new company according to
the agreement.

T—tF+—A=-+tNBNHE AEEHES
A% AERNFARIER =S —N\F— A
MoRZE—tF+—A=+—BZ&EERE
AASBEREBEZBEEART AR EENER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B B A% R R MY ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-_ZT—\F+-_A=+—RALLFE

40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(@ In addition to those related party translations
and balances disclosed elsewhere in the
consolidated financial statements, the Group
had the following transactions with its related
parties during the year:

40. EBA LIRS
@) BREAMBREREMIHABRED
BEA TR RS EREEE
o EABIIEA THITUTRS ¢

2018 2017
—T-N\F T —tF
HK$°000 HK$’'000
FET FET
Rental expenses paid to an FEE A RS H
associate - 1,318
Purchase of machinery from an [m) B 2 N B B B A 23
associate 2,492 —
Purchase of machinery and m) A B 2 B R AR Ak =%
machinery parts from and HAERARIEE#
maintenance cost to a related 25 R TEM R
company, Chit Shun Machinery (EIp %N
Limited (note (i) (BtaEa)) 6,260 5,088
Amount due to a related company, &<t 85 7] 5 A
Chit Shun Machinery Limited REERARNIEA
(note (})) (K7a£() - 4,465
Deposit paid to a related company, [ B8 A &) 5 i 5%
Chit Shun Machinery Limited BERAA T HirE
(note (i) (M () - 6,331
Note: Hist -

(i) Mr. Lee has joint control in the related company.
These transactions are made between the
Company’s subsidiaries and the related company
under a master agreement dated 7 December 2015
between the related company and the Company, and
are continuing connected transactions under the
Listing Rules.

On 29 March 2018, Mr. Lee disposed the interest in
Chit Shun Machinery Limited and the transactions
with Chit Shun Machinery Limited since then were no
longer classified as related party transactions.

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited = & BB 2 RAE R A 7
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

41.

42.

(b)

The above transactions were entered with the
related parties on terms mutually agreed by
individual parties. In the opinion of the directors
of the Group, these related party transactions
were conducted on normal commercial terms
and in the ordinary and usual course of the
Group’s business.

During the year, compensation paid by the
Group to the key management personnel,
which were the directors of the Company, was
disclosed in note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(@)

On 26 March 2019, the Board of Directors
proposed to declare a final dividend of HK3.5
cents (2017: HK1.0 cent) totalling
approximately $31,282,000 (2017:
HK$8,938,000) per ordinary share to its
shareholders, as further disclosed in note 17 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Ms. Chan So Wah has been appointed as an
executive director of the Company with effect
from 1 April 2019.

APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors
on 26 March 2019.

e B R R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-_T—/\F+ A=+ —ALFE

40.

41.

42.

BEEALRS (&)

(b)

bt 32 515 BEEREE A TIRIR & 77 B AR
BEMIRFETT - ARBESRR -
ZERBR 5 IRE —REEHERR
AEERBEBHN—RBREPET -

FA-AEEAENEIEEEAS (R
ARREF) M DREAMBHRE
B FE 165 3R -

HREMERER

—

a)

in):3

R-ZZE—HNE=A=-+ B &g
EZMRES KSR E RIS
(ZZE—+F:1.081) X EY
31,282,000 7t (2017 : 8,938,00055
T ZARHRE - EFBERNGRE 0
TERER M FET -

REELTEREERARRNNIT
EE R-T-AFMA—BER-
e M ERK

AP BHRERENR _T—AFZA=-+<
HEZEEE R EDRERE -
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

LIEMERE

Year ended 31 December

BEZE+-A=1+—-HILEE

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
—E-NE —T-RHF —E-—RE —ZE—+F =N
HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TFET TET FET TFET FH#TT
RESULTS #i5
Revenue LON 1,582,333 1,539,344 1,742,476 1,738,738 1,852,329
Profit/(Loss) before tax BR 54 B 4 /(B 48) 86,059 (71,756) 106,154 81,993 125,907
Income tax expense Fr{SRif X (26,707) (5,410) (46,252) (45,862) (12,505)
Profit/(Loss) for the year F W& /(E18) 59,352 (77,166) 59,902 36,131 113,402
Attributable to: ATALTEG#ER
— Owners of the Company ~ — AARIERFHEBA 77,246 (63,489) 59,243 33,998 113,556
— Non-controlling interests ~ — JEFEERRAER (17,894) (13,677) 659 2,133 (154)
59,352 (77,166) 59,902 36,131 113,402
As at 31 December
B+=A=+—H
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
—E-NE —E-FF —E-—RE —Z—+F =3
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000 HK$'000 HK$’000
& TR FET FET FET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES ZEREfE
Total assets BEE 1,829,980 1,791,602 1,865,747 1,768,096 1,719,695
Total liabilities meffd (980,437) (1,080,102) (1,094,240)  (901,453) (761,835)
Net assets FEE 849,543 731,500 771,507 866,643 957,860

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited = & BB 2 RAE R A 7



KaShoi

Ka Shui International Holdmgs Limited
RIEERREARAT

Room A, 29th Floor, Tower B, Billion Centre, 1 Wang Kwong Road,
Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong
EBNENEERHBEIRERLBEIEAE

Tel B : (852) 3759 8900
Fax {EH : (852) 2412 1743

Website #93t : www.kashui.com
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